Public Document Pack

Blackpool Council

8 June 2021
To:  Councillors Burdess, G Coleman, Collett, Galley, Jackson, Kirkland, Owen, Walsh and
Wilshaw

The above members are requested to attend the:

INFORMAL TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 16 June 2021 at 6.00 pm
in Via Zoom Conference Call

AGENDA

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in
doing so state:

(1) the type of interest concerned either a

(a) personal interest
(b) prejudicial interest
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)

and
(2) the nature of the interest concerned

If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.

2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 14 APRIL 2021 (Pages 1 - 8)

To agree the minutes of the last meeting held on 14 April 2021 as a true and correct
record.

3 PUBLIC SPEAKING

To consider any applications from members of the public to speak at the meeting.



10

EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS (Pages 9 - 18)

To consider the Executive and Cabinet Member Decisions within the remit of the
Committee, taken since the last meeting.

FORWARD PLAN (Pages 19 - 26)

To consider the content of the Council’s Forward Plan, June 2021 — October 2021,
within the remit of the Committee.

EXTERNAL CONSULTANTS ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 (Pages 27 - 34)

To consider the annual report, detailing external consultancy spend across all Council
services during the 2020/21 financial year.

FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE (Pages 35 - 134)

To provide the Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny Committee an update on
the Flood Risk Management actions in respect of the following three actions:-

J The implementation of the Lancashire Flood Risk Strategy (Local
Strategy)

J The progress of bids submitted in relation to flood risk

J The implementation of Local Flood Forums

CLIMATE EMERGENCY DECLARATION: CLIMATE ASSEMBLY RECOMMENDATIONS
(Pages 135 - 216)

To consider the final reports of the Blackpool Climate Assembly, and the Youth Climate
Assembly.

SCRUTINY WORKPLAN (Pages 217 - 230)

To consider the Workplan, to monitor the implementation of Committee
recommendations, together with any suggestions that Members may wish to make for
scrutiny review topics and to note the outcome of the llluminations Scrutiny Review
Panel.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note the date and time of the next meeting as Wednesday, 6 October 2021,
commencing at 6pm.

Other information:




For queries regarding this agenda please contact John Greenbank, Senior Democratic
Governance Adviser, Tel: 01253 477229, e-mail john.greenbank@blackpool.gov.uk

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.



tel:01253
mailto:john.greenbank@blackpool.gov.uk
http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 14 APRIL 2021

Present:

Councillor Mitchell (in the Chair)

Councillors
Burdess Galley Jackson Wilshaw
G Coleman Hugo Walsh

In Attendance:

Councillor Neal Brookes, Cabinet Member of Housing and Welfare Reform
Councillor Gillian Campbell, Cabinet Member for Culture and Tourism

Councillor Jim Hobson, Cabinet Member of Climate Change and Environment
Councillor Maria Kirkland, Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion and Leisure
Councillor Mark Smith, Business, Enterprise and Job Creation

Councillor Mrs Maxine Callow JP, Chair of the Scrutiny Leadership Board

Steve Thompson, Director of Resources
Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration

Nick Gerrard, Growth and Prosperity Programme Director

Philip Welsh, Head of Tourism and Communications

Lisa Arnold, Head of Leisure, Parks and Catering Services

Annie Heslop, Green Infrastructure Development Manager

lan Large, Performance Manager, Traffic and Highways Management
John Greenbank, Democratic Governance Senior Adviser (Scrutiny)

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made on this occasion.

2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 3 FEBRUARY 2021

The Committee agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2021 be
signed by the Chairman as a true and correct record.

3 PUBLIC SPEAKING

There were no public speakers on this occasion.

Page 1



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 14 APRIL 2021

4 EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS

The Committee considered the Executive and Cabinet Member decisions taken within its
remit since the last meeting of the Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny
Committee on 3 February 2021.

The Committee queried EX18/2021, noting the £90k that had been agreed in prudential
borrowing for tramway works and asked how the money would be used. Mr Alan Cavill,
Director of Communications and Regeneration, replied that the money had been agreed
to cover a five-year period of maintenance works to the tramway along the promenade.
He stated that agreeing the level of prudential borrowing in this manner would allow
borrowing within the next five years without the need for individual decisions whenever
tramway works were required. It was added that this would support the development of
a tramway maintenance plan.

5 FORWARD PLAN

The Committee considered the contents of the Council’s Forward Plan April 2021 to
August 2021, relating to the portfolios of the Cabinet Members whose responsibilities fell
within its remit.

Members asked if the number of Business Loan applications could be provided since the
last meeting. Mr Steve Thompson, Director of Resources, responded that the item
appeared on the Forward Plan in order to facilitate a response to any applications that
were received. Since the last meeting in February 2021, Mr Thompson stated that no
applications had been received or loans agreed, he added that it was not expected that
any would be received until after May 2021. It was also stated that details of approved
loan applications were published on the Council website.

Regarding the Tree Strategy, scheduled for consideration in April 2021, members asked if
an update could be provided on its development. Ms Annie Heslop, Green Infrastructure
Development Manager, informed the Committee that the Council was on track to meet
its tree planting target and that at the time of the meeting the strategy was undergoing
public consultation. It was added that a report on the related Green and Blue
Infrastructure Strategy would also be considered by the upcoming meeting of the Scrutiny
Leadership Board, and that this could be circulated for information.

6 TOURISM PERFORMANCE AND RECOVERY UPDATE

Mr Philip Welsh, Head of Tourism and Communications, presented the Tourism
Performance and Recovery Update.

The update outlined the actions being undertaken to recover from the impact of the
Covid-19 lockdown restrictions and showed that tourism recovery planning was at an
advanced stage and provided a long-term plan for supporting tourist businesses in
Blackpool.

Page 2



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 14 APRIL 2021

Mr Welsh also reported that a Tourism BID had been developed in partnership with the
private sector in Blackpool. This BID would sit alongside the Town Centre BID already in
place and if successful could generate up to £1m a year to support tourism in Blackpool.

The Committee expressed concern that with the easing of lockdown restrictions some
businesses could raise prices to a level that would discourage visitors and could reduce
visits. It was therefore asked if anything could be done by the Council to discourage
increased pricing. Mr Welsh replied that the issue had been recognised and that any
increase would be driven by high demand and a lack of competition due to restrictions on
foreign holiday travel. However, it was expected that as lockdown eased these demand
pressures would reduce, allowing prices to “level-off”.

Members of the Committee noted that there had been an issue of increased littering as
lockdown ended and visitors returned to Blackpool. It was queried therefore if the Covid
Marshals, employed to ensure Covid-19 restrictions were enforced, could be utilised to
discourage littering in Blackpool. Councillor Gillian Campbell, Cabinet Member for Culture
and Tourism, replied that they welcomed the idea of using the Marshals in this way and
that they would investigate if this would be possible. She also added that work would be
undertaken to involve food stall owners to encourage their customers to use bins. Mr
Welsh added that public service messaging was being developed to support this work,
that an audio system attached to the CCTV network and partnership working with local
private sector attractions would also be used to encourage the use of bins.

7 ARTS AND CULTURE - IMPACT OF COVID-19

Mr Peter Legg, Head of Economic and Cultural Services and Ms Carolyn Primett, Head of
Arts, presented a report outlining the impact the Covid-19 lockdown on arts and culture
within Blackpool.

Mr Legg highlighted that many creative industries within Blackpool had struggled during
the lockdown period when they had been forced to close. As part of the work being
undertaken to assess the extent of the impact the Council had undertaken a survey of
members of the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ). Although the report had outlined some
initial feedback from this survey Mr Legg informed members that a more detailed analysis
was required the outcome of which could be presented to the Committee in the autumn.

Ms Primett added that the lockdown had impacted differently on the various cultural
venues across Blackpool. Many of these were reported as preparing to reopen as the
lockdown restrictions were lifted, and the Council would seek to support them through
this period. It was also highlighted that the Grundy Art Gallery had been able to open due
to the small number of staff who worked there. As part of this Ms Primett informed the
Committee that during May 2021 it was planned that an exhibition of works of art done
during lockdown would be shown. It was hoped that this would help promote the various
artists involved and highlight Blackpool as a cultural venue.

Page 3



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 14 APRIL 2021

Members asked if more could be undertaken to join-up the various cultural and artistic
venues in Blackpool, possibly through the creation of a cultural hub within the town. Ms
Primett replied that work had been undertaken to bring the cultural sector in Blackpool
together, through joint marketing and the sharing of resources. Increased networking to
highlight opportunities was also mentioned, and Ms Primett informed members that
consideration had also been given to the establishment of a ‘Cultural Partnership’ to
further joint working.

The Committee noted that £73K had been awarded to the Art B&B from round two of the
Government’s Cultural Recovery Fund (CRF-2). Members asked why the Art B&B had been
able to apply for this money when other hotels in Blackpool had not and would have
received far less in business support grants. Ms Primett responded that the Council had
no input into CRF-2, however she noted that the rules for receiving funding would mean
that any grant would be to support a cultural programme and not the core hotel business.

The work undertaken by various venues to maintain patronage and interest in cultural
events in Blackpool was also reported. Ms Primett informed the Committee that the
Grand theatre had streamed its Christmas Pantomime online, when it had been unable to
welcome an audience to the venue. This approach had also been undertaken by a variety
of smaller cultural groups to allow ongoing engagement.

The use of Blackpool’s green spaces was raised as a possible solution to the restrictions
on indoor performance, where numbers could be restricted. In response Ms Primett
explained that the Council had recognised the opportunity that this had presented. For
example it was noted that an Arts Council Grant had been received by the Lightpool
festival to design new lights which would be used as part of outdoor displays. Stanley Park
was also being considered as a venue for a number of smaller events.

Members also asked what had been undertaken to ensure that young people were
engaged with arts and culture in Blackpool. Ms Primett responded that a number of
cultural groups and venues had undertaken work, such as the Grundy which had worked
with the ‘A-Team’ a group for young people with autism to deliver creative projects and
dances classes had been organised in Stanley Park specifically aimed at young people.

Councillor Campbell added that lockdown had forced people to find new and innovative
ways of delivering cultural events and engage with people. She added that she expected
this would continue into the future.

The Committee thanked Mr Legg and Ms Primett for the update and agreed that a further
report outlining the impact of the Covid-19 lockdown and the recovery work being
undertaken be brought to a review panel meeting in September 2021 for further
consideration.

Page 4



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 14 APRIL 2021

8 TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION UPDATE

Mr Alan Cavill, Director of Regeneration and Communication and Mr Nick Gerrard,
Growth and Prosperity Programme Director, presented the Town Centre Regeneration
update. The update provided details on the work being undertaken in relation to
regeneration within Blackpool town centre. Mr Gerrard explained that good progress had
been made during the period of lockdown. An unexpected benefit to projects had been
the development of online meetings which had simplified bringing various parties
together to discuss work.

The Committee asked if the Council had enough capacity to manage the various and
complex projects that were being undertaken. Mr Gerrard replied that the capacity for
managing contracts and projects was kept under constant review, with weekly meeting
between himself and Mr Cavill, and that more resources had been made available where
necessary to support project management. He added that the delivery of regeneration
was a joint effort of teams across the Council who pooled their expertise and resources to
help ensure projects were delivered successfully.

The need to preserve and build new green spaces in the town centre as it was
regenerated was raised as an issue. In response Mr Gerrard explained that the benefits of
green spaces in the town centre had been recognised and that work was underway to
ensure green space was included in plans for the Talbot Gateway stage 3 development
and the Central Leisure Area. He added that the Quality Corridors programme would also
improve the roads into the town centre and the environment around them.

Members of the Committee also asked if more details could be provided regarding the
proposed Adelaide Street Transport Hub, referred to in the report. Mr Gerrard explained
that with the ongoing regeneration of the town centre it was expected that there would
be an increase in vehicular and pedestrian traffic. Mr lan Large, Performance Manager,
Traffic and Highways Management, added that the Hub would be developed to allow the
management of increased traffic to the area and ensure that the different forms of traffic
interacted in a way that did not disrupt the local area.

The use of the Quality Corridor fund to improve some of the areas in the town centre was
also raised. Members of the Committee noted that although money had been spent on
developments, there were cases where the surrounding streets remained in poor repair.
Mr Gerrard replied that the Council recognised that this was an issue in many areas and
that work needed to be undertaken to determine where funding could be sought. He
added that potential sources of funding for this work would be the Quality Corridor or the
Levelling—Up Fund. He added that any improvements undertaken would be linked to an
increase in the overall condition of their local area.

The Committee also asked if an update on a replacement for the former Debenhams
Department store could be provided. Mr Gerrard informed Members that no new
information could be reported at the time of the meeting but a solution for the space
created by the departure of Debenhams was being actively pursued.

Page 5



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 14 APRIL 2021

The quality of the shopping offer available in the town centre was discussed, with
Members noting that a number of stores had closed and as a result units had become
vacant. In reply Mr Gerrard explained that the solution to this issue was the development
of a diverse town centre offer that was not dependent on retail. This included the building
of a new IMAX theatre and attracting new employers to the town centre, who could then
help support existing businesses.

9 PARKS AND GREEN ENVIRONMENT ANNUAL REPORT

Ms Lisa Arnold, Head of Leisure, Parks and Catering Services, and Ms Annie Heslop, Green
Infrastructure Development Manager, presented the Parks and Green Environment
Annual Report, which detailed the work undertaken, future plans and the performance of
the Parks Development Service.

Ms Heslop informed the Committee that Covid-19 had demonstrated the importance of
access to green spaces for leisure and recreation. The service had completed a number of
projects during 2020/2021, including the re-opening of Anchorsholme Park which had
been closed for five years, the footballing facilities at Fisher Field had also been reopened
along with the Layton Recreation Ground.

The Park Ranger Service was also reported as having to change its model of delivery
during 2020/2021 due to the restriction on face-to-face contact during lockdown. In order
to encourage nature based learning and to help facilitate this with parents for their
children, over 10k of printed packs with activities for children to engage with nature had
been distribute to schools across Blackpool. The service also organised and ran online
activities to maintain and encourage engagement during the lockdown period.

Work had also been undertaken to support the delivery of the Green and Blue
Infrastructure Strategy, including the development of the Tree Strategy. As part of this
work over 4,000 trees had been planted in Blackpool during 2020. In addition to this Ms
Heslop informed Members that officers would be creating Park Development Plans for
each of the parks in Blackpool. These plans would review the existing individual offer and
characteristics of a park and seek to engage the local community in determining what
they wanted from their local green spaces.

The Committee queried why no budget information had been provided as part of the
Annual Report. Ms Arnold responded that this information had not been supplied as the
impact of the Covid-19 lockdown had meant the data was not comparable with previous
years and was therefore of limited value in determining the financial position of the
service.

Members also asked if details of where trees that had been planted by the Council could
be provided. Ms Heslop replied that a list could be provided following the meeting. She
added that initially the service had purchased smaller varieties of tree so that in the first
stage more could be planted, but that a greater variety would be planted as the
programme developed. It was also stated that the Council would look to plant more trees
in the town centre in the future.

Page 6



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 14 APRIL 2021

The type of trees being bought for planting in Blackpool was also discussed by the
Committee. It was noted that in previous years diseases such as Dutch ElIm and Ash
Dyeback had been an issue. Ms Heslop responded that the Council had sought to
purchase a wide variety of trees which would increase resilience against disease. She also
stated that the location of planting would also inform the purchase of trees, for example
those to be planted near to highways would be selected for their ability to absorb carbon.

The Committee agreed that a list of the locations of trees planted in Blackpool be
circulated following the meeting.

10 PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY UPDATE REPORT

Councillor Jim Hobson, Cabinet Member of Climate Change and Environment, and Mr lan
Large, Performance Manager presented an update report on Public Rights of Way (PROW)
in Blackpool. The report outlined the current challenges faced in maintaining PROWs and
ensuring access to them.

Councillor Hobson informed the Committee that the £40k highlighted in the report that
would be needed to undertake all outstanding maintenance work had now been allocated
to the highways service. This would allow all PROWs in Blackpool to be put into a good
state of repair. He also added that this should be considered good news for Blackpool, as
the mental and physical health benefits of being able to exercise outdoors had been
recognised.

The Committee welcomed the announcement that additional funding had been allocated
for the maintenance of PROWSs in Blackpool, but asked if details of where the money had
been allocated from could be supplied. Members also noted that it was planned that
further scrutiny of PROWSs in Blackpool would be undertaken as part of a dedicated
review panel. As part of this they asked that issues such as signage, how PROWSs were
publicised and the engagement of the community and young people be considered. It was
also asked if the possibility of a site visit be explored, once Covid-19 restrictions allowed.

The Chair also informed the Committee that he had received an email from Mr Ken
Cridland, who had been a public speaker on the issue of PROWSs at the Committee’s
meeting in February 2021. Mr Cridland had stated that it was his belief that the Council
was not carrying out its duties in respect of PROWSs and that in his view it had not taken
enforcement action against landowners who had obstructed or damaged paths in the
past.

Councillor Hobson responded that he welcomed additional scrutiny of PROWSs in

Blackpool but disputed that the Council had not carried out its duties and noted that the
announced £40k would allow for many of the issues previously identified to be corrected.

Page 7



MINUTES OF TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 14 APRIL 2021

The Committee agreed that;

1. The update report be noted;

2. That details of the source of the announced additional £40k in funding be
provided following the meeting; and

3. That a dedicated scrutiny review panel to further consider the issue of PROWSs in
Blackpool, be added to the Scrutiny Workplan.

11 SCRUTINY WORKPLAN

The Committee considered the Scrutiny Workplan report, an update on work undertaken
by the Flood Risk Management Scrutiny Review Panel and the outcome of the Housing
and Homelessness Scrutiny Review.

Members were informed that at its 22 March 2021 meeting the Executive had approved
the recommendations of the Housing and Homelessness Scrutiny Review. As a result of
which the Committee would receive a new annual report from the Housing Service, the
first of which would be in the autumn of 2021. This report would include details of
progress on the implementation of the agreed recommendations.

The Committee agreed to note the contents of the Scrutiny Workplan, including the
addition of items identified at the meeting, and the outcome of the Flood Risk
Management Scrutiny Review and the Housing and Homelessness Scrutiny Review.

12 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The date of the next meeting of the committee was confirmed as Wednesday, 16 June
2021 at 6.00pm, subject to confirmation at Annual Council.

Chairman

(The meeting ended at 8.00 pm)

Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact:
John Greenbank, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser
Tel: 01253 477229

E-mail: john.greenbank@blackpool.gov.uk

Page 8


mailto:john.greenbank@blackpool.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 4

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager

Date of Meeting: 16 June 2021

EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 The Committee to consider the Executive and Cabinet Member decisions within the
portfolios of the Leader of the Council, Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Members taken since the last meeting of the Committee.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 Members will have the opportunity to question the Leader of the Council or the
relevant Cabinet Member in relation to the decisions taken.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

31 To ensure that the opportunity is given for all Executive and Cabinet Member
decisions to be scrutinised and held to account.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or No
approved by the Council?

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved N/A
budget?

4.0 Other alternative options to be considered:

41 None.

5.0 Council Priority:

5.1 The relevant Council Priority is:
e “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool”.

6.0 Background Information

6.1 Attached at the Appendix 6(a) to this report is a summary of the decisions taken,
which have been circulated to Members previously.

Page 9



6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

12.0

12.1

11.0

111

This report is presented to ensure Members are provided with a timely update on the
decisions taken by the Executive and Cabinet Members. It provides a process where

the Committee can raise questions and a response be provided.

Members are encouraged to seek updates on decisions and will have the opportunity

to raise any issues.

Witnesses/representatives

The following Cabinet Members are responsible for the decisions taken in this report

and have been invited to attend the meeting:

e Councillor Ivan Taylor, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Partnerships

and Performance

e Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Job

Creation
Does the information submitted include any exempt information?
List of Appendices:

Appendix 4(a) Summary of Executive and Cabinet Member decisions
taken.

Financial considerations:

None.

Legal considerations:

None.

Risk management considerations:
None.

Equalities considerations:

None.

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

None.

Page 10

No



12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:
12.1 None.
13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4(a)

DECISION / OUTCOME

DESCRIPTION NUMBER DATE CABINET
MEMBER
LOCAL TRANSPORT PROGRAMME 2021/2022 To consider the 2021/2022 Local Transport Plan EX21/2021 12 April Councillor Jim
Programme, which includes Integrated Transport 2021 Hobson,
The Executive agreed: Block and Highways Maintenance Block elements Cabinet
(both capital spend) and the complementary Potholes Member for
1. To approve the draft Local Transport Plan highways maintenance allocation (revenue spend), all Climate
Programme 2021/2022 as attached at Appendix | grant allocations from the Department for Transport Change and

3a, to the Executive report, with effect until 31

December 2022.
2. To grant authority to the Director of
Communications and Regeneration following
consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Climate Change and Environment, subject to a
published officer decision, to vary the
programme as required to deliver overall
objectives and ensure spend of the grant
allocations.?

¢T obed

as notified mid-February 2021.

Environment




APPENDIX 4(a)

DELIVERING SOCIAL VALUE IN PUBLIC SERVICE
PROCUREMENT —-REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S SOCIAL
VALUE POLICY AND SUPPLIERS CHARTER

The Executive agreed:

1. To approve the updated Social Value Policy as
attached at Appendix 4a, to the Executive
report, with effect until 31 December 2026.

2. To approve the updated Suppliers Charter as
attached at Appendix 4b, to the Executive
report, with effect until 31 December 2026.

In 2014, the Executive approved the Social Value
Policy, which had been developed in conjunction with
the Association of Greater Manchester Authorities.
The Policy is supported by a set of arrangements and
supporting documents for embedding Social Value in
commissioning and procurement by the Council in
accordance with the Public Service (Social Value) Act
2012.

In order to improve Social Value delivery the Policy
has been updated along with the associated Suppliers
Charter. All suppliers are asked to sign the Charter
prior to contract award. These arrangements include
provisions for evidencing social value considerations
in all decisions relating to the commissioning and
procurement of services.

EX22/2021

12 April
2021

Councillor
Ivan Taylor,
Deputy Leader
of the Council
and Cabinet
Member for
Partnerships
and Project’

1 abed




APPENDIX 4(a)

LEVELING UP AND COMMUNITY RENEWAL FUND

The Executive agreed:

To agree the proposed approach to managing these
funds including:

GT obed

In respect of the Levelling Up Fund

a) To agree for the Council to submit one
Levelling Up Fund bid by 18 June 2021 (with the
final content of the bid to be delegated to the
Chief Executive after consultation with the
Leader of the Council and relevant Cabinet
Members).

b) To agree that subject to confirmation of the
Council’s eligibility, for a second bid to be
submitted at a later date to be confirmed (with
the final content of the bid to be delegated to
the Chief Executive after consultation with the
Leader of the Council and

relevant Cabinet Members).

c) To note the possibility of a cross boundary
transport bid to be explored with Fylde Borough
Council, Wyre Borough Council and Lancashire
County Council.

d) To consult the Town Deal Board and the local
MPs on the proposed bids.

e) To agree that the Executive will receive a
report on the bid submitted.

To summarise the main provisions of the Levelling Up
Fund and Community Renewal Funds announced in
the March 2021 Budget and the Council’s approach to
managing applications for these funds.

EX23/2021

12 April
2021

Councillor
Mark Smith,
Cabinet
Member for
Business,
Enterprise and
Job Creation




APPENDIX 4(a)

2. Inrespect of the Community Renewal Fund

f) To note the arrangements that have been put
in place to invite submissions to enable them to
be appraised and submitted by the 18 June 2021
deadline.

g) To agree for approval of the final bid to be
submitted to be delegated to the Chief
Executive after consultation with the Leader of
the Council and relevant Cabinet Members.

h) To agree that the Executive will receive a
report on the bid submitted.

BLACKPOOL PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY AND ACTION
PL@ UPDATE
Q

ThfeiCabinet Member agreed:

o
To approve the updated Blackpool Playing Pitch
Strategy (PPS) and associated Action Plan at Appendix Ai
to the report.

To consider the updated Blackpool Playing Pitch
Strategy and associated Action Plan (refer Appendix Ai
and Aii of the report) which provides a strategic
framework for the maintenance and improvement of
outdoor sports pitches and ancillary facilities in
Blackpool between 2019 and 2027.

PH40/2021

30 April
2021

Councillor
Maria
Kirkland,
Cabinet
Member for
Community
Cohesion and
Leisure'




APPENDIX 4(a)

TALBOT GATEWAY PHASE 3 — OFFICE ACCOMODATION
The Executive agreed:

1. To delegate authority to the Chief Executive,

/T obed

after consultation with the Leader of the Council
and relevant Cabinet Members, to:

a) agree the terms of a third Supplemental Deed
Agreement with Muse Developments Limited
for delivery of the Office Accommodation
development on King Street as part of the Talbot
Gateway Project (Central Business District)
Phase 3.

b) agree the Forward Funding Agreement with
Muse Developments Limited for the
development of the office accommodation and
associated infrastructure.

c) agree and approve the terms of the
Agreement for Lease, Lease and the licence for
works with the third party interested in leasing
the proposed office (with a gross indoor area of
circa 20,300m2 and a net indoor are of
15,494m2) on King Street.

d) authorise expenditure and contracts to
facilitate a, b and c above.

To approve the overall scheme budget of
£99,750,000 which will be funded in accordance
with the Financial considerations section of the
Executive report.C

To outline the steps to facilitate a specific demand for
grade ‘A’ office accommodation in the Town Centre
and to provide the additional financial and physical
resources required to construct and building of
15,494m2 net indoor area to accommodate this
demand once the client has signed the Agreement for
Lease.

The report updates EX23/2019

EX25/2021

12 May
2021

Councillor
Mark Smith,
Cabinet
Member for
Business,
Enterprise and
Job Creation

" Councillor Hobson became Cabinet Member for Children’s Social Care and Schools on 17 May 2021
i Councillor Taylor’s became Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Partnerships and Performance on 17 May 2021




gT obed

APPENDIX 4(a)

i Note that Councillor Kirkland stood down from the Executive on 17 May 2021.



Agenda Iltem 5

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager

Date of Meeting: 16 June 2021

FORWARD PLAN

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 The Committee to consider the content of the Council’s Forward Plan June 2021 to
October 2021, relating to the portfolios of the Leader of the Council, Deputy Leader
of the Council and Cabinet Members.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 Members will have the opportunity to question the Leader of the Council and / or the
relevant Cabinet Member in relation to items contained within the Forward Plan
within the portfolios of the Leader of the Council and Deputy Leader of the Council.

2.2 Members will have the opportunity to consider whether any of the items should be
subjected to pre-decision scrutiny. In so doing, account should be taken of any
requests or observations made by the relevant Cabinet Member.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):
31 To enable the opportunity for pre-decision scrutiny of the Forward Plan items.
3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or No

approved by the Council?

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved N/A
budget?

33 Other alternative options to be considered:
None.

4.0 Council Priority:

41 The relevant Council Priority is “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity
across Blackpool”

Page 19



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

54.1

6.0

7.0

7.1

Background Information

The Forward Plan is prepared by the Leader of the Council to cover a period of four
months and has effect from the first working day of any month. It is updated on a
monthly basis and subsequent plans cover a period beginning with the first working
day of the second month covered in the preceding plan.

The Forward Plan contains matters which the Leader has reason to believe will be
subject of a key decision to be taken either by the Executive, a Committee of the
Executive, individual Cabinet Members, or Officers.

Attached at Appendix 5(a) is a list of items contained in the current Forward Plan.
Further details appertaining to each item is contained in the Forward Plan, which has
been forwarded to all members separately.

Witnesses/representatives

The following Cabinet Members are responsible for the Forward Plan items in this
report and have been invited to attend the meeting:

e Councillor Lynn Williams, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Culture and Tourism

e Councillor Kath Benson, Cabinet Member for Community Engagement,
Aspiration and Community Assets

e Councillor Neal Brookes, Cabinet Member for Enforcement, Public Safety,
Highways and Transport

e Councillor Gillian Campbell, Cabinet Member for Inclusion Youth and
Transience

e Councillor Jane Hugo, Cabinet Member for Climate Change

e Councillor Mark Smith, Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Job
Creation

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No
List of Appendices:

Appendix 5(a) - Summary of items contained within Forward Plan
June 2021 to October 2021.

Financial considerations:

None.

Page 20



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

12.0

12.1

13.0

14.1

Legal considerations:

None.

Risk management considerations:

None

Equalities considerations:

None

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:
None

Internal/external consultation undertaken:
None

Background papers:

None.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN - SUMMARY OF KEY DECISIONS

(JUNE 2021 TO SEPTEMBER 2021)

* Denotes New Item

Appendix 5(a)

Anticipated
Date
of Decision

Matter for Decision

Decision
Reference

Decision
Taker

Relevant
Cabinet
Member

June 2021

Town Centre Investment
including necessary
acquisitions to facilitate
Talbot Gateway Phase Three
(this item to be considered
in private by virtue of
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12a
of the Local Government Act
1972 Information relating
to the financial or business
affairs of any particular
person (including the
authority holding that
information)

1/2021

Executive

Cllr Smith

June 2021

Applications for Business
Loans above £500,000. (this
item to be considered in
private by virtue of
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12a
of the Local Government Act
1972 Information relating
to the financial or business
affairs of any particular
person (including the
authority holding that
information)

2/2021

Executive

Cllr
Williams

Page 23




Appendix 5(a)

Anticipated Decision Decision Relevant
Date Matter for Decision Cabinet
of Decision Reference Taker Member
June 2021 | Tq agree strategic 3/2021 Executive Cllr Smith
acquisitions and
investments in or adjoining
the Enterprise Zone (this
item to be considered in
private by virtue of
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12a
of the Local Government Act
1972 Information relating
to the financial or business
affairs of any particular
person (including the
authority holding that
information)
September | | ancashire and Blackpool 11/2018 | Executive Clir
2021 Flood Risk Management Hobson
Strategy
June 2021 | To agree the Community 21/2019 Council on Clir
Safety Plan and the priorities recommendatio | Brookes
within the plan to be n of Executive
addressed by the Community
Safety Partnership as
identified by the Strategic
Assessment (Crime and
Disorder Audit)
June 2021 | The Blackpool Tree Strategy 11/2020 Executive Clir
Kirkland
June 2021 New Council housing 7/2021 Executive Clir
development at Grange Brookes
Park, seeking approval to
the mix, design, and
financial appraisal of the
new homes.
June 2021 To agree to the 12/2021 Executive Clir
replacement of the Town Brookes

Centre CCTV System and
the relocation of the
Control Centre from Bonny
Street to the Municipal
Buildings.

Page 24




Appendix 5(a)

Anticipated Decision Decision Relevant
Date Matter for Decision Reference Taker Cabinet
of Decision Member
*July 2021 To agree to the 13/2021 Executive Clir
replacement of street Hobson
lighting with energy saving
LED’s

Page 25




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY & COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Steve Thompson, Director of Resources

Date of Decision/Meeting: 16 June 2021

USE OF EXTERNAL CONSULTANTS ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021
1.0 Purpose of the report:

11 To consider the annual report, detailing external consultancy spend across all Council
services during the 2020/21 financial year.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 To note the annual spend paid to external consultants during 2020/21 and identify
any potential areas for additional scrutiny.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

31 To provide a level of understanding of third party spend paid to external consultants
during 2020/21 to the Committee.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or No
approved by the Council?

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved Yes
budget?

4.0 Other alternative options to be considered:

41 The report is for information only.

5.0 Council Priority:

5.1 The relevant Council priority is

J “Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience”
6.0 Background Information
6.1 At their meeting on 15 December 2016 the Tourism, Economy and Resources

Page 27



6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.2

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

Scrutiny Committee confirmed their approval to a revised approach for the reporting
of consultancy spend. This annual report sets out details of payments made to
external consultants across the whole Council in 2020/21 relating to both business
and technical services.

The report indicates that a total of £3,944,906.40 was spent across the Council with
external consultants during 2020/21. A detailed analysis is provided at Appendix A.

Compared with the 2019/20 figure of £3,537,320.01 the above figure shows a
increase in spend with external consultants.

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No
List of Appendices:

Appendix 6(a) — External Consultants Spend Analysis 2020/21 (Over
25k)

Legal considerations:

All Council expenditure over £250 is already published as part of Transparency Code
requirements and therefore the provision of the data in this format should not
breach any data protection requirements.

Financial considerations:

The consultancy spend was contained within the 2020/21 approved budget and in
some cases subject to external grant funding.

Risk management considerations:

Due to limited resources and capacity, the Council would be unable to fulfil all of its
statutory requirements and deliver its capital programme without the advice and
support from external consultants.

For some projects, the use of consultants is critical, taking the Museum and the
Tramway Extension as examples. In both cases, the funding we have received from
external agencies requires us to appoint certain experts to ensure the security of the
funding. These may be specialists that are recommended by the funders as having
specific skills such as a Heritage Architect or a Tramway Engineer. Because these
services are project specific, demand is not constant; employing these experts on a
full-time basis would not be cost effective.

Equalities considerations:

Page 28



10.1 None

11.0 Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:
111 None.

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1  This report has been produced jointly by Internal Audit and the Corporate
Procurement and Projects Team.

13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6(a)

1< obe

|Title/Subject Consultant Directorate Description Spend in 20/21 (ex VAT) [Business (3413) or Technical (6506) On Contracts Register?
In
|Blackpool Museum Amion Consulting Limited Communication & Fees relating to Evaluation Services Business Yes
Regeneration £1,000.00
| Buttress Architects Ltd Communication & Fees relating to Design, RIBA Stage 4, Architects fees Part 1 & additional fees Technical No
Blackpool Museum Regeneration £83,067.00
Museum Casson Mann Ltd Communication & Additional Fess for Second Instalment and June payment Technical No
Regeneration £73,915.00
|Blackpool Museum Impact Fundraising Communication & Services of Fundraising Consultant Business No
Regeneration £8,300.00
Museum M Worldwide Ltd Communication & Fees relating to the re-design of the entrance screen Technical No
Regeneration £6,000.00
|Blackpool Museum Thanh Sinden Consulting Communication & Fees relating to facilitation of discussions Business No
Regeneration £600.00
|Blackpool Museum Twentieth Century Posters Communication & Fees relating to Valuation & Reporting services Business No
Regeneration £250.00
|Blackpool Museum James Dann Communication & Fees for Commission of images of Blackpool Business No
Regeneration £580.00
|Blackpool Museum Nick Steel Art Communication & Fees for remainder of Digital output for Get Dancing Programme Business No
Regeneration £1,900.00
Total £175,612.00
Conference Centre
Conference Centre Communication & Professional Fees in connection with Winter Gardens Technical No
Squire Patton Boggs (Uk) LIp Regeneration £141,658.14
Conference Centre Communication & Fees in connection with Consultancy Services Technical No
Dga (Uk) Ltd Regeneration £251,498.75
Conference Centre Communication & Adjudicator fees and Professional Services Fees for various periods Technical No
Hka Global Ltd Regeneration £14,548.95
Total £407,705.84
Tramway Extension
Communication & Fees to provide Professional Services and advice Technical No
Tramway Emergency Works Dr Michael Clarke Regeneration £64,595.54
Tramway Emergency Works / Tramway Communication & Professional fees relating to the provision of consultancy services for the Technical Yes
Extension Equis Associates Limited Regeneration extension of the tramway £188,500.00
Communication & Provision of continued professional services in relation to the tramway extension Technical Yes
Tramway Extension Kkc Engineering Consultants Limited Regeneration £48,410.00
Tramway Emergency Works / Tramway Communication & Provision to supply and continue Professional Services Technical No
Extension Morson Human Resources Ltd Regeneration £104,720.00
Communication & Professional fees for an Expert Witness and Consultancy services Technical Yes
Tramway Emergency Works Mott Macdonald Ltd Regeneration £14,411.31
Communication & Technical No
Tramway Emergency Works Open Text Regeneration Call Off Order for ongoing administrative costs £9,789.97
Communication & Technical No
Tramway Extension Pell Frischmann Regeneration To provide Consultancy Services by PM £16,603.40
Communication & Various costs for the Professional Services and fees in relation to the tramway Technical No
Tramway Emergency Works Squire Patton Boggs (Uk) LIp Regeneration extension. £742,610.95
Communication & Continued Provision of Consultancy Services Technical No
Tramway Emergency Works William J Marshall & Partners Lip Regeneration £13,595.79
Communication & To consultancy fees for Expert advice on Tramway extension works Technical No
Tramway Emergency Works Dga (Uk) Ltd Regeneration £46,669.37
Communication & Professional fees in relation to investigative and testing work Technical No
Tramway Emergency Works Socotec Uk Ltd Regeneration £5,550.00

Total

£1,255,456.33




e

«Q
@D

Appendix 6(a)

|Enterprise Zone

Enterprise Zone Communication & Various Professional fees in relation to Highways & BAE Technical Yes
Bwb Consulting Limited Regeneration £7,750.00
Enterprise Zone Communication & Various consultancy fees in relation to Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone Projects Technical Yes
Cassidy + Ashton Regeneration £279,145.82
Enterprise Zone Communication & Various professional services fees for Genecon's application assistance in relation Technical No
Genecon Limited Regeneration to Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone £13,087.50
Enterprise Zone Communication & Professional fees for the revision of concept designs Technical No
Pell Frischmann Regeneration £4,225.28
Enterprise Zone Communication & Professional fees for the advice on the Airport Contract Specification Technical No
York Aviation Llp Regeneration £20,960.80
Enterprise Zone Communication & Consultancy fees in relation to Geotechnical Engineers Technical No
Sub Surface North West Limited Regeneration £13,668.75
Enterprise Zone Communication & Various professional fees for Airport Tender advice on Enterprise Zone projects Technical Yes
Dwf Law LIp Regeneration £10,506.00
Enterprise Zone Communication & Professional fees for JVH Technical No
Cyrrus Ltd Regeneration £3,250.00
Enterprise Zone Communication & Professional fees for the labour and Materials for the Enterprise Zone Football Technical Yes
Stri Ltd Regeneration pitches £627,378.04
Enterprise Zone Communication & Professional fees for the Golden Mile Project Technical Yes
Dwf LIp Client Account Regeneration £204.00
Enterprise Zone Communication & Professional fees in relation to Blackpool Airport Technical No
Northpoint Aviation Services Ltd Regeneration £700.00
Enterprise Zone Communication & Consultancy fees Technical No
Castle Mile Group Ltd Regeneration £100.00
Enterprise Zone Communication & Professional fees in relation to the Airport Technical No
Aviasolutions Ltd Regeneration £12,500.00
Total £993,476.19
Other commissions above £25k
Community & Professional fees for Blackpool Sands Hotel & Hampton by Hilton Valuations
Business Loan Overheads Leisure Property Services Limited Environment £26,975.00|Business No
Communication & Professional fees in relation to works at Abingdon Street Market
Partnership & Business Dev Quarterbridge Project Management Ltd |Regeneration £37,875.00|Business Yes
Partnership & Business Dev Amion Consulting Limited Communication & Various professional fees in relation to consultation and continued work Business Yes
Regeneration £87,070.00
Communication &
Ltp Scheme 18/19 Joseph Boniface Architects Ltd Regeneration Professional fees in relation to Blackpool Coach Layover Facility £35,250.00| Technical Yes
Communication &
Growth Gardiner & Theobald Llp Regeneration Professional Services in relation to the Redevelopment of Bonny Street £41,470.00 |Business No
Disabled Facilities Grant Blackpool Teaching Hospital Adults Secondment fees for DL £40,123.60|Technical No
Community &
Sand Dunes Env Wrk Ph105 The Lancashire Wildlife Trust Environment Fees in relation to Sand Dune Management works 2020 / 2021 inc Maternity Fees £87,855.00 | Technical No
Communication &
Devel Control Idox Software Ltd Regeneration Various professional fees relating to planning and land charges £34,821.22 |Business Yes
Strategy Team Business In The Community Chief Executive Blackpook Pride of Place contribution £50,000.00 |Business No
Communication &
Growth Hawkins/Brown Design Limited Regeneration Professional fees in relation to the Mutliversity Campus Blackpool £50,218.31|Business Yes
Communication & Investment consulting fees
G&P Prudential Schemes CBRE Ltd Regeneration £81,931.50|Technical Yes
Communication &
Growth CBRE Ltd Regeneration Professional Fees, GR £61,500.00|Business Yes
Communication & Various professional fees in relation to GPO, Future High Street Fund & feasibility
Partnership & Business Dev CBRE Ltd Regeneration reports £37,645.00|Business Yes

Total

£672,734.63




Appendix 6(a)

Other commissions below £25k

Various commissions BELOW £25,000

Various

Various

See document titled 'Consultants under 25k’ for more information

Various

Various

cc abed

Total

£439,921.41

Grand Totall

£3,944,906.40




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Clare Nolan- Barnes, Head of Coastal and Environmental
Partnership Investments

Date of Meeting 16 June 2021

FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To provide the Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny Committee an update
on the Flood Risk Management actions in respect of the following three actions:-

1.2 e The implementation of the Lancashire Flood Risk Strategy (Local Strategy)
e The progress of bids submitted in relation to flood risk
e The implementation of Local Flood Forums

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 To scrutinise the delivery of the Council’s Statutory Duties in relation to the
implementation of the Lancashire Flood Risk management Strategy (Local Strategy),
the progress of bids and works carried out by successful funding and the
implementation of local flood forums.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):
31 To ensure constructive and robust scrutiny of the report and provide confirmation
that the Council is delivering its statutory duties and associated work in respect of

flood risk management.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or No
approved by the Council?

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved Yes
budget?

33 Other alternative options to be considered:
None

4.0 Council Priority:

Page 35



41

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

The relevant Council Priority is:
. “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool”
Background Information

The Council has statutory duties as set out in the Flood Risk Regulations 2009, the
Flood and Water Management Act 2010 and the Flood Risk Management Overview
and Scrutiny (England) Regulations 2011.

Following the completion of a Flood Risk Management Scrutiny Review in 2013, the
Tourism, Economy and Resources Scrutiny Committee has received a report on an
annual basis, relating to progress on flood risk management. The latest annual
report was provided in January 2021 and the purpose of this report is to provide an
update on the items listed in 1.1 above for further scrutiny

The Implementation of the Lancashire Flood Risk Strategy (Local strategy)

At the January 2021 Tourism, Economy and Communities ‘ Flood Risk Scrutiny
Review Panel meeting it was reported that Blackpool Council are the lead Local
Flood Authority responsible for reviewing, revising, consulting and publishing the
Lancashire Flood Risk Strategy (Local strategy) on behalf of Blackpool Council,
Blackburn with Darwen Council and Lancashire County Council.

A copy of the draft Local strategy that has now been subject to public consultation
is in Appendix 7(a) of this report.

The consultation on the Draft revised Local Strategy ended on the 19 March 2021,
there were 142 responses received from the consultation.

All of the responses have been summarised and there are five top messages arising
from the consultation, the five top messages are listed in 6.3.1. — 6.3.6.

Planning, development and Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDS) concerns,
in particular:

e educational need

e challenge perception

e Local Planning Authorities being seen to be doing more to ensure
Sustainable Drainage implementation and flood risk management issues are
addressed in the planning process and this needs to be more visible

Lack of clarity that the Strategy doesn’t include 'coast' and why this is the case

Page 36



6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

The need for greater clarity of roles and responsibilities of Risk Management
Authorities and other organisations e.g. Canal and Rivers Trust etc. and greater
ownership of the flood risk by those responsible

Agriculture and flood risk needs to feature more prominently — linking with
Environmental land Management Schemes (ELMS), Natural Flood Management,
water/climate resilient farming etc.

Clarity around timeline of Strategy — why to 2027 and not to 2100 like National
FCERM Strategy

The draft Local Strategy is now being edited taking into consideration the
comments and concerns raised in the consultation exercise.

The Local strategy will also contain a business plan to enable the actions to be
monitored by the Lancashire Strategic Partners and will be reported at the annual
Scrutiny Committee Meeting.

The amended document will be complete by the 18 June 2021.

Further external consultation will not be required; however, the draft will be
discussed by the Lancashire Strategic Partnership on the 23 June 2021.

It is proposed to Publish the Local strategy in Autumn 2021
The Progress of Bids Submitted For Flood Risk

Members will recall that following the flood event in November 2017 and the
subsequent section 19 report published in 2018, the council successfully achieved
funding in 2019 of £110,000 (£55,000 from the Environment Agency and £55,000
from United Utilities). The funding provision is to carry out a study including further
investigations in the Anchorsholme and Bispham Areas to provide a better
understanding of the hydraulic modelling and watercourse or main drainage issues
that attributed to the flood event in 2017.

It is anticipated that the study will identify areas that require adaptation to prevent
future flood risk to properties.

To date, work was carried out in 2019 to identify and, where possible, measure the
flows of the watercourses and drainage, mapping watercourses and main drains
and agree the scope of the work to appoint and enable consultants to complete

modelling.

The work completed in 2019 enabled tenders to be sought and the appointment of

Page 37



7.5

8.0

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

12.0

12.1

13.0

13.1

14.0

14.1

consultants to carry out the study. Due to restrictions in 2020 the planned work
was delayed however work on this study has commenced and the final report is
expected in November 2021.

Blackpool Council have also been allocated a further £100,000 by the Environment
Agency for further studies to manage flood risk in 2022/2023

Implementation of Flood Forums
Due to the pandemic in 2020 it was not possible to continue with the creation of
flood forums, however as Lockdown is now easing, the Council will commence
engagement with those interested in the formation of forums. The Council will also
engage with the Flood Forum set up by the regional flood and Coastal Committee to
assist in the sharing of information, which will be accessible and transparent.
Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

List of Appendices:

Appendix 7(a) —Draft Lancashire Flood Risk Management Strategy (Local strategy)

Financial considerations:

The Environment Agency and United Utilities have provided funding for studies, as
detailed at 7.0 of the report.

Legal considerations:
None.
Risk management considerations:

Failure to implement the statutory duties could lead to unquantified and
unmanaged flood risk to Blackpool.

Equalities considerations:

Flooding has the potential to impact on vulnerable residents to a greater extent and
will need to be managed accordingly.

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

Details of sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations are
contained with Appendix 7(a) to the report.

Page 38



15.0 Internal/external consultation undertaken:

15.1 Blackpool Council is part of the Lancashire Flood Risk Partnership and chairs the
Fylde Peninsula Water Management Partnership which review flood risk in the wider
area.

16.0  Background papers:

16.1 None.

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Consultation Draft

Local Flood Risk Management
Strategy for Lancashire

2021 - 2027

Blackburn with
%, Darwen Council

Blackpool Council

Lancashire
County ‘6{:@?.
Council g@g



Executive Summary

In 2010 the Government introduced the Flood and Water Management Act to give new
powers and responsibilities to local authorities to better manage the risk of local flooding in
their areas. Under this, County and Unitary Councils became ‘Lead Local Flood Authorities’
(LLFA). One of the new duties of a LLFA is to produce a Local Flood Risk Management
Strategy (LFRMS).

This Strategy sets out how we intend to work with partners and our businesses and
communities to manage the risk of flooding in the Lancashire up to 2027. It is of interest
to all who live and work in Lancashire, as managing the risk of flooding requires action

by everyone, as well as to organisations that have specific responsibilities for managing
flood risk in the area such as the Environment Agency, Local Authorities and the Water and
Sewerage Company.

Since the devastating flooding witnessed across Lancashire in December 2015 and other
events since, it has been a priority to improve resilience to flooding as part of business
planning. Considerable progress has already been made working with partners to secure
funding for several large flood alleviation and coastal defence schemes, reducing risk to
thousands of properties.

This Strategy sets the course for continuing this momentum, identifying where resources
and efforts are to be concentrated so we can confidently say as we are continuing to
improve our understanding of risk whilst delivering schemes and supporting our businesses
and communities to better protect and improve flood resilience for the people of Lancashire.

The diagram below shows our vision and six priority themes for delivering effective local
flood risk management, whilst our Business Plan identifies 41 key objectives for delivery to
allow us to achieve our vision by 2027.

1. Delivering
Effective Flood Risk
Management Locally

OUR VISION 2. Understanding

6. Contributing

towards a Climate our Local Risks and

Resilient Lancashire By 2027’ Lancashire Challenges
will be a flood
resilient place
responsive to risks,
challenges and
opportunities

supporting a
5. Maximising sustainable future

Investment 3. supporting

Opportunities to for the pe°p|e of Sustainable Flood

better protect our Resilienet

Businesses and Lancashire. Development

Communities

4. Improving
Engagement with
our Flood Family




Contents

EXECULIVE SUMMAAIY ...ieeiiieniieeirenerieerenereneerasesenserenserensesssssressssassesnssssnsssenssssnsesensesensenanne 1

1 4 T [Tt ' o RN 4

1.1. What is a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 2 .....c..eeeeciiieiiiieeeeeiiee ettt et e e eeaae e e 4

1.2. A Joint Strategy for LANCAShIIe .......ococeiiieiiie ettt e et e e e et e e et e e ennae e e snnnnraeeean 4

1.3 National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) Strategy .......ccccceeeeeeeecuvereeeineeeeciveenn. 6

7 o 4| = 8

2.1, LegiSIative FramMEWOIK ......eiiiiiiieeeiie e et ettt e et e et e e ettt e e e s ata e e e s aaaeeenstee e e nsaeeeensaeeesns snsseeeenssaeennnseeas 8

2.2 National Assessments and Plans ......coc.eioiiiiiiiiieeee e 10

2.3 North West Regional Assessments and PIaNS .......cc.eiiiciiiieiiiie e eae e e e e aae e e 12

2.4 District Level AssesSments and Plans .......c.eoiieiiiiiiieieiiecie ettt 14

2.5. Types of FIooding and FIOOM RiSK ........cccuiiiiiiiieciiiiee ettt ettt e e e st e e e etae e e saaeeeeeabeeeeennnans 15

2.6 Responsibilities of Flood Risk Management AUthOrities ........ccecvveiieciiee e 19

2.7 Responsibilities of Individuals and COMMUNITIES .....c.eeeiiiiiiiiiiee it 20

2.8 FCERM GOVErnance in LANCASHIIe ........cocueiierieniieiieieeeeese ettt st sae e e 21

2.9 WOrking With OUIr WiIder PArtners ......cccccuieeiiiieeeeiiee e tee e setee e e st e e e eae e e s aaeeeessteeeesssaeeesnnaeeeennseeesnnsnnns 24

2.10 FUNAING TOF FCERIV ..ottt ettt e e ettt e e et e e e e ta e e e eataeeeeaaeeeeeatseeeessasseeeeasaeeaanteeeeannes 25

3. Local Flood Risks & Challenges .......cccciiieuiiiiimeiiiiinniiiiniiiiinniiiieeieiinnieiienessensessensnns 27

3.1 LOCAI FIOO RISKS ..ottt et e e s 27

3.2 LOCAI CRAIIBNEES ..eveiieiiieeietee ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e aaabaeaeaaeeaeeeeesaataraaaaeeeaasranens 29

3.3 DISEICE FACT FIl@S ittt sttt et ettt ettt sbe e b er e 32

4. OPPOITUNITIES ..ecuireenirenereeirenerenerenereaeresseressernsssrnsssensessasessnsssensesensessnserensesensesassesnns 61

New FCERM Investment Programme 2021 -2027 ...cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeseeeesesesessseeeees 61

5. Our Vision for Lancashire ..........cceeeeeeeemmeniiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesesssssssssss. 71
By 2027, Lancashire will be a flood resilient place responsive to risks, challenges and opportunities

supporting a sustainable future for the people of Lancashire.........ccceccvvieeiieriiiiieeeciee e 71

Theme 1. Delivering Effective Flood Risk Management Locally........ccocooiuiieeeiiiiiieiiiee e 71

Theme 2. Understanding our Local Risks and ChallE@Nges ...........eeevuieieiiiiieeeeiiiie e 71

Theme 3. Supporting Sustainable Flood Resilient DeVelopment.........ceoviieeeeiiire e 71

Theme 4. Improving Engagement with our FIood Family.........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiieciie e 72

Theme 5: Maximising Investment Opportunities to better protect our Businesses and Communities ...... 72

Theme 6: Contributing towards a Climate Resilient Lancashire .........ccovueeeeiiiiiiiniiie e 72

6. OUr BUSINESS Plan .....ciiiiieeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinieiiinininsesiisnisnssssssssssnessssssssssssssssssssssssssnsnes 74



Part 1: Our Strategy

Page3 44



1. Introduction

1.1. What is a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy?

The Flood and Water Management Act (FWMA) 2010 established Unitary and County
Councils as Lead Local Flood Authorities (LLFAs) responsible for leading the management of
local flood risks in their area. In Lancashire, the Lead Local Flood Authorities are Blackburn-
with-Darwen Council, Blackpool Council and Lancashire County Council

As Lead Local Flood Authorities we have a duty under Section 9 of the Flood and Water
Management Act to produce a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (hereafter referred to
as 'the strategy').

The strategy is a document sets out actions to manage local flood risks, who will deliver
them and how they will be funded and coordinated. It also explains the role of our partners
(such as district and borough councils, water companies, parish and town councils) and how
we will work together to manage local flood risks.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

What is 'local flood risk'?

Local flood risk refers to the risk of flooding from surface water, groundwater, and ordinary
watercourses.

More detail on local flood risk can be found in Section 2.5: Types of Flooding and Flood Risk

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

The strategy aims to engage communities and partnerships. Helping people to prepare for
flooding is a key part of delivering the strategy as this helps communities to understand and
manage flood risk.

The strategy makes us more informed and more able to help protect the communities in
Lancashire from the threat of local flooding.

1.2. A Joint Strategy for Lancashire

Blackpool Council, Blackburn with Darwen Council and Lancashire County Council, as
Lancashire's Lead Local Flood Authorities, have worked together to produce this joint
strategy for managing local flood risk because we recognise that water doesn’t respect
administrative boundaries and there are benefits of working in partnership to deliver a
shared vision.

As we are working together closely on this joint strategy, ‘Lancashire’ will be used to

describe the area covered by Lancashire County Council, Blackburn with Darwen and
Blackpool Council.

Page 45



The reasons that we have developed the Local Strategy together include:-

¢ Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool border Lancashire and we share many of the same
catchments. Therefore, decisions that are made in Blackburn with Darwin and Blackpool
can affect flood risk in Lancashire and vice versa. This is in agreement with the guiding
principles of the National FCERM Strategy to have a catchment-based approach (CaBA).

¢ Planning decisions are often made in conjunction with each other, particularly on major
developments that sit on the border of two or more councils. This helps ensure that
partnership working is a fundamental aspect of our strategic decision making.

e We sit on many of the same flood risk management and coastal partnerships that exist
in the North West. We can therefore present a consistent strategy and voice to others
in the region, and the strategy will provide a framework to further strengthen our
Lancashire Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) Partnership governance
and regional profile.

RIBELE YALLEY

PENDLE

HYND- BURNLEY |
BURN

BLACK- i
BURN ROSS5ENDALE |~ o

CHORLEY

WEST
LANCASHIRE

v 1 cesai bt
Figure 1: Area covered by the Lancashire Flood Risk Management
Strategy

Page5 46



1.3 National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) Strategy

The Flood and Water Management Act gives the Environment Agency a national strategic
overview role for flood risk management and places on them a requirement to develop the
National Strategy for Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management in England. This strategy
provides a framework for the work of all Lead Local Flood Authorities.

The National Strategy sets out the Government's national approach to flood risk and
coastal erosion through its long-term vision and ambitions for managing this risk, and the
measures to deliver it. It sets the context for and informs on the production of local flood
risk management strategies by Lead Local Flood Authorities. Local strategies provide the
framework for the delivery of local improvements needed to help communities to manage
local flood risk. They also aim to encourage more effective flood risk management by
enabling people, communities, business and the public sector to work together.

The vision and ambitions of the National Strategy are set out below. This strategy recognises
the need to integrate flood and water management within a wide range of direct and
indirect agendas to enable our businesses, communities and infrastructure to become
better adapted to flood risk whilst at the same time helping to tackle climate change and
biodiversity challenges.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy

Vision: A nation ready for, and resilient to, flooding and coastal change — today, tomorrow
and to the year 2100.

Ambitions:

e Climate resilient places: working with partners to bolster resilience to flooding and
coastal change across the nation, both now and in the face of climate change

e Today’s growth and infrastructure resilient in tomorrow’s climate: Making the right
investment and planning decisions to secure sustainable growth and environmental
improvements, as well as resilient infrastructure.

e A nation ready to respond and adapt to flooding and coastal change: Ensuring
local people understand their risk to flooding and coastal change, and know their
responsibilities and how to take action

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Our Local Flood Risk Management Strategy supports the local delivery of the high level
ambitions set out in the Environment Agency’s National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk
Management (FCERM) Strategy by ensuring our vision and themes are locally appropriate
whilst remaining in alignment with those of the national strategy.

Page 47


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-strategy-for-england--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-strategy-for-england--2

Figure 2 maps the national ambitions against our local themes and objectives to show this
alignment. Section 2 gives an overview of other national, regional and local assessment and
plans relevant to flood and water management in Lancashire.

Climate Resilient Places

Today's Growth and
Infrastructure in Tomorrow's
Climate

A National Ready to Respond
and Adapt to Flooding and
Coastal Change

National FCERM Strategy
Ambitions

Figure 2: Alignment of National FCERM Strategy ambitions with Local Flood Risk
Management Strategy Delivery

Page7 48



2. Context

2.1. Legislative Framework

The legislative framework sets out the roles and responsibilities flood risk management
authorities have in flood and water management.

Flood Risk Regulations (FRR) 2009

These regulations transpose the EU Floods Directive into UK law and made County and
Unitary Councils Lead Local Flood Authorities (LLFAs) with primary responsibility for
managing local flood risk. Additionally, they imposed duties on the risk management
authorities to co-operate to:

e Prepare preliminary assessment reports about past floods and identify areas of
significant risk.

e Prepare flood risk maps and flood hazard maps for any areas identified as having a
significant risk of flooding.

e Prepare flood risk management plans, to include objectives for managing the flood risk
and proposals for how this will be achieved.

Flood and Water Management Act (FWMA) 2010

The Flood and Water Management Act aims to improve both flood risk management and
the way water resources are managed. It creates clearer roles and responsibilities through
defining flood ‘risk management authorities’ and instils a risk-based approach to flood and
water management. There is a lead role for local authorities in managing local flood risks and
a strategic overview role of all flood risk for the Environment Agency.

Section 13 of the FWMA places a duty to cooperate on the flood risk management
authorities in the exercise of their functions. The way in which we deliver this is through
working in partnership. The Lancashire FCERM Partnership is the forum through which this is
facilitated.

Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015

In April 2015 planning legislation was amended to make LLFA’s statutory consultees for all
major development proposals with surface water implications during the planning process.
This applies to development within any flood zone.

The Environment Agency is a statutory consultee for major development proposals within

Flood Zone 2 and Flood Zone 3, and for developments in Flood Zone 1 within an area defined
by the Agency as having critical drainage problems.

Page 49



Land Drainage Act (LDA) 1991 (as amended by the FWMA 2010)

On 6th April 2012, Schedule 2 (Sections 31, 32 and 33) of the FWMA amended the Land
Drainage Act 1991 and transferred powers for the regulation of ordinary watercourses to the
Council as LLFA. The powers of the LLFA to regulate ordinary watercourses broadly consist of
two elements; the issuing of consents for any changes to ordinary watercourses that might
obstruct or alter the flow of an ordinary watercourse and enforcement powers to rectify
unlawful and potentially damaging work to a watercourse.

Coast Protection Act 1949 (as amended by FWMA 2010)

This Act gives permissive powers to maritime local authorities (Coast Protection Authorities)
to manage the risks associated with coastal erosion and flooding from the sea. The Act also
defines the boundaries of “the sea” which impacts on funding arrangements for capital
works.

Highways Act 1980

Section 41 of the Act requires the Highway Authority to maintain the highway at public
expense. A highway authority is under a duty to ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable,
that safe passage along a highway is not endangered by snow or ice. It was determined in a
test case that this also includes flood water.

Climate Change Act 2008
This requires a UK-wide climate change risk assessment every five years accompanied by a
national adaptation programme that is also reviewed every five years.

This legislation gives the Government power to require public bodies and statutory
organisations, such as water and sewerage companies, to report on how they are adapting
to climate change.

Water Framework Directive (2000/60/EC) (WFD)

This is a European Directive which aims to protect and improve the water environment. It
is implemented through River Basin Management Plans (RBMPs), and establishes a legal
framework for the protection, improvement and sustainable use of water bodies across
Europe.

WFD applies to all water bodies, including rivers, streams, brooks, lakes, estuaries and
canals, coastal waters out to one mile from low water, and groundwater bodies.

Water Industry Act 1991

This legislation relates to the water supply and the provision of wastewater services in
England. It sets out the main powers and duties of the water and sewerage companies and
defines the powers of the Water Services Regulation Authority (Ofwat).

Page9 50



2.2 National Assessments and Plans

In addition to the National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM)
Strategy, there are a number of national documents which are relevant to flood and water
management.

A Green Future: 25 Year Environment Plan

The 25 Year Environment Plan (YEP), published in 2018, sets out what government will do to
improve the environment, within a generation, focusing on improving the UK’s air and water
guality and protecting threatened plants, trees and wildlife species. It details how those in
government will work with communities and businesses to do this over the next 25 years.
You can read the full plan here.

The are 10 goals of the Environment Plan (Figure 3), and the one most applicable to flood
and water management is 'reducing the risks of harm from environmental hazards' which will
be achieved through:

e making sure everyone is able to access the information they need to assess any risks to
their lives and livelihoods, health and prosperity posed by flooding and coastal erosion

e bringing the public, private and third sectors together to work with communities and
individuals to reduce the risk of harm

e making sure that decisions on land use, including development, reflect the level of
current and future flood risk

* boosting the long-term resilience of our homes, businesses and infrastructure

* Clean air
* Clean and plentiful water
* Thriving plants and wildlife

» Reducing the risks of harm from
environmental hazards

Goals of the 25 « Using resources fromnature more
" sustainably and efficiently
Year En\" ronment * Enhancing beauty, heritage and
Plan engagement with the natural

environment

» Mitigating and adapting to climate
change

* Minimising waste

* Managing exposure to chemicals

* Enhancing biosecurity

The Ten Point Plan for a Green Industrial Revolution

The Ten Point Plan aims to lay the foundations for a Green Industrial Revolution to support
a green recovery mobilising £12 billion of investment in creating green jobs and a green
economy. You can read the plan here.

Pa:%e 51


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-strategy-for-england--2/national-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-strategy-for-england-executive-summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-strategy-for-england--2/national-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-strategy-for-england-executive-summary
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/25-year-environment-plan
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-ten-point-plan-for-a-green-industrial-revolution

In relation to flood and water management, the plan aims to support communities in better
adapting to and offering protection from the effects of climate change by investing in flood
defences and using nature-based solutions to increase flood resilience; this is covered by
point nine 'protecting our natural environment'.

The government is committing £5.2 billion investment in flood defences in a 6 year programme
for flood and coastal defences from April 2021, which will support 2,000 flood schemes across
every region of England and better protect over 336,000 properties from risk of flooding. It

will also fund new innovative approaches to work with the power of nature to not only reduce
flood risk, but deliver benefits for the environment, nature and communities.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s planning policies
for England and how these are expected to be applied by Local Planning Authorities (LPA)
and decision-makers, both in drawing up plans and making decisions about planning
applications.

Section 14 of the NPPF sets out how the challenges of climate change, flooding and coastal
change will be approached through planning and development.

You can view the National Planning Policy Framework here.

The interpretation of the NPPF is supported by the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). This is
a web-based resource which sets out how the government’s planning policies are expected
to be applied in England. The flood risk and coastal change section of the PPG advises how
to take account of and address the risks associated with flooding and coastal change in the
planning process.

In broad terms, this national framework requires plans and developments to:

e Take into account climate change over the longer term to avoid increased vulnerability to
the range of impacts arising from climate change.

e Develop policies to manage flood risk from all sources, taking account of advice from the
flood risk management authorities (RMAs).

e Ensure new development does not increase flood risk elsewhere.

e Avoid inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding by directing development
away from areas at highest risk.

e Where development is necessary, make it safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere
and direct the most vulnerable development to areas of lowest flood risk.

e Be supported by an appropriate site specific Flood Risk Assessment, where one is
required.

e Ensure development is appropriately flood resilient and resistant.

e Major development should incorporate sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) which
should meet the Technical Standards for SuDS.

Pag?152


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2

2.3 North West Regional Assessments and Plans

North West Flood Risk Management Plan (FRMP)

The Flood Risk Management Plan (FRMP) explains the risk of flooding from rivers, the sea,
surface water, groundwater and reservoirs. FRMPs set out how flood risk management
authorities will work with communities to manage flood and coastal risk.

The North West FRMP covers the river basin catchments of Lancashire and sets out
information on flood risk for the North West river basin district from 2015 to 2021 and a
summary of the aims and actions needed to manage the risk. You can access the current
North West FRMP here. The Environment Agency is leading work to produce a new, updated
North West FRMP that will be available by 2022.

The FRMP is split into 6 documents. These are:

e the summary which gives a high level overview of the FRMP

e Part Aincludes the legislative background and information for the whole river basin
district (RBD)

e Part B includes detail about each catchment, the flood risk areas and other strategic
areas

e Part Cincludes the measures identified to manage flood risk across the river basin district

e the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) statement of particulars includes the
potential impacts on people and the environment when implementing the measures in
the FRMP

e the Habitat Regulations Assessment (HRA) details the potential impacts on designated
European sites when implementing the measures in the FRMP

Catchment Flood Management Plans (CFMP)

Catchment Flood Management Plans (CFMPs) are written by the Environment Agency and
aim to establish flood risk management policies which will deliver sustainable flood risk
management for the long term across a catchment.

CFMPs consider all types of inland flooding, from rivers, groundwater, surface water and
tidal flooding. The Shoreline Management Plan (SMP) consider flooding from the sea. CFMPs
also include:

e the likely impacts of climate change

e the effects of how we use and manage the land

e how areas could be developed to meet our present day needs without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs

Page 53


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/north-west-river-basin-district-flood-risk-management-plan

The CFMPs are grouped by river basin district and Lancashire falls within the North West
River Basin District. CFMPs which are relevant to Lancashire are:

e Alt Crossens — Covers West Lancashire

e Douglas — Covers Chorley, South Ribble, West Lancashire

e Irwell — Covers Rossendale

e Lune — Covers Lancaster and parts of Cumbria

e Ribble — Covers Blackburn, Burnley, Fylde, Hyndburn, Pendle, Preston, Ribble Valley,
Rossendale

e Wyre — Covers Blackpool, Wyre and Preston

Whilst not fully superseded by the Flood Risk Management Plan (FRMP), any actions from
CFMP which are still valid will be carried forward to the new FRMP in 2022. CFMPs are,
however, still useful in setting ‘policies’ for each sub-area or ‘policy unit’. There is also much
more detail at a catchment level in CFMPs, for example about how long different rivers take
to rise in response to heavy rainfall.

North West RFCC Business Plan

The North West Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (RFCC) is one of twelve RFCCs in
England, established under the Flood and Water Management Act 2010. The Committee
brings together, with an independent Chair, the flood risk management authorities as a
regional partnership to take an overview of flood and coastal erosion risk management. They
also seek to promote investment and encourage innovation which is good value for money
and benefits communities.

The Committee's Business Plan sets out what it wants to achieve and how. The Business Plan
is not a statutory document but supports the Committee in transparently communicating
and engaging with those who will benefit from the delivery of this work. Business Plan
delivery is supplemented by an annual action plan setting out the actions that will be
delivered in each financial year in more detail, and is closely monitored on a quarterly basis.

You can find the Business Plan here.

Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP)
United Utilities will publish their draft Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan in
summer 2022, to support their business plan for the 2024 Price Review.

Drainage and Wastewater Management Plans (DWMP) identify ways that organisations to
work together to improve drainage and environmental water quality. It provides the basis
for more collaborative and integrated long-term planning by water companies, working with
other organisations that have responsibilities relating to drainage, flooding and protection
of the environment. It makes use of the tools and approaches below to enable investment
to be targeted more effectively and provide customers and stakeholders with better
information about the UK’s drainage and wastewater services.

Pag%54


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/catchment-flood-management-plans#north-west-river-basin-district
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/catchment-flood-management-plans#north-west-river-basin-district
https://thefloodhub.co.uk/north-west-rfcc/#section-5

2.4 District Level Assessments and Plans

Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (PFRA)

A Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (PFRA), and the identification of ‘flood risk areas’, is
required to be produced by Lead Local Flood Authorities (LLFAs) under Section 10 of the
Flood Risk Regulations (FRRs) 2009. The first PFRAs were produced in 2011 and Section 17
of the FRRs required LLFAs to review their PFRA and ‘flood risk areas’ in 2018. Subsequent
reviews must be carried out at intervals of no more than 6 years.

A PFRA is an assessment of floods that have taken place in the past and floods that could
take place in the future. It considers flooding from surface water runoff, groundwater

and ordinary watercourses. PFRAs are used to identify areas that are at risk of significant
flooding. These areas are called ‘flood risk areas.” Existing ‘flood risk areas’ have been
identified using guidance produced Defra and represent ‘clusters’ of areas where flood risk is
an issue and where 30,000 people or more live.

PFRAs include:

e asummary of information on significant historic floods;

e asummary of information on future flood risks based primarily on the Environment
Agency's national datasets;

e aspreadsheet containing information for reporting to the European Commission.

PFRA’s for Lancashire can be found on Blackburn with Darwen, Blackpool and Lancashire
County Council websites.

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA)

A Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) is a study carried out by one or more Local
Planning Authorities to assess the risk to an area from flooding from all sources, now and in
the future, taking account of the likely impacts of climate change, and to assess the impact
that land use changes and development in the area will have on flood risk.

The SFRA is used by the Local Planning Authority to:

e determine the variations in risk from all sources of flooding across their areas, and also
the risks to and from surrounding areas in the same flood catchment;

e inform the sustainability appraisal of the Local Plan, so that flood risk is fully taken into
account when considering allocation options and in the preparation of plan policies,
including policies for flood risk management to ensure that flood risk is not increased;

e apply tests (the Sequential and Exception Tests) when determining land use allocations;

e identify the requirements for site-specific flood risk assessments in particular locations,
including those at risk from sources other than river and sea flooding;

e determine the acceptability of flood risk in relation to emergency planning capability;

e Consider opportunities to reduce flood risk to existing communities and developments
through better management of surface water, provision for conveyance and of storage for
flood water.

Pagle 55



SFRAs in Lancashire can be viewed on the Unitary and District Council Local Planning
Authority websites.

2.5. Types of Flooding and Flood Risk

What causes flooding?

Flooding occurs when water inundates land which is land not normally covered by water,
typically where there is too much water or because the water is in the wrong place. Some
floods develop over days as a result of water taking its time to reach watercourses and
overwhelming them, whilst flash floods generate quickly following intense rainfall or rapid
snow melt.

Whilst flooding is a natural phenomenon, it can result in wide ranging environmental, social
and economic impacts when it interacts negatively with the human environment. There is
hence a need to manage water and flood risk to ensure its negative impacts are minimised.

What is flood risk?

The definition of 'risk' is the combination of the probability (likelihood or chance) of an event
happening and the consequences (impact) of it occurring. Floods can happen often or rarely
and have minor or major consequences. Where the probability and the consequences of
flooding are high, then an area is considered to be at a high risk of flooding.

Flood Risk = Probability x Consequences

Types of Flood Risk

There are many different types of flood risk and flooding can be caused by the interaction
between one or more types of flood risk. This means that flooding can be complex to
understand and difficult to address, so it is important that all flood risk management
authorities work closely together in understanding and managing flood risks.

Figure 4 demonstrates the different types of flood risk, whilst Table 1 describes these risks
and explains which flood risk management authority is responsible for managing each risk.

Pag?556



o0 Who's responsible for
managing flood risk?

- Watercourse (riparian) ownership ) ) b ) |
(] Property owner You own a watercourse if it runs adjacent ) ¢
] The property owner is responsible for to, through, or under your property, This

private drainage and surface water up to
the boundary of the property. They may

includes both main rivers, and ordinary
watercourses such as streams, culverts and
also want to consider property flood ditches. You are responsible for maintaining
resilience (PFR) measures to protect the natural flow of water and reporting
their property from flood damage. incidents such as blockages and flooding.

Main river and coastal flooding
The Environment Ageney (EA) is responsible for
managing the risk of main river and coastal
fioading. Main rivers are those which are
designated as such on the EA's Main River Map.
To report incidents and flood risk issues, call the
Incident hotline on G800 80 70 60.

To sign up for flood warnings, call Floodline on
0345 988 1188.

Groundwater flooding
The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) are
responsible for managing the risk of groundwater

flooding. This can oceur when periods of
prolonged rainfall cause the water table to rise
and emerge in basements or above ground

Public sewers and utility pipes
Water companies {e.g. United Utilities) are
responsible for managing the risk of floading from
public sewers and utility pipes. This includes
shared sewer pipes where they meet between
properties before jaining the public sewer.

Surface water flooding
The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) are
responsible for managing the risk of surface
water flooding. This can occur when the
capacity of drainage systems on land or
roads is exceeded by heavy rainfall.

Highway gullies and drains
Highway roads, footpaths, drains and gullies are the
responsibility of the local highway authority which will
be either the County Council or the Unitary Authority.
Major roads and motorway drainage
Responsibility of Highways England.

This resource has been Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) Last reviewed: February 2020

newgrou n produced by Newground who 0 e ncil or the District Council (provided i itary For more information visit:

work in partnership with the Authority). ) q flo om ordin: 2 www thefloodhub.couk
Environment Agency gro L and fo e f @TheFloodHub

your community is our business

Figure 4: Types of flood risk

Pa%e 57



Table 1: Types of flood risk and responsible flood risk management authority

Type of flood risk

Surface water flooding is caused by the build-up of water on surfaces because it cannot
soak into the ground due to it being hard paved, frozen, baked solid etc., due to the lay of
the land, or where rainfall exceeds the infiltration capacity of the soil. It often occurs during
intense or prolonged rainfall events.

Responsible Authority
Lead Local Flood Authority (Blackpool, Blackburn-with-Darwen and Lancashire County
Council)

Groundwater flooding occurs when the water table (the water level below ground) rises
above the ground surface. During periods of heavy and prolonged rainfall, the water level

in the ground may rise to such an extent that it seeps into property basements, or the
emergence of groundwater at the surface (can often be a natural spring) may cause damage
to properties and infrastructure. Some areas are known to be more prone to groundwater
flooding than others due to the naturally high level of the water table level in that area.

Responsible Authority
Lead Local Flood Authority (Blackpool, Blackburn-with-Darwen and Lancashire County
Council)

Ordinary watercourses flooding occurs when heavy and/or prolonged rainfall causes the
watercourse to break its banks or when blockages occur (for example by debris or when
infrastructure fails). Ordinary watercourses typically smaller brooks, drainage channels,
ditches, cuts, dikes, sluices, soughs or culverts that may only convey water for a short length
of time in a year.

Responsible Authority
Lead Local Flood Authority (Blackpool, Blackburn-with-Darwen and Lancashire County
Council)

Highway flooding (non-trunk roads) is the accumulation of water on the adopted

Highway network surface. Highway flooding may be caused by blockages or capacity

issues in Highway drainage systems, or simply by sheer volume of rain water falling on the
carriageway, which the existing drainage network cannot cope with has the responsibility to
manage flood risk on the county’s non-trunk roads.

Responsible Authority
Highway Authority (Blackpool, Blackburn-with-Darwen and Lancashire County Council)

Pag?758



Highway flooding (trunk roads and motorways) is the accumulation of surface water on the
strategic road network.

Responsible Authority
Highways England

Coastal flooding typically occurs when strong winds, wave action, high tides and/or
storm surges, or a combination of these factors during storm conditions, cause coastal
overtopping.

Responsible Authority
Environment Agency

Main Rivers are larger rivers that can span several counties but also include some smaller
watercourses (those which are deemed to require specialist management). The Department
for Environment, Flood and Rural Affairs (Defra) have set the criteria for defining these rivers
as Main Rivers in England and Wales.

Responsible Authority
Environment Agency

Sewer flooding can occur when large volumes of rainwater enters the public sewer system
or when the public sewer system becomes blocked. Flooding from private sewers is the
responsibility of the land owner.

Responsible Authority
Water and Sewerage Companies

Reservoir flooding occurs when a reservoir fails or breaches resulting in this water escaping
and flooding on to the adjacent land. Reservoirs are artificially created ponds or lakes that
are usually formed by building a dam (wall), across a river or watercourse. This type of
flooding is considered to be very low risk as it is highly unlikely to occur.

Responsible Authority
United Utilities

Canal flooding can be as a result of excessive surface water running off or discharging to an
artificially created waterway. The water levels within canals can vary (although not as much
as rivers) due to many factors including proximity to controlled/uncontrolled inflows, lock
usage etc.

Responsible Authority
Canal and River Trust

Pa%e 59



2.6 Responsibilities of Flood Risk Management Authorities

Lead Local Flood Authorities bring together all relevant Flood Risk Management Authorities
to manage flood risk. No single body has the means to reduce all sources of flooding and
therefore everyone has a part to play in effective flood risk management for Lancashire.

Figure 5 illustrates the key Flood Risk Management Authorities that work together in
managing flood risk across Lancashire.

Lancashire
County (F=.
C il o

. - Blackburn with
Blackpool Council .
I f& Darwen Gouncil Environment Agency

Highway Authorities e Main rivers

e Highway water e (Coastal /sea

(non-trunk roads)

e Reservoirs

ouncil

Blackpool Council 5 Eleckbumpit)

Darwen Council

Lead Local Flood Authorities

e Surface water

highways

e
YorkshireWater
england

e Groundwater

e Ordinary watercoufses

Highways England Water & Sewerage

Companies
* Highway water P

(trunk roads)

e Public sewer network

District / Borough Councils

e Support Lancashire
County Council where
possible

Figure 5: Flood Risk Management Authorities in Lancashire

Table 2 explains the key responsibilities, duties and powers placed upon flood risk
management authorities in Lancashire by the Flood & Water Management Act 2010.

Under Section 13 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, flood risk management
authorities each have a role to play in managing flood risk at a local level and must
cooperate and ensure a partnership approach is taken to address concerns and maximise
opportunities to holistically manage flood and coastal erosion risks.

Pag?960



We have clearly set out how we intend to do this through the delivery of actions set out
within our Business Plan and governed through the Lancashire Flood and Coastal Erosion
Risk Management (FCERM) Partnership and the regional governance of the North West
Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (RFCC). You can find out more about FCERM
governance in 2.8 below and on The Flood Hub.

Table 2: Key Responsibilities, Duties and Powers of Flood Risk Management Authorities

- = 5 g v
Bgf| EE | ¥% | 7| :ot
Flood & Water Management Act 325 £5 'E E 8 5“ % % é
Bd| Ta E =43
Section 7 Develop the MNational Flood and Coastal v
Erosion Risk Management Strategy
Section 9 Develop a Lecal Flood Risk Management v
Strategy
Section 13 Cooperate with relevant authorities in
exercising flood and coastal erosion risk v ¥ v ¥ ¥
management functions
Section 14 Power to request information v
Section 17 Raise a Local Lewy for Flood and Coastal
Erosion Risk Management
Section 19 Investigate Flooding to a locally derived v
threshold.
Section 21 Maintain a register of structure and features v
affecting flood risk
Sections 22 - | Establish a Regional Flood and Coastal
26 Committee and raise a Local Levy for FCERM
Section 27 Contribute towards sustainable development v v v v v
Section 39 Local Authorities are to manage flooding,
water levels and coastal erosion in the
interests of nature conservation, the ¥ v
preservation of cultural heritage or people's
enjoyment of the envircnment.
Schedule 1 Power to designate structure and features v v v
Schedule 2 Ordinary Watercourse Consenting and
Enforcement v
(by amendment to the Land Drainage Act 1991)
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
Part 4 Identifies statutory consultees in  the v v v
development management planning process

2.7 Responsibilities of Individuals and Communities

Business, land and property owners

Whilst there are a number of organisations and flood risk management authorities who
have a responsibility for the management of the different sources of flooding, an individual
property owner or business still has the responsibility to take measures to protect their
property from flooding.

Flooding can still occurs despite all stakeholders meeting their responsibilities and therefore,

it is important that business, land and property owner take appropriate steps to ensure that
their property and contents are protected where they are known to be at risk.

Pa,g)e 61


https://thefloodhub.co.uk/

The Flood Hub is a North West regionally funded website to support our communities in
understanding how they can become more resilient and resistant to flooding.

Riparian Owners

A riparian landowner is defined as someone who owns land or property next to or over a
river, stream, ditch or culvert/pipe that forms part of a watercourse. The riparian landowner
is responsible for the section of watercourse which flows through their land. If a land
boundary is defined next to a watercourse, it is assumed that the landowner owns the land
up to the centre of the watercourse, unless it is owned by someone else.

Under the Land Drainage Act (1991), riparian landowners have a legal responsibility to maintain
the free passage of water through the section of watercourse that flows through their land.

The Flood Hub is a North West regionally funded website and provide advices and guidance
on riparian ownership.

Developers

Developers are responsible for managing flood risk on-site during development. This should
be considered as part of the site-specific flood risk assessment, where required, and in the
sustainable drainage strategy for the site helping to ensure any phasing of construction
considers how water will be managed. The Local Planning Authority, in consultation with
flood risk management authorities, is responsible for ensuring development is carried

out in accordance with approved plans and, where this is breached, taking appropriate
enforcement action.

2.8 FCERM Governance in Lancashire

The structure of flood and coastal erosion risk management (FCERM) governance in
Lancashire can be split into three hierarchal levels:

North West
Flood & Water Management
Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (RFCC)
RFCC Finance Sub Group
Task Groups (as required)

Lancashire-Wide
Flood & Water Management
Lancashire FCERM Partnership
Strategic Partnership
Tactical Officers Group

District
Flood & Water Management
14x Operational ‘Making Space for Water’ Groups

Figure 6: Regional and Sub-Regional Governance of Flood and Water Management

Pag§162


https://thefloodhub.co.uk/
https://thefloodhub.co.uk/

North West Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (RFCC)

The North West Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (RFCC) is one of twelve RFCC’s
established in England by the Environment Agency under Section 22 of the Flood and Water
Management Act. The RFCC brings together members (Councilors) appointed by Lead Local
Flood Authorities (LLFAs) and independent members with relevant experience for three key
purposes:

1. to ensure there are coherent plans for identifying, communicating and managing flood
and coastal erosion risks across catchments and shorelines;

2. to provide a link between the Environment Agency, LLFAs, other risk management
authorities, and other relevant bodies to build a mutual understanding of flood and
coastal erosion risks in its area, and;

3. to use this understanding to encourage efficient, targeted and risk-based investment in
flood and coastal erosion risk management that represents value for money and benefits
local communities.

The chair, Adrian Lythgo, is independent and was appointed by the Secretary of State for the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. The North West RFCC has a Business
Plan which provides more information about the Committee and its work.

The Committee is supported by a Finance Sub-Group which provokes more detailed
discussion and consideration of financial aspects of Committee business. The Finance Sub-
Group meets four times a year, typically two/three weeks before the main Committee
meeting, and is chaired by another Member of the North West RFCC.

North West and North Wales Coastal Group

The Coastal Group brings together the organisations who manage the coastline from Great
Ormes Head in Llandudno to the Soloway Forth on the Cumbria — Scotland border. The
Group examines the social, economic and environmental issues that arise along the changing
coastline and seek to find the best policies to address these matters.

The Group is supported by two sub-groups: one for Liverpool Bay and a Northern Sub Group
covering north of this. The Northern Sub Group is the sub group relevant to Lancashire and
representatives from our Coast Protection Authorities — Blackpool, Fylde, Lancaster, West
Lancashire and Wyre Councils - attend sub-group meetings held twice a year along with
other partners including the Environment Agency and United Utilities.

The Shoreline Management Plan (SMP) is the key priority that the Coastal Group will oversee
the delivery of. It makes recommendations as to whether maintenance of coastal defences
should continue as they are at present (‘hold the line’), whether maintenance (if any) should
cease (‘no active intervention’) or whether defences, perhaps in years to come, might be

set back further (‘managed realignment’). Walls and embankments are often designed to
protect against both flooding (flood defence/sea defence) and erosion (coast protection).

You can find out more about the North West and North Wales Coastal Group here.

Page 63


https://www.mycoastline.org.uk/

Lancashire FCERM Partnership

The Lancashire FCERM Partnership is one of five sub-regional FCERM Partnerships in the
North West, alongside the Cumbria, Greater Manchester, Merseyside and Cheshire Mid-
Mersey FCERM Partnerships. These partnerships were created by the North West RFCC to
support local governance of flood and water management and of coastal processes, enabling
local issues and priorities to be governed and reflected appropriately at the North West
RFCC.

The Lancashire FCERM Partnership is a collective grouping of flood risk management
authorities who come together quarterly to take an overview of flood and coastal erosion
risk management across Lancashire, to identify priorities and steer the use of our resources,
to vote on changes to the Local Levy, and to support investment which is good value for
money and benefits our communities.

There are two levels to the partnership:
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

Strategic Partnership Group

Elected Members and senior representatives from Risk Management Authorities meet four
times a year.

This group is chaired by a Councillor and sets the strategic direction for joint working and
management of flood and coastal erosion risk of the Partnership against its resources, local
risks and challenges.

Group agrees the timetable delivery of actions identified in the Strategy’s Business Plan
according to many factors such as delivery timescales and what will have the greatest
benefit to our at risk communities.

Vv

Tactical Officers Group

This is chaired by a Local Authority officer and is where technical lead officers deliver actions
set by the Strategic Partnership Group. The group meets four times a year to coordinate
delivery, share skills and implement decisions.

Lead officers also report on issues, successes and identify ways to continually improve the
management of flooding and coastal erosion risks into the future.

Pag§364



Local Authority Operational '"Making Space for Water' Groups

Operational 'Making Space for Water' Groups are district-level technical partnership groups
set up to discuss locally specific flood and coastal, where applicable, issues within their Local
Authority area and provide a forum to drive forward solutions, where possible, through
working in partnership.

These technical meetings are arranged and chaired by Local Authorities who, where
applicable, feed outcomes of this meeting up to Tactical Officers Group and to the Northern
Coastal Sub-Group as well as feeding information down to the Operational 'Making Space for
Water' Group.

2.9 Working with our Wider Partners

Catchment Partnerships

Catchment Partnerships are local formed groups which advocate for a Catchment Based
Approach (CaBA) to undertake integrated management of land and water, addressing

each river catchment as a whole and delivering crosscutting practical interventions on the
ground. These result in multiple benefits including improvements to water quality, enhanced
biodiversity, reduced flood risk, resilience to climate change, more resource efficient and
sustainable businesses and, health and wellbeing benefits for local communities as they
engage with and take ownership of their local river environment.

Numerous organisations and sectoral interests are involved with Catchment Partnerships
in Lancashire, including the Environment Agency, United Utilities, Local Authorities,
Landowners, Wildlife Trusts, National Farmers Union, Academia and Local Businesses.

In Lancashire there are five Catchment Partnerships covering the Alt Crossens, Douglas,
Irwell, Lune, Ribble and Wyre Catchments which are chaired by Rivers Trusts and

Groundwork.

You can find out more about them here.

Whilst not a flood risk management authority, Catchment Partnerships are a recognised and
valued groups which support us in, where possible:

e delivering a catchment-based approach (CaBA) to flood and water management

e helping to drive improvements in water and bathing water quality locally

e championing the use and delivery of natural flood management techniques across
Lancashire.

Flood Action Groups (FIAGs)

A Flood Action Group (FIAG) is a voluntary group of local residents who meet on a regular
basis to work on behalf of the wider community to help to try and reduce the impact of
future flood events. Across Lancashire, there are around 50 FIAGs and, whilst the focus of
the group can vary, is typically based around emergency planning and can also tackle local
issues, whilst providing a unified voice for the community to communicate ideas and queries
to others.

Pagle 65


https://naturalcourse.co.uk/region/lancashire/

It is within the remit of each individual group to decide on its own roles, responsibilities,
aims and objectives. For more information please see The Flood Hub.

Detailed information describing the achievement of a Community Group at Churchtown
and future opportunities for other Flood Action groups can be found on this link:

https://thefloodhub.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Churchtown-Flood-Action-Group-
case-study.pdf

Lancashire Resilience Forum

The Lancashire Resilience Forum (LRF) is a multi-agency partnership made up of
representatives from local public services, including the emergency services, local
authorities, the NHS, the Environment Agency, United Utilities, Maritime Coastguard Agency
and others. These agencies are known as Category 1 Responders, as defined by the Civil
Contingencies Act.

These multi-agencies work together to prepare and respond to emergencies in Lancashire,
including flooding. You can find out more about the Lancashire Resilience Forum here.

2.10 Funding for FCERM

FCERM Investment Programme 2021 - 2027

The Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) Investment Programme is a Defra
capital investment plan to better protect homes and non-residential properties, such as
businesses, schools and hospitals, from flood risk and coastal erosion. The conditions of the
Investment Programme are that schemes must attract at least 15% of partnership funding
and deliver 10% efficiency saving on projects. This flood and coastal erosion resilience
partnership funding policy was introduced to spread the cost between government funding
and local funding partners.

In the 2020 Budget, the government announced that it will double its investment in flood
and coastal defences in England, compared to the previous capital investment plan, to £5.2
billion to better protect a further 336,000 homes and non-residential properties as well as
avoiding £32 billion of wider economic damages to the nation.

The Prime Minister also announced a new £200 million resilience fund to pilot innovative
approaches to improving flood resilience between 2021 and 2027. This will support 25 local
areas to take forward wider innovative actions that improve their resilience to flooding and
coastal erosion.

In addition to doubling its spending on flood and coastal defences, the government has
worked with the Environment Agency to update how the level of government funding is
allocated to projects. The changes will take account of the wider environmental and social
benefits that come with reducing the risk of flooding.

Pag§566


https://thefloodhub.co.uk/community/
https://thefloodhub.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Churchtown-Flood-Action-Group-case-study.pdf
https://thefloodhub.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Churchtown-Flood-Action-Group-case-study.pdf
https://www.stayintheknow.co.uk/EmergencyInfo

The changes will include:

updated payments to account for inflation and based on new evidence on the overall
impacts of flooding, such as mental health

increased payments for flood schemes which also create a range of environmental
benefits

more funding for flood schemes which also protect properties that will later become at
risk of flooding due to climate change

a new risk category which will enable schemes that prevent surface water flooding to
qualify for more funding

New funding streams will also mean:

more money for flood defence schemes that help to protect critical infrastructure such as
schools, hospitals, roads and railways

more money to upgrade existing Environment Agency defences

Funding for Delivering Projects
The following funding sources allow the LLFA to reduce flood and coastal erosion risk
through the delivery of projects:

Flood Defence Grant in Aid (GiA) — This is money from Defra which is administered by
the Environment Agency. The amount of Grant in Aid available to each capital scheme is
calculated by the Outcome Measures delivered by the project. Outcome Measures reflect
financial, environmental, health and FCERM benefits. Where there is a shortfall in Grant
in Aid, funding contributions are required to achieve project viability.

Local Levy — The North West RFCC (and Yorkshire RFCC for Earby) can choose to support
projects that are either not eligible for Grant in Aid, or to support projects where there is
a shortfall in Grant in Aid by the allocation of Local Levy.

Partnership Funding — Where Grant in Aid and/or Local Levy does not fully support

the delivery of a project, the LLFA can provide additional funding through their own
contributions or by seeking external contributions from partners and communities who
may benefit from the project.

Funding allocations for these sources are subject to a successful, approved business case.

More information on investment in FCERM can be found in the North West RFCC Business
Plan (available on The Flood Hub) and statistics can also be found on GOV.uk.

Page 67


https://thefloodhub.co.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/programme-of-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-schemes

3. Local Flood Risks & Challenges

3.1 Local Flood Risks

Increasing local flood risks as a result of climate change

The UK Climate Projections 2018 (UKCP18) illustrate a range of future climate scenarios
until 2100. In relation to managing the risk of local flooding average summer rainfall could
decrease by up to 47% by 2070, while there could be up to 35% more precipitation in winter.
What rainfall does occur will be more intense over a shorter duration, which could lead to an
increase in surface water flood risk.

This is complicated by sea levels which are projected to rise over the 21st century and
beyond under all emission scenarios, meaning we can expect to see an increase in both the
frequency and magnitude of extreme water levels around the UK coastline. This can impact
on local flood risk by affecting the ability of catchments to discharge.

UKCP18 can be used as a tool to guide decision-making and boost resilience — whether
that’s through increasing flood defences, designing new infrastructure or adjusting ways of
farming and land management for drier summers. It will also help us at a local level to feed
into future development plans to ensure they take account of and are resilient to flood and
coastal erosion risks.

Most Lancashire Local Authorities have declared a climate emergency committing to taking
action to reduce carbon emissions, raise awareness about climate change and mobilise
change through local action.

Inherited local flood risk from historical development

Development today is well regulated through the planning process, and this includes
measures to understand, mitigate and manage flood risks from all sources on prospective
sites. As well as planning regulation, building regulations and design specifications have
changed and improved over time to reflect advances in knowledge and understanding of
drainage and in response to our changing climate.

It is therefore not surprising that older developments, constructed at a time when due
consideration to drainage did not occur as it does now, are finding they are at flood risk
today as a result of our changing climate and pressures on historical drainage systems not
designed and constructed to modern standards.

Predominant surface water flood risk

Surface water flooding from short, intense storms can occur in urban areas and along
highways when drains are overloaded by the sheer amount of rainfall and/or runoff.

Pag§768


https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/research/approach/collaboration/ukcp/index
https://www.climateemergency.uk/blog/list-of-councils/
https://campaigncc.org/climateemergency.shtml

Sefton has the highest number of properties at high risk of surface water flooding both in
Merseyside and in the North West, largely as a result of its urban areas generating surface
water flows, flat topography meaning the water isn’t easily moved away and the presence of
sea defences.

The figures in Table 2 are ‘with defences’. Those for rivers and the sea would be much
higher were it not for these defences, especially in Wirral and Sefton. This underlines the
importance of maintaining flood and coastal assets and periodically upgrading them.

Groundwater risks in low lying areas

In low-lying areas the water table is usually at shallower depths, but during very wet periods,
with all the additional groundwater flowing towards these areas, the water table can rise up
to the surface causing groundwater flooding.

Groundwater flooding is most likely to occur in areas situated over permeable rocks, called
aquifers. These can be extensive, regional aquifers, such as chalk or sandstone, or may be
more local sand or river gravels in valley bottoms underlain by less permeable rocks.

Hence groundwater flood risks in Lancashire tend to be prevalent in lower lying areas
underlain by permeable rocks and soils as is typical throughout the West Lancashire plain
and the Fylde Peninsula.

Drainage infrastructure which is aging and at capacity in areas
Lancashire has an intricate network of ageing culverts, sewers and drains, many dating from
the 1800s when cotton industry was expanding during the Industrial Revolution.

This ageing infrastructure, along with pressures from development and a tendency for
increased paving such as driveways, poses particular problems to the drainage network. As a
result, some areas have experienced flooding from sewers which occurs when their capacity
is overcome by the amount of water trying to enter the network.

In urban areas watercourses are typically modified with straightened and walled channels,
and there are many culverts; watercourses which have been re-directed through pipes and
tunnels.

Many watercourses reflecting land that has been reclaimed and/or managed

Lancashire's western districts are characterised by large areas of reclaimed land with a
distinctive pattern of rectangular fields of dark peaty soil with deep drainage ditches. This
land is highly fertile, top grade agricultural land with a vibrant intensive farming economy.

It is common to find the suffix "Moss" in the names of local places. As is usual in these

types of areas, the settlements tend to be on any available hill, many formed by sandstone
outcrops, to avoid the risk of flooding.

Page 69



Of course, this reclaimed land relies on a series of managed ditches and dykes, providing a
complex network of 'feeder' watercourses that eventually outfall into tidal estuaries or main
river channels. Large parts of these catchment are pumped by satellite drains and pumping
stations, many of which are maintained by the Environment Agency. There is a risk around
the longevity and sustainability of these pumped catchments with multi-agency discussions
ongoing between asset, business and land owners.

3.2 Local Challenges

The local flood risks Lancashire faces are made more complex by a number of challenges,
we will work in accordance with the guidance in the National FCRM strategy to address the
challenges which include

Social deprivation in highly populated urban areas which can lead to lower uptake of flood
insurance in at risk areas

Challenges in the management of flood risk are shown to exist and impact in areas where
social deprivation is prevalent. The challenge is in the engagement both of flood risk
exposure, which can range from receipt of flood warning, assistance during flood to the
recovery stage where many residents do not have sufficient insurance cover.

Following a joint initiative between the Government and insurance companies Flood Re
was established in 2016. The aim was to secure affordable and available insurance for
qualifying properties that are at risk of flooding or have been flooded. However a recent
study has indicated that there are still concerns around affordability of insurance in areas of
social deprivation. The study, carried out by Doncaster Council with ten recommendations
which, benefits many areas across the Country, is applicable to Lancashire to ensure that we
address the challenge and assist residents where possible via Flood Re.

Engagement with diverse communities
Overall, this Local Flood Risk Management Strategy aims to impact positively on everyone
who lives, works or visits Lancashire.

The Equality Act 2010 introduced the term “protected characteristics” and makes it unlawful
to discriminate against a person who belongs to one of the groups who are protected

under the act. The groups identified by the Equality Act 2010 are: age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex and sexual orientation.

These groups with protected characteristic may require further consideration and
consultation as the strategy is implemented. It is important to ensure the needs of these
groups are considered as part of the Flood Risk Management, for example some groups
may have difficulty in accessing interpreting or acting on flood warnings and we need to
ensure that flood risk management schemes do not have a negative impact on the ability of
people to use the highway and pathways and that specific places are acknowledged.

Pag(;g?o



Long term sustainability of pumped catchments

New development in low-lying areas has to be carefully managed as many of the drainage
ditches and pumping stations are operating at or near full capacity. A small increase in the
volume of flows or a change in the drainage regime could lead to a large increase in flood
risk. One of the biggest challenges of the next 6 years is the maintenance of these assets
as many are reaching capacity and are not sustainable due to the increase in capacity.
Alternative integrated solutions need to be investigated to mitigate this challenge and also
reduce the carbon impact of pumping stations.

Poor water quality of watercourses

Watercourses are one of Lancashire’s most natural and important assets, and help provide
protection from flood risk. But often the run off from land create poor quality of water which
often impacts the rivers and coast and the much needed habitats.

During the course of this strategy we will work with landowners to establish a programme to
improve poor water quality of watercourses.

Regulation and maintenance of watercourses

Lancashire contains some of the highest grade and most productive agricultural land in
the UK. The rural economy plays a very important role in the region and employs a large
number of people.

However, much of the land used for farming are drained by an extensive network of
watercourses such as ditches, streams and river. Water levels are also managed in some
locations with the aid of pumping stations.

Maintaining water infrastructure related to agriculture has a cost and in the current
economic climate, funding for these activities is under significant pressure. This is especially
true, when there is a strong focus on protecting people and property over agricultural

land. We are working with our RMA partners to develop governance options or water
management in rural areas, with a view to balancing the needs of agricultural productivity,
flood risk management and sustainable drainage practices.

However the challenge may be partly mitigated if the work with landowners developing
innovative solutions to ensure there is regulation and maintenance of watercourses.

LLFA’s have responsibility for consenting and enforcing on ordinary watercourses, Developers
have responsibility to apply for consent. The Planning Authorities can ensure that
Developers pay strict attention to their responsibilities for application by applying planning
conditions on developments. Lancashire expects developers to ensure that the places they
are building have environmental net gain and do not have a detrimental impact on existing
watercourses.

Pa%e 71



Developing and retaining flood risk professionals for Lancashire

Strategic objective 3.5 of the National FCERM states that “between now and 2030 the nation
will be recognized as a world leader in researching and managing flooding and coastal
change” and its measure 3.4.1 states that “by 2025 risk management authorities and other
organizations will work with education providers to encourage opportunities for ongoing
learning and career development in engineering and social sciences.”

As described in this strategy Lancashire has an investment of £230m between 2021 and
2027, in order to deliver this investment, Lancashire will address the National challenge and
will work with schools and universities to engage with students, appoint apprentices and
graduates to ensure we can both deliver the investment but develop and retain flood risk
professionals.

Pag§172



3.3 District Fact Files

Blackburn with Darwen

General Geography and Topography

The Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council study area is located in Lancashire in the
North West of England and covers an area of 137 sq km. It lies to the north of the West
Pennine Moors on the southern edge of the Ribble Valley and the northern edge of the
Irwell catchment.

Blackburn is bounded to the south by Darwen, with which it forms the unitary authority
area of Blackburn with Darwen Borough. The original settlement of Blackburn was
located to the north of the River Blakewater with Darwen located within the steep
narrow sided River Darwen valley. The two towns dominate the northern half of the
borough, whilst the southern half is more rural. The Leeds Liverpool Canal flows through
the northern part of the borough for approximately 7.5km and the two towns are
separated by the M65 motorway.

The Borough is characterised by relatively compact urban areas set within countryside.
This is most pronounced in Darwen, much of which sits within a relatively steep-sided
valley with ridgelines to the east and west. Within the main urban areas both Town
Centres are surrounded by large areas of high density terraced housing, parts of which
are in poor condition. Both towns also have significant areas of “suburban” development,
comprising a mix of larger older properties and more recent development, some of
which has spilled beyond the confines of the valley sides.

Topography

The central parts of Blackburn, where the River Darwen and Blakewater meet, lie at a
height of approximately 100 metres above sea level. Darwen lies at approximately 220
metres above sea level and occupies the narrow valley between Darwen Moor and Grey
Stone Hill. Darwen is surrounded to the west, east and south by moorland.

The southern part of the Borough falls within a second river catchment, the River Irwell,
which drains south to the Mersey Basin. The boundary between the Darwen and Irwell
catchment rises to a height approaching 400 metres on Turton Moor and Causeway
Height. The rural population centres are largely located to the west, south and east in
river valley or reservoir valleys and include the villages of Edgworth and Turton Bottoms,
Belmont and Hoddlesden.

Potential Sources of Flooding

Flooding from rivers

— Intense or prolonged rainfall causing runoff rates and flows to increase in rivers,
which then exceeds the capacity of the channel. This can be exacerbated by wet
conditions leading up to the prolonged rainfall and where there are significant
contributions of groundwater;

Pa%e 73



— Constrictions in the river channel, reducing capacity and causing flood water to
backup, i.e. culverts, bridges, pipe-crossings etc;

— Blockage of structures or the river channel causing flood water to backup; and

— High water levels and/or locked flood gates preventing discharge at the outlet of a
tributary into a river

Flooding from groundwater

Flooding from surface water

Flooding from sewers

Flooding from artificial sources (docks, canals, reservoirs, lakes).

Flood mitigation carried out

Superficial Geology/General Soil Types

The geology of the Blackburn area yields numerous resources. Mineable coal seams have
been used since the 16th century and Millstone Grit has been quarried for millstones and
for providing building stone for many of the older properties. The centre of Blackburn
Town Centre is where the geological strata changes from coal measures to Millstone

Grit. South of the town centre Coal deposits are present in a narrow band extending
south through Darwen and to the boroughs boundary. The Coal deposits are overlain

by superficial glacial sand/gravel and Till deposits. North of Blackburn Town Centre the
underlying geology is Millstone Grit overlain by Till.

The relatively impermeable Coal and Millstone Grit and the steep nature of the upper
catchments of the both the Darwen and Blakewater would give rise to limited infiltration
and a rapid response to rainfall events. Hydrological analysis undertaken as part of a
Flood Risk Management Strategy for the River Darwen and Blakewater suggests that the
critical duration for the River Darwen, Blakewater and their tributaries, i.e. the time it
takes for the watercourses to typically reach peak flow or level after a storm event, varies
between 1.25 hours and 4.75 hours.

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

The primary source of flooding is from the Rivers Darwen and Blakewater. The heavily
urbanised nature of the catchment in conjunction with the steep and narrow nature
of the watercourses results in a rapid response to heavy rainfall events. The confined
nature of the channel, which is a result of historical development that closely borders
the watercourse, and the presence of numerous structures means that there is an
inadequate capacity within the watercourse resulting in overtoppingand flooding of
surrounding land, primarily where there are no flood defences.

This flooding generally results in overland flow along the path of the watercourses,
impacting numerous properties and infrastructure. Where there are flood defences,

the majority provide a level of protection that is greater than a 1% AEP (1 in 100yr)

flood event, however, in some places the standard of protection is lower than this and
approximately 7% of them provide a standard of protection equivalent to a 20% AEP (1 in
5yr) flood event or less.

Pag§374



Blackpool

General Geography and Topography

e Blackpool is flanked by the Authorities of Fylde and Wyre. The area is predominantly flat.
Due to the flat topography there are extensive networks of agricultural land drains and
ponds many of which have been subject to development and cannot be seen.

Potential Sources of Flooding
e Coastal/Tidal

e Main Rivers

e Surface water including direct rainfall (pluvial), ordinary watercourses, groundwater and
Surcharging drainage systems and sewers

Flood mitigation carried out
e Central and Anchorsholme Coast Protection

SuDS installation at Carlton Cemetery

Installation of gully monitoring

Sand Dunes
e Ongoing studies into flood events with Partners

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

e Superficial geology can influence surface water flood risk and in this area is a mixture
of marine and windblown sands, gravels and mudstone along the coast and glacial till
deposits.

e High groundwater levels in some localised areas.
e Local flooding is likely to be widespread but shallow with low velocity.

* In many cases flooding will be contained within the highway but may impact on access
and egress and travel in general.

e Drainage systems are less effective than in hillier areas as gradients are less and pipes
may be affected by siltation.

e The only main rivers is Bispham Dyke but Blackpool is flanked in the North by Wyre and
the River Wyre can impact Blackpool North in addition to Royals Brook Watercourse
in Wyre as they flow through and around Blackpool before discharging to the sea. As
a result, it is likely that some combined flooding will occur in the event of an extreme
rainfall event, with surface water and sewer flooding combining with either tidal or
fluvial flooding.

Pagle 75



Surface Water Flooding

Surface Water  LEVELEYS
Flooading

[ 3 335 e (110 30-year)

Ky
Clsssckpont sarcush =
sk of oot roonsugoce wner |

[ 1 P (20 100 year)

Figure 7: Blackpool Surface Water Flood Risk

LDOSETATE Lnm o s it 4

Case Study: Anchorsholme Coast Protection.

The £19 million Anchorsholme Coastal Protection Scheme provides coast protection in the
North of Blackpool. It was developed through the Fylde Peninsular Coastal programme
consisting of Blackpool, Wyre and Fylde Councils, working together in partnership with
principal contractor Balfour Beatty Civil Engineering Limited (BBCEL) and main funding
body the Environment Agency. The scheme built upon a wealth of learning from previous
schemes along the Fylde coast in particular the Cleveleys and Blackpool central schemes.
The physical elements of the scheme involved renewing 1km of failing sea-walls and
promenade whilst preserving the beach frontage to better protect over 4,500 properties
from coastal flooding from the Irish Sea. However the true value of the works is far
greater than property protection alone. It is an excellent example of using opportunities to
combine coast protection and regeneration. Working in Partnership with United Utilities,
(the coast protection scheme) together with United Utilities bathing water investment in
Anchorsholme Park and the local Community, provided the opportunity to combine these
two major investments and create and enhance the environmental, social and economic
opportunities in the Anchorsholme Blackpool Area.

The scheme demonstrates a broadening of the scope and vision of what coast defence
schemes can achieve for society. The interaction between the users and beneficiaries of the
new works in jointly developing a vision for the area in which the coastal defence scheme is
a catalyst for wider neighbourhood improvements through the development of high quality
public space formed a key element of the scheme.

Pag§576



Figure 8: Park and coast protection

Pa%e 77



Burnley

General Geography and Topography

The main urban areas are Burnley and Padiham.

Urban development advanced significantly during the industrial revolution as centres
for coal mining and cotton spinning expanded. These centres exploited the hydropower
available from the many watercourses.

These non-residential developments were constructed immediately alongside, and in
some cases, over watercourses. These former mill buildings have now been vacated,
reoccupied, redeveloped or demolished. Many sites have been replaced with residential
developments, which are more vulnerable to flood events.

Outside of the urban centres, there are small settlements within the foothills and valleys
and beyond these there is open moorland.

The topography consists of flat valley floors and rising hills to upland moorland.

Potential Sources of Flooding

Main Rivers

Ordinary watercourses
Reservoirs

Surface water
Groundwater

Surcharging sewers and drainage networks

Flood mitigation carried out

Padiham — flood risk management scheme (ongoing)
Lowerhouse Ln — drainage survey/repairs/improvements

Manchester Rd, Dunnockshaw — drainage survey/repairs/improvements

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

Areas of steep topography where direct run-off is likely to result in shallow high velocity
flooding. Flooding is likely to occur with little warning but likely to be short in duration.

Flooding of this kind can be hazardous to people and may be affected as a result of the

velocity of flows channelled down roads and around buildings. The shallow nature may

result in less risk to property.

Pag§778



e Minor watercourses within culverts in densely developed urban areas are a risk if there
was to be a collapse or blockage. This could result in deep, high velocity surface water
flows along the former natural course of the watercourse. Flooding may occur with little
warning and will be along a defined flow path. This may result in damage to properties
within the flow path. The velocity and depth will be hazardous to people.

e Areas of flatter topography, typically in valley bottoms or on river floodplains, are likely
to experience widespread flooding with localised areas of deep ponding. This flooding
occurs from direct run-off from steeper areas or as a result of surcharging or blocked
drainage systems. This type of flooding is less hazardous to people but may result in
higher levels of property damage.

e Complex interactions with watercourses, including Main Rivers are likely.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Case Study: Padiham Flood Risk Management Scheme

Situated alongside the River Calder and a smaller watercourse, Green Brook, Padiham
flooded significantly on 26/12/2015 when the River Calder reached a record water level
with 149 properties were reported as flooded. Flooding again occurred on 09/02/2020
during Storm Ciara. Water levels on the River Calder were lower than in 2015 and property
level resilience (e.g. floodgates) have been installed on buildings since the last floods. The
flooding in Padiham causes significant impacts to residential homes, businesses, public
buildings and infrastructure in the town.

Since the 2015 floods, the Environment Agency, Burnley Borough Council and partners

have been working together to develop proposals for a Padiham Flood Risk Management
Scheme. This includes flood walls and earth embankments as well as modifications to
highways. The proposals will better protect over 150 homes, businesses, public buildings and
key infrastructure in central Padiham. It will manage flood risk from the River Calder, Green
Brook and surface water.

Lowerhouse Ln — drainage survey/repairs/improvements

08/06/2016 — localized storm event caused internal flooding to approx.29 properties.
Lancashire County Council and United Utilities then carried out surveys, repairs and
improvements to the local drainage systems.

Manchester Rd, Dunnockshaw — drainage survey/repairs/improvements

26/12/2015 - 5 properties suffered from internal flooding from surface water sources, and
as a result property protection were installed by residents and highway improvements were
carried out.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Pa%e 79



Chorley

General Geography and Topography

The main urban centre is Chorley with smaller centres in Clayton le Woods, Whittle le
Woods, Adlington, Euxton, Buckshaw Village, Coppull, Croston and Eccleston. There are
other semi-rural communities around the district and large areas of farm land/open
countryside.

The district has two distinct types of topography. To the west of the M61 the area is
predominantly flat and to the east the topography rises gently at first but then more
steeply.

The settlements developed extensively during the industrial revolution with mills and
factories being constructed close to rivers. Over time these watercourses have been
culverted and canalised through the urban areas.

Overtime these industries have disappeared leaving poorly maintained, hidden culverts.

The excellent transport links have attracted new development both in terms of industry
and housing.

Potential Sources of Flooding

Main Rivers

Ordinary Watercourses
Canal

Reservoirs
Groundwater

Surcharging drainage systems and sewers

Mitigation projects

Croston Dam

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

The flat topography west of the M6 motorway is likely to experience widespread shallow
flooding which would result in disruption to people and services as a result of standing
water. It is unlikely that large number of properties would suffer from internal flooding.
Internal flooding may occur in localised low points where deeper flooding may occur.

Superficial Geology and general soil types include:

— Predominantly glacial till
— Localised fluvially deposited sands, silt gravels and peat deposits.
— Mainly peat over high ground in the east.

Pag§980



There are many land drains and ordinary watercourses that are culverted, reducing
capacity or introducing pinch points on drainage systems.

Overland flows of surface water run-off are not usual and where they do occur are likely
to be related to Ordinary Watercourse of Main Rivers where deeper and faster flowing
flood water may be encountered. This has potential to pose a greater hazard to people
and property. There is potential for flooding through the interaction of Main Rivers,
Ordinary Watercourse and sewers and surface water drainage systems. Flooding would
occur because Ordinary

Watercourse and field drains would be unable to discharge into Main Rivers.

Combined sewers (foul and surface water mixed in a single system) are likely to pose
a significant risk. Surcharging combined sewers can result in surface water becoming
contaminated with untreated sewage.

Historic culverts may have capacity issues or may be in poor condition. Flooding from
these watercourses represent a hazard as surcharging, blockage or collapse of a culvert
can result in deep, fast flowing flooding.

Flooding in the eastern part of the district is likely to be significantly different than that
seen in the west as a result of the steeper terrain. There are likely to be distinct flow-
paths and whilst flooding is expected to be less extensive run-off will be deeper and
fast flowing along distinct flow paths. This will present a greater hazard to people and
properties as flooding may occur with little or no warning.

Deeper flood depths will also result in more properties suffering internal flooding,
although in the steepest areas there is less concentrated development.

Flow-paths are likely to follow roads and other artificial paths. This will represent a
significant hazard to users of these routes.

Ordinary watercourse in the east of the district will likely have a flash response to
extreme events with water levels rising and also falling rapidly. This has a potential to
cause flooding downstream particularly in areas that are culverted.

Figure 9: Working in
partnership with Lancashire
and Chorley Councils
“Croston Dam” protects
400 homes and businesses
from flooding.




Fylde

General Geography and Topography

Fylde abuts the unitary authority of Blackpool.

The main urban settlement is along the coast at Lytham St Annes and inland Kirkham.
There are numerous smaller villages and hamlets spread across the district.

The area is predominantly flat. Due to the flat topography there are extensive networks
of land drains and ponds.

Potential Sources of Flooding

Coastal/Tidal
Main Rivers

Surface water including direct rainfall (pluvial), ordinary watercourses, groundwater and
Surcharging drainage systems and sewers

Flood mitigation carried out

Fylde Coast Protection scheme 2020

SUDS installation at Lytham Cemetery

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

Superficial geology can influence surface water flood risk and in this area is a mixture
of marine and windblown sands, gravels and mudstone along the coast and glacial till
deposits and peat alongside the River Ribble.

High groundwater levels in some localised areas.
Local flooding is likely to be widespread but shallow with low velocity.

In many cases flooding will be contained within the highway but may impact on access
and egress and travel in general.

Drainage systems are less effective than in hillier areas as gradients are less and pipes
may be affected by siltation.

Rural areas are likely to suffer extensive shallow flooding. Likely cause being the inability
of land drains and watercourses to cope with the large volumes of run-off generated.

Two Main Rivers, Liggard Brook and Whitehill Watercourse, flow through and around
Lytham St Annes before discharging to the sea. As a result, it is likely that some combined
flooding will occur in the event of an extreme rainfall event, with surface water and
sewer flooding combining with either tidal or fluvial flooding.

Pag§182



Case Study: Fylde Council SuDS Project

To reduce the waterlogging to the eastern extent of the cemetery and provide formal
memorial foundations with maintainable drainage and, to address the introduction of a new
visitor parking area (980m2) with additional access roads, utilising Sustainable Drainage
Systems.

The site is not formally drained and is therefore considered to be 100% permeable.
Generally, the site is Devensian Till overlying Singleton Mudstone. However, it is known that
there are pockets of wind-blown sand and peat on the site.

The increased area of hardstanding and access road resulted in an increase in surface water
runoff rates and volumes, discharge is controlled from the detention basin before passing
through an existing small wastewater treatment facility. Storage volume in the detention
basin was calculated as 344m3 for the 6hr, 1 in 100 year rainfall event plus 40% climate
change allowance.

The area of the proposed detention basin was discovered to have at its base granular
deposits thus some infiltration proved possible. Likewise, the proposed area of the visitor
parking also had a formation which allowed a permeable paved construction. Shallow swales
were constructed to three sides of the parking area to contain and channel any overflow to
green areas around the periphery.

Drainage beneath the memorial slabs comprised a half-perforated pipe, with crushed

stone no-fines media, wrapped in filter media, in the form of trench drains. Thus, providing
additional storage and filtration. Oversize carrier drains to the detention basin provide
additional online attenuation within the pipe network. The extent of the existing burial plots
throughout the site meant great care had to be taken during construction. The principle
drainage areas are indicated in red below.

Figure 10: Fylde Council SuDS




Hyndburn

General Geography and Topography
e There are a number of urbanised areas within Hyndburn with Accrington being the main
centre.

e Smaller centres are Rishton, Oswaldtwistle, Clayton le Moors, Great Harwood and Church
and these tend to lie within the foothills and valleys.

e Accrington is located in the upper reaches of the River Hyndburn catchment and the
topography is very steep. The area is heavily urbanised with high density terraced houses
and former mill buildings.

e The southern part of the district is mainly open moorland and part of Oswaldtwistle
Moor falls within the West Pennine Moors SSSI area.

Potential Sources of Flooding
e Main River

Ordinary Watercourses

Groundwater

Surcharging drainage systems and sewers

Culvert capacity or condition

Superficial Geology/ General Soil Types

e Underlying geology of limestones and millstones and coal although the superficial
geology is made up of mainly glacial deposits, sands and gravels.

e Inlow lying areas there is potential for high groundwater level.

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

e The topography means the area is at high risk of surface water flooding with high
velocity, shallow flooding of streets and widespread flooding of valley bottoms.

e Flash flooding is likely to represent a significant hazard.

e Historic culverts may have capacity issues or may be in poor condition. Flooding from

these watercourses represent a hazard as surcharging, blockage or collapse of a culvert

can result in deep, fast flowing flooding.

e Sewer flooding reflects higher population concentration but may also be linked to aging
sewer and drainage networks.

Pag§384



Lancaster

Recent mitigation from flooding

Morecambe Wave Wall

Potential Sources of Flooding

Coastal/Tidal
Main Rivers
Mill Race
Canal
Reservoirs

Surface water including direct rainfall (pluvial), ordinary watercourses, groundwater and
Surcharging drainage systems and sewers

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

The district has a number of large distinct areas of residence and employment, Lancaster,
including Galgate and South Lancaster area, Morecambe/Heysham Carnforth and
Halton.

There are numerous other semi-rural and rural villages many of which have developed
along the River Lune and other watercourses.

The district is split divided by the M6/A6/West Coast main line and Lancaster Canal
corridors. To the east are mainly villages to the west the larger population.

The topography of the area is characterised by higher ground of the Forest of Bowland
and Yorkshire Dales to the east, and the lower-lying floodplain to the west.

Morecambe and Heysham are likely to experience widespread shallow flooding due to
the flat topography with less effective drainage systems in comparison to the more hillier
locations. Drainage outfalls may suffer from tide-lock. This could cause surcharging and
blockage of drains and ordinary watercourses.

Lancaster and surrounding areas are likely to experience widespread flooding of flat
areas alongside the River Lune, River Condor and River Keer with high amounts of run-off

along key flow paths.

In areas with steeper topography there will be distinct flow paths. Flooding along these
will be deeper and faster with ponding at low-points or pinch-points.

There is flood risk associated with the River Keer to the North of the District around
Carnforth and Wenning and the associated villages

Pagle 85



e The centre of Lancaster is at significant risk from surface water flooding from surface
water runoff and flooding from drainage systems as are Galgate from the river condor,
burrowbeck and Halton from the Lune.

e The interactions of surface water drainage with water levels in Main Rivers and the sea
are likely to be complex and will have a significant impact on flood risk in many areas.

e In flat areas the drainage of flood waters will be predominantly reliant on artificial
drainage systems. These systems may be subject to silting, running full or tide-locking.

Therefore flooding could be more prolonged.

e There are many watercourses within the study area and a blockage or collapse could
result in flooding at unexpected locations.

e Low-lying coastal areas have a potential for high groundwater levels.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Case Study: Morecambe Wave reflection Wall

Pag§586



Figure 11: Case study Morecambe wave reflection wall

Pa%e 87



Pendle

General Geography and Topography
e The urban areas are Nelson and Colne with smaller settlements of Brierfield,
Barnoldswick, Earby and Trawden.

e The landscape is diverse with historic industrialisation in the urban areas. The smaller
settlements tend to be located within the foothills and valleys. Beyond the valleys there
is upland farmland and moorland.

Potential Sources of Flooding
e Main Rivers

e Ordinary Watercourses
e Surface water

e Groundwater
Mitigation projects

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

e Areas of steep topography where direct run-off is likely to result in shallow high velocity
flooding. Flooding is likely to occur with little warning but likely to be short in duration.
Flooding of this kind can be hazardous to people and may be affected as a result of the
velocity of flows channelled down roads.

e Minor watercourses within culverts in densely developed urban areas are a risk if there
was to be a collapse or blockage. This could result in deep, high velocity surface water
flows along the former natural course of the watercourse. Flooding may occur with little
warning and will be along a defined flow path. This may result in damage to properties
within the flow path. The velocity and depth will be hazardous to people.

e Areas of flatter topography, typically in valley bottoms or on river floodplains, are likely
to experience widespread flooding with localised areas of deep ponding. This flooding
occurs from direct run-off from steeper areas or as a result of surcharging or blocked
drainage systems. This type of flooding is less hazardous to people but may result in
higher levels of property damage.

e Inlow lying areas there is a potential for high ground water which could lead to flooding
in localised low points such as road cuttings, basements and on open land.

Pag§788



Preston

General Geography and Topography

Preston urban area is built across several watercourse catchments and the topography of
these influence surface water flood risk across the area.

Preston has become increasingly urbanised with many of the previously rural outskirt
locations becoming developed with open fields with land drains and ditches being
replaced with piped systems

Potential Sources of Flooding

Coastal/Tidal
Main Rivers
Canal

Surface water including direct rainfall (pluvial), ordinary watercourses, groundwater and
Surcharging drainage systems and sewers

Mitigation Projects

Preston South Ribble Proposed Scheme
Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

The Preston urban area is built across several watercourse catchments. The drainage
system within the centre of Preston is mainly culverted and historic; much of the system
is made up of combined sewers. Surface water flooding can occur during periods of
heavy rainfall.

Preston’s industrial history has resulted in man-made flow-paths. The largest is the
former Longridge railway line which runs from Longridge (Ribble Valley), approximately
10km to the north-east of Preston, to join the West Coast Main Line immediately to the
north of Preston railway station. This man-made feature has the potential to act as a
highly efficient “watercourse” for surface water flows, channelling flooding into Preston
City Centre. As this dis-used railway line connects to the West Coast Main Line route
which could potentially flood this route.

Pa%e 89



Case Study: Combined Preston and South Ribble mitigation scheme

The original defences were built intermittently from the 1920s to 1980s and are coming to
the end of their life, they need repairing or replacing and ideally brought up to a 75 year
standard of protection. The aim of the scheme is to improve the protection to over 4800
business and residential properties by raising the existing defences and building new walls
to protect properties within the scheme. Over 200 homes and businesses flooded on boxing
day, this was a near miss for other properties and businesses as the event only just missed
NEAP high tides.

rapEsan Uniken

Preston & South Ribble Scheme e e (& @

Preston : Riverside

Preston - Riverside: Replacement of the existing concrete wall (left), with a new
cancrete wall with glass panels on top (right), running on the river side of the road in

front of the Continental Public House restaurant.

Existing Wall Height: 0.90 - 1.09m

Proposed Wall Height: 1.78 — 2.53m (incl. 800mm high glass panel)
Official

Figure 12: Combined Preston and South Ribble mitigation scheme

Pag§990



Ribble Valley

General Geography and Topography
e The district is predominantly rural and dedicated to farming. However, there are large
settlements in Longridge, Wilpshire and Whalley with Clitheroe being the main town.

e Villages are historically farming communities and as such have developed around
ordinary watercourses and it is not uncommon to see buildings constructed (historically)
immediately adjacent to a watercourse.

e Extensive networks of ordinary watercourses transfer water rapidly from hillsides to river
valleys. In villages many of these watercourses have been culverted.

e The River Ribble is a relatively narrow floodplain within the wider valley bottom.
Clitheroe is built on a series of flat or gently sloping terraces to the River Ribble.

e River Hodder has varying topography with areas of wider valley bottoms with
constrained steeper channels.

e Bolton by Bowland has a unique geomorphology of particular note upstream it has
glacial terraces which make it highly responsive to rainfall as water runs off quickly with
nowhere to go, but below the village it widens significantly with a large flood plain as it
approaches the confluence with the Ribble.

e The Hodder Valley is similar to Bolton by Bowland.

The Ribble Valley also picks up the lower end of the River Calder

Potential Sources of Flooding
e Main Rivers

e Reservoirs
e Surface water including direct rainfall (pluvial), ordinary watercourses, Surcharging
drainage systems and sewers and groundwater (groundwater is not considered a

significant risk due to the steep topography)

Mitigation Projects
e Strategic Plan for Whalley

Pa%e 91



Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

The superficial geology is relatively uniform. The majority of the area is covered by glacial
till deposits. Within close proximity of the main rivers there are fluvial deposits of sands,
gravels, silts and river terrace deposits.

Till deposits often contain large amounts of clay and other relatively impermeable
material.

Flood risk is not likely to be uniform across the district footprint.

Flooding would typically be varied across the area with steeper areas being characterised
by flooding along distinct flow-paths, whilst flatter areas would experience more
widespread, shallow surface water ponding.

Flood risk is highly localised because of the distributed nature of urban development.
Damages are likely to be localised and occur in small clusters across the district footprint.

Flooding in some areas is likely to pose a significant hazard particularly where major
flow-paths or ordinary watercourse flow through urban areas or along busy transport
routes.

The Forest of Bowland has steep topography and large numbers of ordinary watercourse.
Steep areas tend to produce surface water events that are characterised by shallow

but high velocity flows, often concentrated within well-defined flow-paths. The onset is
short, with a small amount of time between the rainfall event and generation of surface
flows. The rapid nature makes it difficult to react to incidents.

Flood risk in flatter parts do not produce the high velocity flows and instead suffer from
widespread, shallow flooding. Concentration of flood water into localised low points
can result in significant depths, particularly if a drainage system becomes blocked or
surcharged. Due to the lack of gradient flooding can be prolonged.

Many watercourses within villages and larger settlements have been culverted as
settlements have expanded. This has introduced pinch points which can increase the risk
of flooding in extreme events.

In some areas the combination of impermeable superficial geology and steep topography

increases the risk from surface water run-off as little rainfall is likely to infiltrate into the
ground.

Pag§192



Rossendale

General Geography and Topography
e The district is a combination of large towns, Bacup, Haslingden and Rawtenstall, and
small former mill towns centred on the valley of the River Irwell, as well as rural villages.

e The steep hills, narrow valleys and wooded ravines change to lowland pastures to the
south.

Potential Sources of Flooding
e Main Rivers

Ordinary watercourses

e Reservoirs

Surface water

Groundwater

Surcharging sewers and drainage networks

Mitigation Projects
e |rwell Vale - flood risk management scheme (ongoing)

e Strongstry - flood risk management scheme (ongoing)

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)
e Long history of flooding in these upper reaches of the Irwell catchment, to which the
majority of the land drains.

e Surface water flooding has been regularly experienced and levels in the watercourses rise
rapidly in response to rainfall events.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Case Study
Irwell Vale - Flood risk management scheme

e 26/12/2015 & 09/02/2020 — approx. 60 properties suffered from internal flooding during
both storm events from surface water and main river sources.

e Lancashire County Council installed a permanent pump to deal with surface water issues
in the section of the village that lays south of the River Irwell.

e Since the 2015 floods, the Environment Agency and Lancashire County Council have been
working together to develop proposals for a flood risk management scheme.

Pa%e 93



Strongstry - Flood risk management scheme

e 26/12/2015 & 09/02/2020 — approx. 20 to 30 properties suffered from internal flooding
during both storm events from surface water and main river sources.

e Since the 2015 floods, the Environment Agency and Lancashire County Council have been
working together to develop proposals for a flood risk management scheme.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Pag§394



South Ribble

General Geography and Topography

e The main urban settlements are Leyland, Penwortham, Walton le Dale and Bamber
Bridge. Outside of these areas there are numerous rural settlements and farmland.

e The topography is predominantly flat.

Potential Sources of Flooding
e Tidal

Main Rivers

Surface water including direct rainfall (pluvial)

Ordinary Watercourses

Groundwater

Surcharging drainage systems and sewers combined

Superficial Geology/General Soil Types

e The superficial geology of the area is relatively uniform. The majority of the area is
covered by glacial deposits of till and localised deposits of fluvially deposited sands, silt
gravels and peat deposits.

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

e Flooding is likely to be shallow but widespread leading to disruption. Internal property
flooding is less likely but flooding contained within the highway or on land surrounding
properties is more likely. Flooding may be prolonged and could be contaminated by foul
sewerage where sewers are surcharged or tide locked.

e Low-lying western areas have potential for high groundwater levels, evidence by
presence of ponds and network of land drains. High groundwater levels can cause
flooding in localised low points such as road cuttings, basements or open land following
extreme rainfall events.

e There are numerous Ordinary watercourses across the area many of which are culverted.
Culverting can reduce capacity or introduce pinch points on drainage systems. Ordinary
watercourses may be unable to discharge into Main River during an extreme event, when
river levels are high. This may cause watercourses to back up or overtop.

e Interaction of surface water flooding with Main Rivers (combined flooding) is likely to be
a key feature of local flood risk.

e Some Ordinary Watercourses may be poorly maintained and culverts and structures may
be in a state of disrepair. The cost of carrying out remedial works can be high and may
not be able to be met by the riparian landowner.

Pa&e 95



Combined Preston and South Ribble mitigation scheme:

The original defences were built intermittently from the 1920s to 1980s and are coming to
the end of their life, they need repairing or replacing and ideally brought up to a 75 year
standard of protection. The aim of the scheme is to improve the protection to over 4800
business and residential properties by raising the existing defences and building new walls
to protect properties within the scheme. Over 200 homes and businesses flooded on Boxing
Day, this was a near miss for other properties and businesses as the event only just missed

NEAP high tides.

Figure 13: Combined Preston and South Ribble mitigation scheme

Pag§596

Foww Ml Lara -ﬂ"h 4 l + -
T . . T "’
™ -
Legend
== Concrete Wall
| === Embankment
' | Areas at risk from flooding
L]
—
(.l’ﬂv
i f\-f"
' o 4
ve Area 5:
‘g | Higher Walton
— i . 0 500 1000 1500 m
iy % [ — —
: | - 3 i m b E—— L(fj
§ % l - ~acobs Lﬂmﬁ r -~
) % \§ i w1 | = Europaan Union
[ | o C epeon Rayers
3 f "\, P \% Project : Preston and South Ribble Flood Risk
'3 § - \\ \ Management Scheme
d g C!'.‘-.\ Drawing: Proposed Flood Defences
i x> . K\ Location: Preston and South Ribble
) e
| ' A * ¥ N
- L | Dramen: By : 54 Dete : 15-05- 2000
A . Checied by: WP Oute: 15-09-2000
no o calt Approwed By: W Date: 15-05-2000
. W oy
A OeOgR RSN ge ey 'JL_____.*_.‘- ’_'- -JAC: e POL
\ > ol ———— 1:25000 ©A4
H ‘/ o ,,,4 Contsing 05 data © Crown copyright snd database right 2020.



West Lancashire

General Geography and Topography

The main urban centres are Skelmersdale, Aughton, Ormskirk, Hesketh Bank and
Burscough.

Much of West Lancashire is relatively flat and gently rolling coastal plain and flat
mossland situated less than 10m above sea level. However, in the east of the borough
the land begins to rise to form the Upholland Ridge which extends toward the M6
and the uplands of south Lancashire beyond. More centrally, the land rises steeply
out of Ormskirk to form localised high ground, before falling gently away toward the
surrounding flatter areas to the south, east and west.

Outside of the urban areas there are small rural communities surrounded mainly by
arable land. On this land there are numerous land drainage networks and ponds. The
complex network of raised drainage ditches and dykes is a reminder of the area’s
heritage of wetland reclamation.

Potential Sources of Flooding

Canal

Reservoirs

Railway

Tidal

Main River/Trunk drains
Ordinary Watercourses
Land drains

Pump failure

Sewer capacity
Surcharging drainage

Groundwater

Pa%e 97



Superficial Geology/ General Soil Types

Wind blown sands
Sandstone
Mudstone

Clay deposits

Peat deposits

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

There would be widespread flooding across the coastal plain and mossland areas. The
lack of natural gradient means that drainage is less effective than in hillier areas and
pipes are more likely to be affected by siltation.

Many drainage systems are likely to be reliant on pumping networks to discharge
effectively. Failure of these pumps, or blocked drainage systems, is likely to represent a
significant flood risk.

In the urban areas flooding would likely be shallow with low velocity. Deeper flooding
will occur at localised low points. Flooding is unlikely to represent a serious hazard to
people but may affect some properties internally.

In Ormskirk the Main River has a significant flood plain and has the potential to flood
large numbers of residential properties. There are also a large number of culverted
watercourses which may have capacity or unknown defects which could lead to flooding.

In Skelmersdale there is likely to be extensive flooding of pedestrian walkways and
underpasses below the natural ground level. These maybe affected by deep fast flowing
flood water and represent a significant hazard to people.

Both Parbold and Appley Bridge are situated on the banks of the same Main River with
land rising steeply to the east and north, respectively. These maybe affected by fast
flowing flood water and each has the potential to suffer flooding to large numbers of
residential properties.

There are widespread issues with the capacity of drainage systems across West
Lancashire. This is the case within Burscough and Hesketh Bank where an extreme
rainfall event is likely to overwhelm the surface water drainage system and any pumping
infrastructure.

There are many land drains and Ordinary Watercourses across West Lancashire and these

are likely to represent a significant flood risk due to siltation, lack of maintenance and
unconsented development.

Pag§798



e The interaction of surface water with Main Rivers is likely to influence flooding
characteristics in many areas. This is particularly true where surface water drainage
outfalls into Main Rivers and maybe affected by tide locking or river levels. Due to the flat
topography this could have wide-ranging impacts.

* i "a .

¥ #3173 [ ;
}\iﬁnihﬁ“- w

5
e

N
a= ey

Risk of Flooding
from Surface Water

& Crawn Copyright. All Rights Resarsed.
Liceniea Ma. 100024309, West Lancashire Berough Couneil. 2019 |

Figure 14: Flood risks in West Lancashire

Pa%e 99



Wyre

General Geography and Topography

The district’s main urban areas are Fleetwood, Thornton-Cleveleys, Poulton le Fylde and
Garstang.

The district is predominantly flat, rising in the east of the district towards the upland
areas of central and eastern Lancashire.

Wyre abuts the unitary authority of Blackpool and is a mixture of coastal, estuary, semi-
rural and rural areas with smaller settlements having developed along the River Wyre
and other watercourse.

Due to the generally flat topography there are extensive networks of land drains
and ponds. These are used to keep the mainly arable land drained and suitable for
agriculture.

Potential Sources of Flooding

Coastal/Tidal
Main Rivers
Canals
Reservoirs

Surface water including direct rainfall (pluvial), ordinary watercourses, groundwater and
Surcharging drainage systems and sewers

Mitigation projects

Rossall coast Defence

Church Town Community Action

Known Risks (during a major rainfall event)

Superficial geology can influence surface water flood risk and in this area is a mixture of
sands, gravels and mudstone along the coast and glacial till deposits and peat alongside
the River Wyre

Wyre District

Interaction of surface water drainage with main Rivers, the sea and ordinary watercourse
are likely to be complex.

Drainage in many areas is likely to be reliant upon outflow into Main Rivers and then into
the sea. Prolonged high flow conditions with the Main River can therefore significantly
increase the risk of flooding from drains and prolong flooding for long periods after an
extreme rainfall event.

Page 5]900



e Due to the proximity of Blackpool Unitary Authority and the flat nature of the topography,
many of the sewerage and other drainage networks encompass land within Blackpool or
flow into Blackpool to discharge. As a result of this flooding within Thornton-Cleveleys
and Poulton-le-Fylde will be cross-boundary in nature

Case Study: Rossall Coast Protection

The £63million Rossall Coastal Defence Scheme (Figure 1) was opened on the 1st June 2018.
It was developed through the Fylde Peninsular Coastal programme consisting of Blackpool,
Wyre and Fylde Councils, working together in partnership with principal contractor Balfour
Beatty Civil Engineering Limited (BBCEL) and main funding body the Environment Agency.
The scheme built upon a wealth of learning from previous schemes along the Fylde coast

in particular the Cleveleys and Blackpool central schemes. The physical elements of the
scheme involved renewing 2kms of failing sea-walls and promenade whilst preserving the
beach frontage to better protect over 7,500 properties from coastal flooding from the Irish
Sea. However the true value of the works is far greater than property protection alone. This
includes the value added to communities, the environment and the local economy by linking
engineering to social, economic and environmental improvement.

The scheme demonstrates a broadening of the scope and vision of what coast defence
schemes can achieve for society. The interaction between the users and beneficiaries of the
new works in jointly developing a vision for the area in which the coastal defence scheme is
a catalyst for wider neighbourhood improvements through the development of high quality
public space formed a key element of the scheme.

Figure 13: Rossall Coastal Defences Before & After

The open promenade allows for wide areas for cycling, running and taking in the ever
changing sea views as well as open access to the sea for other recreational activities.

Pag)e 101



[ ] [ ]
4. Opportunities
New FCERM Investment Programme 2021 -2027
In the 2020 budget the Government committed expenditure of £5.2b to flood and coastal
risk management. The proposed allocation in 2021 — 2027 for Lancashire is an investment of
£230m to better protect 32,000 properties from coastal erosion and surface water flooding.
To allocate investment opportunities for the 2021 — 2027 investment programme used the
information contained in strategies e.g. Coastal Strategies and Shoreline management plans

and those that have already gone through a process as described below.

This schematic describes how studies and schemes will be prioritised.

High level investigations, looking at the risk of
5trategi|: Studies flooding over a wide area such as a region.

Investigations aimed at looking at towns and specific
) areas that are perceived to be at risk based an
Intermediate level evidence from Strategic Studies or other resources.

studies

Focused studies addressing a specific flooding issue
with a view to obtaining a details understanding of
Detailed the problem and the benefits and costs of options to

investigatinns reduce the flood risk

Works on the ground to reduce flood risk such as

flood embankments, flood relief channels, debris
screens, efc.

Easy Wins

Figure 16: How studies and schemes will be prioritised.

Given the size of Lancashire, the extent of local flood risk and our limited budgets, it is
not practical to attempt to implement all the required works or studies across the whole
of Lancashire in the short term, there is acceptance that we cannot invest in all areas to
prevent flooding but we can address resilience and adaptation measures in all places

It is, therefore, necessary to prioritise the potential actions and target resources towards the
most significant risks and where interventions can offer the best value for money.

It is important that this prioritisation remains flexible to account for emerging opportunities
and local and wider priorities. Information on past flooding and future risk has been

Page 61102



continually assessed since the LLFA’'s commenced their roles in 2010. This information will
assist in the future prioritisation of schemes and provide future opportunities for Lancashire.

For projects that cannot be justified through the process above or do not meet the criteria
set out by the Environment Grant in aid process we will work with partners to seek
opportunities for resilience measures and or innovative methods of flood risk management .

There are new and emerging investment opportunities that have been demonstrated
particularly by our partners. The Wyre Investment Readiness Project that brings together
investment from United Utilities, Environment Agency, Rivers trust and private investors.
This proposed Wyre Catchment NFM will provide habitat creation, water quality
improvements, carbon sequestration, social impact and innovative investment and opens up
the opportunity for further 2021 — 2027 investment in Lancashire.

The delivery of multiple benefits from flood and coastal schemes

In the 2015-2021 FCERM programme of works there was a £145m of investment delivering
projects across Lancashire to provide protection to 28335 properties. These schemes

also provided many additional benefits to communities and business. The coast protection
schemes in Blackpool, Fylde Morecambe and Wyre saw an investment of £115m but with
multiple benefits and protection to 23,000 properties.

These schemes demonstrated the multiple benefits of linking engineering, economic and
environmental improvements.

All five schemes have provided the primary protection to people and place but also created
an environment that provides amongst many benefits, multiple health benefits, providing
health walks, habitat creaton, horticultural therapy, and outdoor schools.

The investment in flood protection has also proved to provide confidence in investment
partners enabling regeneration in many areas.

This opportunity will be driven in the 2021 — 2027 investment period, working with partners
to expand and deliver multiple benefits through flood and coastal schemes.

Figure 17: Blackpool and Fylde Sand Dunes
Pa&e 103



Over the last 3 years, the UK’s rarest lizard has been successfully reintroduced back to the
Fylde Sand Dunes after coastal protection works to extend and improve the sand dune
habitat made such a release programme possible. Captive bred sand lizards have been
released as part of a long-term project to restore the species status and historic range within
the UK. This is now the most northerly site in England and a fantastic example of nature
recovery in action and organisations working together and sharing expertise.

Opportunities to manage local flood risks through development, as appropriate (SuDS)
Under its Business Plan, the North West Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (RFCC)
has set up a Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) Task Group to support Local Planning
Authorities and Flood Risk Management Authorities understand the implications of and
prepare for the introduction of new sewer adoption code, Design and Construction
Guidance (DCG), from 1 April 2020.

The Lancashire Strategic Partnership have identified this as a huge opportunity to ensure all
Local Authorities adopt the SuDS pro-forma and that planning authorities together with their
lead local flood authority officers guide and encourage developers to implement suitable
suds solutions in all developments in Lancashire.

Making the most of our water by integrating it within urban design and regeneration
opportunities

The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England recognises
that “every place is different” and we need to maximize opportunities for each place. In
some areas there is an opportunity particularly where existing or new open water bodies
can be utilized for flood resilience and as a recreation provision.

Lancashire has demonstrated by its £115m investment in coast protection schemes how
flood and coast protection can provide regeneration opportunities, a boost to the economy
and generate investment.

Defra define “Natural Capital is the sum of our ecosystems, species, freshwater, land soils,
minerals, our air and our seas. These are all elements of nature that either directly or
indirectly bring value to people and the country at large. They do this in many ways but
chiefly by providing us with food, clean air and water, wildlife, energy wood, recreation and
protection from hazards.”

We have the opportunity to make the most of our water by integrating into design for
natural capital gain.

Page 6]304


https://www.water.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Appendix-C-to-draft-sewerage-Sector-Guidance-Design-and-Construction-Guidance.pdf
https://www.water.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Appendix-C-to-draft-sewerage-Sector-Guidance-Design-and-Construction-Guidance.pdf

Figure 18: Carleton Crem Suds plan

Figure 19: SuDS application Carelton Cemetery, Blackpool

Pagle 105



Catchment based approach/ Natural Flood Risk Management/Nature Based Solutions

In certain circumstances working with natural processes can help reduce the impact of
flooding. Examples of this may be tree planting, river bank restoration or storing water
temporarily on open land. We should not expect that these measures alone will offer
100% protection to areas of greatest risk or during the most significant flood events but
good integrated flood management will see these measures incorporated alongside more
traditional measures, where appropriate.

We will develop a deeper understanding of this type of solution and work with multiagency
partners and voluntary organisations and provide integrated infrastructure resilience using
innovative Nature Based Solutions (NBS) and infrastructure techniques to reduce cost to,
and maximise benefit for, communities and the environment.

Case Study: Claver Hill Natural Flood Management Scheme

The Claver Hill Natural Flood management scheme was constructed in 2020. It comprises a
series of small ponds to slow the flow of water off the site, a reedbed to reduce any pollution
in the flow, and a balancing pond to create a habitat for wildlife and a resource for the
Community. This Community Based project also provides a working allotment and food hub.

Figure 20: Claver Hill Natural Flood Management Project

Page %06



Work towards a climate resilient highway network (Smart Monitoring & SuDS)

During many of the recent storm events Lancashire has experience disruption on its
highways due to flooding this has also caused significant damage to infrastructure and
disruption to communities and business.

Lancashire with its Partners and Developers can mitigate flooding to highway through
planning policy and evidence set out in Local Plans and Strategic Flood Risk Assessments
(SFRA) ensuring development is regulated to provide protection from flooding from new
development. In areas of development, Strategic Flood Risk Assessments to evaluate flood
risk from development together with strong planning controls are in place to provide flood
protection.

Lancashire will use this opportunity to ensure suitable sustainable drainage systems are
included in the design of new roads and retrofitted in existing areas that would benefit from
this solution to flooding.

Additional measures of planting of trees and grass verges to increase water infiltration
provide also provide an opportunity to provide a climate resilient and a sustainable
environment.

The introduction of digital monitoring provides an opportunity for early intervention in times
of flood. An example of this is the introduction of gully sensors in some parts of Lancashire.

Expansion of the Flood Hub
The Flood Hub has been funded by the Regional Flood and Coastal Committee it is unique as
it is the only single point of access supporting communities across the North West.

The Flood Hub provides guidance to businesses and communities across Lancashire
providing information and guidance on flood resilience. The Flood Hub provides interactive
maps and information of flood schemes.

The Flood Hub provides further opportunity to create a dedicated Lancashire resource
sharing and dissemination hub for the public, community groups and FLAGs, within the
existing innovative Flood Hub, to maintain and increase action. In particular opportunities to
work with partners on innovative digital flood monitoring solutions.

Paé%e 107


https://thefloodhub.co.uk/

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

The Flood Hub

The Flood Hub working with its partners and communities can provide valuable information
by measuring the benefits of schemes such as the Claver Hill and White Carr Lane described
below, both for water volume management and water quality management so that the
benefits can be understood and shared with partners. The data collected would then inform
the design of other similar schemes across Lancashire.

Where future schemes were planned, comprehensive information would allow the
completion of benefit: cost analyses based on proven and quantified benefits. Because
Claver Hill is run by local volunteers, any intervention would be designed with them, and
partly by them, so that they can operate the equipment and gather the data themselves.
This will provide learning opportunities for volunteers, skills training, and project work with
the local Schools. The suggested measurement & management scheme would include:

e Rainfall gauging on-site;

e Level measurement in the ponds & the lake;

e Pumping capability to allow water to be pumped from the lake to lower the level in
advance of a prevailing storm;

e Pumping capacity to allow water to be pumped from the Brook into the lake in advance
of a prevailing drought;

e Water quality monitoring upstream and downstream of the reedbed;

e ‘Smart’ control systems to link the information together and to provide a visual
‘dashboard’ for volunteers to see, and

e A data management spreadsheet/software.

Any equipment installed would be as innocuous as possible and would be designed so
that it does not disturb the wildlife, or detract from the calm, green environment that the
Community have created.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Management through development

Development of land can have a significant impact on the management of flood risk, in
Lancashire we have an opportunity through our role as a statutory consultee to control
the impact of Planning and Development by the use of planning conditions and planning
enforcement.

To assist in this process Lancashire operate a pre-application service for flood risk and land
drainage consents. This service provides a developer with advice in advance of the formal
application to the LPA to state evidence requirements, comments on initial proposals,

site constraints and land drainage consent advice (Land Drainage Act 1991) as consenting
can impact on site layout. Providing a much need opportunity to influence the impact of
development and managing the risk of flooding.

Page 61708



An excellent example of working together with developers is described in the case study.

P R

=3

Figure 21: White Carr Lane Wetland creation, September 2021

Case Study: White Carr Lane River and Floodplain Restoration Project

Following an invitation onto the Wyre Making Space for Water Group in 2019, the Wyre
Rivers Trust have been working with the four local flood risk management authorities;
Lancashire County Council (Lead Local Flood Authority), Environment Agency, United Utilities
and Wyre Council. Much of this work has been focussed on Thornton, which has over 3000
houses at risk of surface water and fluvial flooding, along with 10,000 + houses at risk from
coastal flooding.

Initial conversations were promising, and a morning of visits to sites with potential for the
delivery of urban natural flood risk management led to an opportunity arising. A former
government site at Norcross which is being redeveloped for housing was visited and the
developer was very interested in the delivery of flood risk management works which
went above and beyond the statutory requirement. We asked if they would consider re-
meandering a section of Royles Brook which was historically straightened, disconnecting
the flood plain and leaving a lifeless trapezoidal channel. The answer was yes, and we
immediately set to work.

Pag&e 109



The aims of the project were to store water at the site during times of peak flow for around
12-18 hours, thus creating additional capacity within Royles Brook. This is important as it
will allow local surface water drains to discharge into the brook for longer during periods
of heavy rain, reducing the risk of surface water flooding in and around White Carr Lane. It
will also store water upstream of Thornton, allowing other watercourses and surface water
drains in Thornton to discharge. The works will also reduce the amount of surface water
which finds its way into foul sewers, ensuring that capacity is retained within the United
Utilities network.

Working closely with Wyre Council and using robust formulae we designed a new channel
based upon the amount of water which can be held within the existing channel when

it is full. The new re-meandered channel is around 7m wide along its 250m length, it

also features a number of meanders and areas of varying depth to ensure that natural
morphological processes can take place within the channel.

The creation of the channel began in November 2019 and was completed before Christmas,
we then had to apply for permits to connect the channel to Royles Brook, thus allowing it to
store water in times of peak flow. It is expected that the channel will store around 1,300m3
of water, at the same time it will act as a silt trap, reducing the issue of siltation in local
culverts. The connections to the channel were completed in September 2020 along with a
large wetland area, that will store an additional 350m3 of flood water. Along with benefits
for the reduction of flood risk, the project has a wide array of other benefits, the creation of
floodplain wetland will support a wide variety of species of flora and fauna, the wetland and
channel will also capture silt, removing it from the watercourse and improving water quality.
The reconnected floodplain will also store water itself, potentially storing an extra 1000m3
of water during flood events.

The value of using natural solutions to reduce flood risk is many fold, the solutions are
resilient to change, sustainable and offer excellent value for money. They also provide a wide
range of benefits that go above and beyond a typical traditional flood risk project. Because
of the heavily modified nature of our environment and more the more extreme weather
patterns seen due to climate change, they do not offer a silver bullet to reducing flood risk,
in most cases they act to augment and increase the resilience of traditional solutions and

to extend their design life by reducing the number of times that they are called in to action
throughout a typical year.

The project was completed in September 2020 and will be planted with a wide range of
native wetland plants in Spring 2021. It is expected that around 3000m3 of storage will be
created at the site following the completion of phase two, which will see the reconnection
of a paleochannel which runs through the site. We also expect to see reductions of FIO’s
such as E.coli and reductions in the concentrations of nutrients and other contaminants
which enter the wetland complex. The wetlands will also have a wide range of benefits for
local flora and fauna, supporting a wide range of species through creating a mix of habitats
by direct intervention and benign neglect. Furthermore, the wetlands will act to sequester
large amounts of carbon, helping to combat climate change. The wetlands will be subject to
regular monitoring, allowing the Wyre Rivers Trust, Wyre Waters Catchment Partnership and
local communities to assess the wide range of ecosystem services that these wetlands will
provide.

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Page 61910



Influencing regional governance and national thinking
Lancashire has developed a strong Partnership and grasps the opportunity to influence
governance and national thinking through its proposed innovative resilience proposals.

Lancashire’s recent involvement in shaping the SuDS pro-forma and The Flood Hub are
excellent examples of the strength to cease this opportunity to further influence regional
governance and national thinking.

By developing a Lancashire wide policy review to produce recommendations that address
the three key policy areas, and focus on facilitating ongoing innovative working to see long
lasting innovation, and delivery of resilience to ensure long-term programmes, through
agriculture, new developments and re-development improving urban areas flood resilience.
For example, enabling developments to deliver offsite Flood Risk Management to protect
both proposed developments and other existing communities

Innovative Partnership Working and Potential for Lancashire Devolution

Through the innovative partnership, and wider associated beneficiaries, Lancashire are
proposing in some areas to set up innovative investment models & projects to support multi-
benefit and multi layered resilience delivery learning from the Wyre Investment Readiness
Project described above.

We would like to do this, if successful, through the innovative resilience funding bid that
Lancashire submitted to the Environment Agency in January 2021.

If successful the Innovative resilience bid provides for three areas of innovative resilience,
integrated water solutions, nature based solutions and innovative investment to better

protect 2000 properties.

A strong partnership has been formed with multiple organisations across Lancashire and this
partnership would expand into communities and integrate flood forums.

This strategy recognises the potential proposals for Lancashire Devolution and as
Partnerships have formed across Lancashire whilst we recognise districts may change, water
does not recognise boundaries and we would continue to maximise the opportunities of
cross boundary and Partnership working.

Pa%e 111



5. Our Vision for Lancashire

By 2027, Lancashire will be a flood resilient place responsive to risks,
challenges and opportunities supporting a sustainable future for the people
of Lancashire.

Lancashire LLFAs will work collaboratively with partner flood risk management authorities,
individuals, communities and organisations to reduce local flooding. We will achieve this
through the vision and themes set out in this strategy, under which we will deliver our
objectives.

The LLFAs will, through their flood and coastal erosion activities, manage the local risk to
people and property through the six key themes set out below. Our objectives will sit under
each of these themes, and the delivery of objectives will be monitored through our Business
Plan which is appended to this Strategy.

Theme 1. Delivering Effective Flood Risk Management Locally

We will review and develop updated policies and procedures to ensure compliance with
new and revised legislation, national policies, standards and guidance. In doing so we will
incorporate lessons learnt since the adoption of we adopted our previous Local Flood Risk
Management Strategy.

Theme 2. Understanding our Local Risks and Challenges

We will continue to build on our understanding of local risks of flooding by working with our
partners organisations and communities to identify the causes and effects of local flooding.

We will take actions to better understand and communicate to our affected communities the
challenges which complicate our efforts to address local flood risks.

Wherever possible, we will bid for and procure mapping and modelling works to continually
improve our understanding of flood risks.

Theme 3. Supporting Sustainable Flood Resilient Development

We will ensure that guiding principles for sustainable development are applied and
inappropriate development is avoided in existing and future areas at risk of flooding and
coastal erosion while elsewhere, carefully managing other land to avoid increasing the risks.
We will work with our Local Planning Authorities to ensure Local Plans fully take account

of flood risks and have policies in place which manage these risks and make sure that all
developments take account of them.

Page 71112



Theme 4. Improving Engagement with our Flood Family

We will continually improve how we work together to address flood risks through our
partnership arrangements.

We will increase public awareness of the effects of climate change and the implications on
flood risk by engaging with those specifically at risk of flooding to encourage them to take

action to manage and/or mitigate the risks that they face and to make their property more
resilient.

Theme 5: Maximising Investment Opportunities to better protect our
Businesses and Communities

Where financially viable we will bid, build, maintain and improve local flood and coastal
infrastructure and systems to mitigate or reduce the likelihood of harm to people and
damage to the economy, environment (natural, historic, built and social) and society as a
whole.

Theme 6: Contributing towards a Climate Resilient Lancashire
We will support and assist those bodies responsible for improving the detection, forecasting

and issue of warnings of flooding. Plan for and co-ordinate a rapid response to flood
emergencies and promote faster recovery from flooding.

Pa%e 113



Part 2: Our Business Plan

Page 7]314



6. Our Business Plan

To deliver our strategy efficiently, effectively, transparently and in a way that is coordinated
with our partners and communities we have developed a Business Plan to steer and focus
our actions.

A Business Plan is an action-led plan focusing on delivering tasks which meet statutory
responsibilities and/or contribute towards delivering our vision.

In addition, our North West Regional Flood and Coastal Committee (RFCC) may ask flood

risk management authorities in Lancashire to coordinate and deliver work on a Lancashire-
wide basis. The Lancashire FCERM Partnership may also identify local priorities which are
Lancashire-wide. Such work streams will be built into our Business Plan which will exist as a
‘live’ document with final objectives for delivery agreed annually by the Lancashire FCERM
Partnership. Therefore, the Business Plan outlined in this document represents the minimum
we will deliver across Lancashire to 2027.

4.1. Monitoring and Reporting Progress

Through the Lancashire FCERM Partnership, we will hold each other and ourselves
accountable for the delivery of our Business Plan and therefore, for the delivery of our
Strategy.

Delivery of objectives within the Business Plan will be closely monitored through a progress
report provided to the Strategic Partnership Group on a quarterly basis. The report will
monitor progress of objectives against timescales and expected outputs and outcomes.

We will also publish an annual monitoring report of our business plan, reflecting progress in
delivering actions from our strategy.

4.2. Continually Improving: A Mid-Term Review
This Strategy will have a six year lifespan to 2027, in line with the new flood risk planning
cycle and Investment Programme.

We recognise that flood and water management has a framework which is relatively fluid,
in part due to the six-yearly flood risk planning cycle and also because flood and water
management is a relatively new statutory function having only commenced in its current
form in 2010. This means lessons are being learnt along the way and the legislation and
policy frameworks amended to reflect this.

It is therefore acknowledged that a mid-term review of this Strategy in 2024 would be
sensible to ensure it remains current and captures any additional actions or amendments
needed to support delivery of effective local flood risk management in Lancashire in line
with legislative and policy framework.

Pa%e 115



91t abed

The Lancashire FCERM Business Plan

Theme

1. Delivering
Effective Flood
Risk
Management
Locally

2. Understanding
our Local Risks
and Challenges

Objective

Output / Outcome

Objective Owner

Support From

Delivery
Milestone

1.1 Maintain, apply and monitor the | A monitoring framework for the Lancashire LLFa Lancashire FCERM Ongoing to 2027
Lancashire Local Flood Risk | LFRM Strategy is established Partnership (strotegic and

Management (LFRM) Strategy 2021 - Tactical)

2027 Partnership Officer

1.2 Review and revise existing Section | A new Section 19 Flood Investigation Policy is LLFa Environment Agency March 2023
19 Flood Investigation Report Policy, | adopted by LLFAs. United Utilities

incorporating lessons learnt since 2010. Partnership Officer

1.3 Review and revize Conzenting and A new Consenting and Enforcement Policy for LLFA Partnership Officer March 2023

Enforcement Policy for regulating
Ordinary Watercourses.

Ordinary Watercourses is adopted by LLFAs,
including a clear position on culverting.

1.4 Work proactively with Local
Planning Authorities to ensure
effective local policies are in place for
managing flood risk and coastal erosion

Local Plan policy and evidence base review are
informed by direct input from flood risk
management autharities.

Local Planning
Authorities

Environment Agency
LLFA
United Utilities
Coast Protection

Various and Ongoing

through the Land and Marine Planning Authaorities
Processes
1.5 Consider the need for a Highway Highway Drainage Connection Policy Highway Autharity LLF& March 2022
Drainage Connection Policy. considered and, if appropriate, created and
adopted.
1.6 Consider the need for a 'Designation of Flood Risk Features' Policy LLF& Partnership Officer March 2023
'Designation of Flood Risk Features’ considered and, if appropriate, created and Environment Agency
Palicy. adopted.
2.1 Deliver any outstanding Surface | Surface Water Management Plans are delivered LLFa Project Advizor TBC
Water Management Flans (SWMP), and | and used to inform bids into the Investment District Councils
identify further studies needed. Programme as appropriate. Further SWMPs are Environment Agency
added to Investment Programme. United Utilities
2.2 Bid for funding to install | Groundwater monitoring equipment is installed LLFA or District Project Advisor March 2024
groundwater monitoring equipment to | in  targeted areas agreed by flood risk Council(s)
improve ocur understanding of | management authorities, and data used to
groundwater flooding in targeted areas | inform decision making.
in Lancashire.
2.3 Bid for funding to map all ordinary | All ordinary watercourses in Lancashire are LLFA Project Advizor March 2027

watercourses in Lancazhire, and feed
this mapping and any modelling into
national maps to improve all risk
management authority understanding
of local ordinary watercourse networks.

mapped, and fed back into national mapping
collated by the Environment Agency.

Environment Agency




1T abed

Theme

Delivery

Objective Output / Outcome Objective Owner Support From Milestone
23 Bid for funding to improve | GIS model and mapping showing opportunities March 2024
understanding of opportunities for | by type of natural flood risk management /
natural flood management and | sustainable drainage
strategic surface water management
across Lancashire through sustainable
drainage retrofit.
2.4 Continue to populate the Flood Risk | Flood Risk Asset Register will grow in size to LLFA Aszet Management Ongoing
Aszet Register include new and existing flood risk assets.
2.5 Spatially map all historic and new | GIS mapping system showing locations which LLFA District Councils March 2022
known flooding incidents across | have flooded including key details in the United Utilities
Lancashire since 2013, attribute table. Environment Agency

Highway Authority

2.6 Support development of an 'all | All source flood risk map is created and made United Utilities Environment Agency March 2025
source' flooding map for the North | available to all flood risk management LLFA
West, to place all sources of flood risk | authaorities. It is to be accompanied by a clear Highway Authority
on an egual footing. This could be | maintenance pathway. District Councils
achieved through Drainage and
Wastewater Management Plan
(DWDMP)
3.1 Support and provide input to Local | Effective Local Plan policies for flood risk, Environment Agency District Councils Various
Planning Authorities during plan making | coastal erosion and sustainable drainage are United Utilities
to ensure evidence base documents, | adopted, and informed by high quality evidence LLFA
policies and guidance are suitable and | provided by flood risk management authorities. Highway Authority
take account of best practice, climate
change, biodiversity net gain and
amenity aspirations.
3.2 Work with Local Planning | Local Planning Authorities will require a locally Local Planning LLFA December 2022
Authorities to encourage adoption of | adapted SuDS pro-forma to be submitted for Authorities Partnership Officer
the 5uD5 Pro-forma through their Local | every major planning application.
Planning Validation Checklist for ‘Major’
development.
3.3 Be represented on the Morth West | Nominated representatives represent Mominated Partnership Officer June 2021
RFCC's 5uD5 and Planning Group to | Lancashire at the group and feed back to the Representatives
ensure Lancashire is contributing to and | partnership, flood risk management authorities
learning from best practice across the | and local planning authorities as required.
region and nationally.
3.4 Establish a process which ensures | 'As built” 5uDS assets are captured in Flood Risk LLFA Local Planning March 2022

'as built' SuDS assets are validated and
captured in Flood Risk Asset Registers.

Asset Register.

Authorities




g1 abed

Delivery

Objective Output / Outcome Objective Owner Support From Miestone
3.5 Support the development of a | Lancashire’s natural capital accounting Environment Agency LLFA March 2025
natural capital accounting / biodiversity | biodiversity net gain approach take account of United Utilities
net gain approach for Lancashire, | flood and coastal benefits.
ensuring flood and coastal matters can
be valued.
3.6 Explore the feasibility of developing | Feasibility of delivering a "SuD5 Suitahility’ guide LLFA Lancashire Ecological March 2025
a Lancashire-wide ‘suDSs Suitability’ | for Lancashire is understood and, if possible, a Metwork (LERM)
guide, based on mapping of ground | guide developed with colleagues in planning
conditions and integrated with other | and ecology and other technical areas to help
agendas such as the Lancashire | support the delivery of high-guality SuDS and
Ecological Metwork and blue-green | ecoclogy across Lancashire, contributing to a
infrastructure network. blue-green Lancashire.
3.7 Encourage all flood risk | Increase in member of ASA from flood rizk Partnership Officer LLFA March 2022

management authorities in Lancashire
to become members of the Association
of SuDS Authaorities (ASA).

management authaorities in Lancashire.

4,1 Improve the ‘The Lancashire
Partnership' webpage on The Flood
Hub, including by setting out who our
flood family is.

The Lancashire Partnership webpage on The
Flood Hub is refrezhed and improved, including
a8 ‘Lancashire Flood Family' section which
identifies immediate and wider partners, and
key communities and business, as appropriate,
that we engage with.

Partnership Officer

Fartnership Chair

December 2021

4.2 Update Local Authority ‘flooding'
webpages and ensure they link to The
Flood Hub to support community
awareness, engagement and resilience.

All Local Authority webpages in Lancashire are
refreshed and include a link to The Flood Hul
website to support community resilience.

LLFA
District Councils

Partnership Officer

December 2021

4.3 Continue to support maintenance
and development of The Flood Hub,
including the launch of a new Education
section.

Lancashire is represented at The Flood Hub
website  maintenance meetings, and a
communications plan iz developed for how
changes, news and issues can be fed up to The
Flood Hub team.

Partnership Officer

LLFA
District Councils
United Utilities
Environment Agency
Highway Authority

Ongoing

4.4 Ensure Flood Action Groups (FIAGS)
in Lancashire who consent to their ‘get
in touch' details being shared on The
Flood Hub are published on the map
and on the Partnerzhip webpage.

Following GDPR consent, contact details for
FlAGs in Lancashire are published on The Flood
Hub =so that those at risk in the community can
easily find and contact their local FIAG.

Partnership Officer

LLFA

December 2021

4.5 Work better together to deliver
more effective, targeted and partner-
focused asset maintenance regime for

Asset maintenance regimes are reviewed,
revised and considered in a risk-based manner,
and with a partnership focus to identify

Environment Agency
United Utilities
Highway Authority

Partnership Officer

March 2023




61T abed

Objective

Qutput [ Outcome

Objective Owner

Support From

Delivery
Milestone

those assets owned by flood risk
management authorities.

opportunities to deliver a more efficient multi-
agency service.

District Councils

4.6 Continue to attend and work
proactively with Catchment
Partnerships  to identify local
opportunities to work together to co-
fund and co-deliver natural flood
management and other schemes within
the community and private
landownership.

Natural flood management and other schemes
and projects are funded and delivered in
Partnership where possible.

Catchment
Partnerships
Partnership Officer

Environment Agency

Ongeing to March
2027

4.7 Develop a Communication and
Engagement Plan showing clear lines of
communication and reporting, within
and amongst food risk management
authorities, wider partners and the
people of Lancashire. This will include
proactive communications and
responsive  communication to, for
example, flood/weather alerts. This
should also include a progress for how
good practice is captured from across
Lancashire, including from Catchment
Partnership and wider partners, and
shared appropriately with our flood
family and the people of Lancashire.

Communication and Engagement Plan for
Lancashire.

Partnership Officer

Corporate
Communications
The Flood Hub

March 2022

4.8 Ensure Lancashire is represented at
every North West Regional Flood and
Coastal Committee's (RFCC) Technical
Advisory Group (TAG) meeting, and
other sub-groups as formed, to ensure
we are working effectively with regional
partners, sharing best practice and
influencing any decisions ar
recommendations made to the RFCC
and Strategic Partnerships.

The Lancashire FCERM Partnership has an
appointed representative(s) to attend every
RFCC TAG meeting, and other sub-groups as
formed.

Lancashire shares best practice and learning
with colleagues across the North West region,
and feeds back to the Partnership from other
areas.

Lancashire
Representative(s)

Partnership Officer

June 2021

4.9 Ensure all flood risk management
authorities are proactively engaged
with the Lancashire Resilience Forum
(LRF) to continually improve our multi-

Continuous improvement is built into both the
LRF and operational flood responses.

LLFA
District Councils
United Utilities
Environment Agency

Partnership Officer

June 2021




6/

0c1 abed

Delivery

Theme Objective Output / Outcome Objective Owner Support From Milestone
agency and operational responses to Highway Authority
flooding incidents.
4,10 Include separate  Highway | Highway and other infrastructure flooding Highway Authority Partnership Officer March 2022
Authority and infrastructure provider | issues are better understood and, where Infrastructure
representation  on The Lancashire | possible, used to inform capital bids in the Providers
FCERM Partnership, at relevant levels, | Investment Programme 2021 — 2027 to increase
as appropriate, to ensure highway and | long term infrastructure resilience to help build
other infrastructure flood risks are also | a more flood resilient economy.
captured.
5. Maximising 5.1 Deliver schemes within  the | Schemes in the Investment Programme 2021 — Environment Agency Project Advisar March 2027
Investment Investment Programme 2021 — 2027 to | 2027 are delivered by March 2027. LLF& United Utilities
Opportunities to | time and cost, including meeting Highway Authority
Better Protect partnership funding and efficiency
our Businesses requirements of grant funding.
and Communities | 5.2 Proactively monitor the delivery of | &  collective  monitoring  framewaork s | Partnership Councillors Project Advisor March 2022
the programme at every level of The | established and shared at zll levels of the Partnership Officer
Lancashire FCERM Partnership and hold | Partnership, and measured against guarterly
delivery leads accountable. with a progresz report provided. Monitoring
must include against delivering efficiencies and
achieving the required partnership funding
contributions, as well as timescales and
outcomes projected.
5.3 Share the programme with partners | Investment Programme 2021 — 2027 is shared Partnership Officer - June 2021

at all levels and with Catchment
Partnerships to identify any
collaboration opportunities.

with Catchment Partnerships, and
opportunities for collaboration in delivery are
identified to drive efficient and successful
partnership working projects, az appropriate.

Project Advisor

5.4 Continue to identify opportunities / | Mew schemes continue to be identified from LLFA Project Advisor Ongeoing to March
need for investment in flood and coast | flood risk management authority investigations, Environment Agency Partnership Officer 2026
defences and infrastructure and ensure | studies and partnership meetings. United Utilities Catchment

these are captured in the Investment Highway Authority Partnerships

Programme 2021 — 2027 at the earliest District Councils

opportunity to secure an allocation,

where viable.

5.5 Develop a “funding catalogue’ of all | 'Funding catalogue’ is created, shared, Project Advisar Environment Agency March 2022

potential sources of funding from
public, private, voluntary and other
sectars.

maintained and used to enable delivery of
identified projects, particularly those which are
not viable or borderline.

LLFA
United Utilities
District Council

Highway Authority




12T abed

Delivery

Theme Objective Output / Outcome Objective Owner Support From Miestone
5.6 Establish & progress for the | A 'Quick Win" Protocol is established for The Partnership Chair Project Advisar March 2022
Partnership which facilitates quick | Lancashire FCERM Partnership and shared with Partnership Officer
gllocation, approval and delivery of | colleagues across the Morth West az best
'Quick Win® funding allocated annually | practice.
to the Partnership. This includes
governance and a re-allocation of
funding if not spent as agreed.
5.7 Influence national thinking on flood | Lancashire proactively volunteers to work with Environment Agency Partnership Chair March 2025

inzurance and grants for those affected | national colleagues to influence and provide LLFA
by flooding to encourage a consistent | evidence of flooding impacts on  our
approach from government rather than | communities and businesses.
on a storm basis.
6. Contributing 6.1 Work with climate change action | Attendance at and input to products and LLFA Partnership Officer As required, and
Towards a groups set up following Local Authority | outcomes from climate change action groups. Environment Agency ongoing
Sustainable, declaration of a climate emergency to | Climate change action plan includes measures United Utilities
Climate Resilient | ensure actions to address flood risk and | to address flood risk and coastal erosion. Highway Autharity
Lancashire coastal erosion are incorporated within District Councils
climate change action plans.
6.2 Ensure a climate change allowance | All new sustainable drainage systems on Local Planning LLFA June 2021
iz incorporated into all proposed new | developments incorporate an allowance for Authority Environment Agency
sustainable drainage systems on | climate change consistent with national and/or United Utilities
developments consistent with national | local planning requirements. Highway Authority
and/or local planning requirements and District Councils
published guidance.
6.3 Investigate the feasibility of | Thereisanincrease in schools across Lancashire Education/Asset United Utilities March 2023
retrofitting SuDS in schools across | with SuDS retro-fitted to better manage surface Departments
Lancashire to improve their resilience | water and remowve, where feasible, existing
and provide an educational resource. flaws from the public sewer network.
6.4 Explore the feasibility of delivering a | SuDS and natural flood management measures | Parks and Blue-Green LLFA March 2025
series of "water resilient parks' across | are retrofitted on council owned parks where Spaces Catchment
Lancazhire to retrofit SuDS and natural | feasible. {County and District Councils] Partnerships
flood management measures  to Environment Agency
contribute towards surface water
storage where evidence shows this
would be beneficial and financially
viable.
6.5 In contributing towards a climate | Highway SuDS Adoption Code to be considered Highway Autharity United Utilities March 2023

rezilient  highway  network  and

economy, consider how Highway

and, if appropriate, produced. Production to be

LLFA




22’ abed

Theme

Objective

Output / Outcome

Objective Owner

Support From

Delivery
Milestone

Authorities in Lancashire could adopt
Sub5 components under the Highways
Act 1980. Work with United Utilities to
share learning following introduction of
the Design and Construction Guide
(DCGE) for Sewers.

support by shared learning from United Utilities

colleagues.




Appendices

Page 123



Appendix A: Key Duties and
Powers of Flood Risk Management
Authorities

Local Authority Statutory Responsibilities

Local authorities are a risk management authority as both the Lead Local Flood Authority
(LLFA) and Highway Authority. This section outlines their roles and responsibilities in this
capacity.

As the LLFA, County and Unitary Councils are required to oversee and participate in the
management of local flood risk, which includes the risk of flooding from surface water,
groundwater and from ordinary watercourses.

Section 19 Flood Investigation Reports

LLFAs have a duty to investigate flood incidents in their area and are responsible for ensuring
all risk management authorities are working together to resolve flood problems in their
respective areas.

The Flood and Water Management Act is clear that the LLFA’s responsibility for investigation
only extends as far as establishing which of the risk management authorities has a flood risk
management function and whether they have, or will be, exercising that function. It may

be the responsibility of one of the other risk management authorities, or even the land or
property owner themselves, to take action to resolve the issue.

Section 19 of the Flood and Water Management Act allows LLFAs to define ‘the extent that
it considers it necessary or appropriate’ to investigate a flood incident in their area and
therefore to set investigation parameters.

Reports prepared under Section 19 of the Flood and Water Management Act must be
published and made publicly available by the LLFA.

Flood Risk Asset Register and Record

LLFA’s are required, under Section 21 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, to
maintain a register of structures and features which are likely to have a significant effect on
flood risk in their area. This register will be called the flood risk asset register. Section 21 of
the Flood and Water Management Act also requires LLFAs to record information about those
registered structures and features, notably in relation to their ownership and state of repair.
This will be called the flood risk asset record.

Together this register and record enable LLFAs to collate important information about assets
which may help inform better local flood risk management in the long term.

Page81324



Delivering Sustainable Development

The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 requires flood and coastal erosion risk
management authorities (that did not previously have such a duty) to aim to contribute
towards the achievement of sustainable development when exercising their flood and
coastal erosion risk management functions.

The Flood and Water Management Act also requires the Secretary of State to issue guidance
on how those authorities are to discharge their duty, including guidance about the meaning
of sustainable development. The guidance for England was published in October 2011.

Sustainable development in the context of flood and coastal erosion risk management
(FCERM) includes:

e taking account of the safety and wellbeing of people and the ecosystems upon which
they depend,

e using finite resources efficiently and minimising waste,
e taking action to avoid exposing current and future generations to increasing risk, and

e improving the resilience of communities, the economy and the natural, historic, built and
social environment to current and future risks.

Designation of Flood Risk Structures and Features

About two thirds of physical flood risk management assets, such as walls, embankments
and other raised features, are neither owned nor operated by public risk management
authorities.

Under Schedule 1 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 the Environment Agency
and Council, as LLFA, has the power to formally designate a structure or feature which it
believes may have an effect on flood or coastal erosion risk. These authorities are referred to
as ‘designating authorities’.

The Flood and Water Management Act also refers to the ‘responsible authority’” which is
defined as ‘the authority which made the designation’ unless the designation has been
adopted by another of the designating authorities. Councils, as LLFA, will therefore become
the responsible authority for the designation of any structure or feature it designates, unless
that designation is adopted by one of the other designating authorities.

A designation is a legally binding notice served by the designating authority to the owner of
the structure or feature and the notice is a Local Land Charge. There are implications for a
landowner if a flood risk management structure or feature is designated on their land. The
landowner will need to apply for consent from the relevant designating authority if they wish
to alter, remove or replace the structure or feature. A designation also acts as a Local Land
Charge which is attached to the property or to the parcel of land.

Paggle 125


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-risk-management-authorities-on-sustainable-development-in-relation-to-their-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-functions

Ordinary Watercourse Consenting and Enforcement

An ‘ordinary watercourse’ is a watercourse that does not form part of a main river and
includes rivers, streams, ditches, drains, cuts, culverts, dikes, sluices, sewers (other than
public sewers within the meaning of the Water Industry Act 1991) and passages, through
which water flows.

On 6th April 2012, Schedule 2 (Sections 31, 32 and 33) of the Flood and Water Management
Act 2010 amended the Land Drainage Act 1991 and transferred powers for the regulation of
ordinary watercourses from the Environment Agency to the LLFA.

The powers of the LLFA to regulate ordinary watercourses are set out in the Land Drainage
Act 1991 in three key sections:

Section 21: Enforcement of obligations to repair watercourses, bridges, etc.
Section 23 & 24: Prohibition on obstructions etc. in watercourses.

Section 25: Powers to require works for maintaining flow of watercourse.
These regulations broadly consist of two elements:

1. The issuing of consents for any changes to ordinary watercourses that might obstruct or
alter the flow of an ordinary watercourse;
2. Enforcement powers to rectify unlawful and potentially damaging work to a watercourse.

Sustainable Drainage Systems and Planning (in all flood zones)

Schedule 4 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015 lists the LLFA as a statutory consultee for ‘major’ development
proposals in all flood zones validated from 15th April 2015. Major development is defined
as 10 or more properties, or the equivalent for other land uses (as defined in Section 2 of
Statutory Instrument 2015 No. 595)

This means that the Local Planning Authority (LPA) must consult with the LLFA prior
to determining a planning application and that the LLFA must provide the LPA with a
‘substantive response’ within 21 calendar days, unless otherwise agreed.

The LLFA may also wish to ask the LPAs to consult them in non-statutory circumstances, or
visa versa; for example because the LLFA has identified such circumstances as having the
potential to impact on local flood risk or the management of local flood risk carried out by
the LLFA. This is agreed through local arrangements with the LPAs.

As a statutory consultee, the LLFA has a legal duty to provide a substantive response to

the LPA providing an informed view on development proposals which have surface water
implications within 21 calendar days. The performance of the LLFA is closely monitored by
the Secretary of State to whom the LLFA is required to report annually on their performance.

Page 81526


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/made

Highway Authority Responsibilities

Highways Authorities (Highways England and Local Authorities) have the lead responsibility
for providing and managing highway drainage and roadside ditches under the Highways Act
1980. The owners of land adjoining a highway also have a common-law duty to maintain
ditches to prevent them causing a nuisance to road users.

They co-operate with the other Risk Management Authorities to ensure their flood
management activities are well coordinated.

Coast Protection Authorities

Local Authorities in coastal areas are Coast Protection Authorities. They lead on coastal
erosion risk management activities in their area and are responsible for developing
and delivering Shoreline Management Plans (SMPs) which provide a long-term holistic
framework for managing the risk of coastal change on their section of the coast.

Coast Protection Authorities in Lancashire are Blackpool, Fylde, Lancaster, West Lancashire
and Wyre Councils.

The Environment Agency has a strategic overview to ensure that decisions about the coast
are made in a joined-up manner.

Environment Agency Responsibilities

The Environment Agency has a strategic overview of all sources of flooding and coastal
erosion (as defined in the Flood and Water Management Act 2010) in England.

The Environment Agency’s work includes:

e Developing long-term approaches to FCERM. This includes developing and applying the
National FCERM Strategy.

e Working with others to prepare and deliver Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMPs) and
Drainage and Wastewater Management Plans (DWMPs)

e Monitoring and reporting on flood and coastal erosion risk management. This includes
reporting on how the National FCERM Strategy is having an impact across the country.

e Responsibility for flood and coastal erosion risk management activities on main rivers
and the coast, including issuing Environmental Permits for flood risk activities and
undertaking enforcement action as appropriate

e Providing planning advice during plan making and when determining planning
applications in Flood Zones 2 and 3

e Regulating reservoir safety

Pa%e 127


https://www.gov.uk/topic/environmental-management/environmental-permits

e Working in partnership with the Met Office to provide flood forecasts and warnings and a
Category 1 Responder during flood incidents (under the Civil Contingencies Act)

e Establishing Regional Flood and Coastal Committees in England

e Allocation of national government funding to projects to manage flood and coastal
erosion risks from all sources

e Delivering projects to manage flood risks from main rivers and the sea

e Providing evidence and advice to support others. This includes national flood and coastal
erosion risk information, data and tools to help other Risk Management Authorities and
inform Government policy, and advice on planning and development issues

Water and Sewerage Company (W&SC) Responsibilities

Water and Sewerage Companies (WaSCs) are risk management authorities (RMAs) and
manage the risk of flooding to water supply and sewerage facilities and flood risks from the
failure of their infrastructure.

The majority of the public sewerage system in Lancashire is owned and maintained
by United Utilities, however the northwest corner of Lancashire, around Earby, is the
responsibility of Yorkshire Water.

The main roles of water and sewerage companies in managing flood and coastal erosion
risks are to:

* make sure their systems have the appropriate level of resilience to flooding, and
maintain essential services during emergencies

* maintain and manage their water supply and sewerage systems to manage the impact
and reduce the risk of flooding and pollution to the environment. They have a duty under
Section 94 Water Industry Act 1991 to ensure that the area they serve is “effectually
drained”. This includes drainage of surface water from the land around buildings as well
as provision of foul sewers.

e provide advice to LLFAs on how Water and Sewerage Company assets impact on local
flood risk

e work with developers, landowners and LLFAs to understand and manage risks — for
example, by working to manage the amount of rainfall that enters sewerage systems

e work with Local Planning Authorities during plan making

e work with the Environment Agency, LLFAs and Local Authorities to coordinate the
management of water supply and sewerage systems with other flood risk management
work.

Where there is frequent and severe sewer flooding, sewerage undertakers are required to
address

This through their capital investment plans, which are approved and regulated by Ofwat.
This happens every 5 years through the Price Review (PR) process. Water and Sewerage

Companies have outcome delivery incentives (ODIs) that they agree with customers and
partners. All water and sewerage companies have sewer flooding ODls.

Page 81728



Voluntary SuDS Adoption by English Water and Sewerage Companies

In April 2020 Ofwat approved new guidance from Water UK for use by developers when
planning, designing and constructing foul and surface water drainage systems intended for
adoption under an agreement made in accordance with Section 104 of the Water Industry
Act 1991.

The guidance is significant as it provides the mechanism by which water companies can
secure the adoption of a wide range of SuDS components that are compliant with the legal
definition of a sewer. This process remains voluntary i.e. the developer must offer the SuDS
to the water and sewerage company for adoption.

There are however some notable exceptions to the adoptable components including
green roofs, pervious pavements and filter strips. These components may form part of the
drainage design as long as they are upstream of the adoptable components. You can read
more here and here.

Pagge 129


https://www.water.org.uk/policy-topics/managing-sewage-and-drainage/sustainable-drainage/
https://www.wavin.com/en-gb/Knowledge-center/News/new-design-and-construction-guidance-for-sewage-sector?_cldee=bGF1cmFtYWtlYXRpbmdAd2lycmFsLmdvdi51aw%3d%3d&recipientid=lead-8f58fecd81ace911a85d000d3ab4bf3c-a4d9978b99534fd1b44aef72ae02fffa&esid=872157ee-1e69-ea11-a811-000d3ab9bba9

Appendix B: Strategic
Environmental Assessment

Strategic Environmental Assessment

This strategy is being informed by the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) 2014,
The SEA seeks to ensure that the objective and actions in the strategy’s business plan take
into account the environment, social and socio-economic and health concerns and take
advantage of opportunities for wider benefits at the same time.

The scoping of the SEA has determined that the following issues should be investigated
further in the assessment phase:-

e Bio-diversity: flood risk to designated sites; other habitats and associated species;
changes to habitats and direct and indirect species mortality; natural flood control,
enhancing the resilience of the ecological network through habitat creation and
enhancement; carbon sequestration through habitat creation and restoration;
maintaining and enhancing habitat connectivity.

e Local Community: flood risk to properties community facilities and businesses, or their
connectivity; flood risk to environments in deprived areas.

e Recreation: flood risk to recreational facilities or features; access to recreational routes/
facilities.

e Geology and soils: flood risk to geological features; land use conflict with soils; land use
conflict with geological features.

e Water Environment: compliance with River Basic Management Plan; risk of water
pollution; long term ability to achieve “good” status or “good potential.”

e Climatic factors: construction CO2 emissions.

e Landscape and Townscape: flood risk to landscape and townscape character.

e Historic Environment: access to land use or design conflict with historic features
designated or non-designated historic feature; flood risk to historic assets.

In order to maintain a future perspective the environmental impacts associated with the
strategy, the SEA will ensure environmental monitoring is incorporated as part of the overall
approach to monitoring the delivery of the strategy’s objectives and measures.

The SEA assessment will also address the requirements of the Habitats Regulation
Assessment (HRA) under the conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.
The HRA will consider the potential effects of a development plan on the biodiversity

of Designated European Sites including Special Protection Areas and Special Areas of
Conservation. We have already highlighted the benefits of Partnership Working and the
need to ensure that Ecologists should be an integral member of Partnerships particularly
when discussing proposed flood risk management projects.

Page 8]930



Appendix C: Glossary of
abbreviations and phrases

Glossary of abbreviations and phrases

Asset Register
Register of structures or features which are considered to have an effect on flood risk.

BwDBC
Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council

Catchment
The extent of land which catches and holds rainwater

CFMP
Catchment Flood Management Plan, produced by the EA to give an overview of the flood
risk in the primary catchments in the Lancashire region.

Civil Contingencies Act 2004
Defines Category 1 and 2 responders to flooding emergencies

Consenting
Process of obtaining permission to add/amend structures in/near a watercourse or flood
defence structure

Defra
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, responsible national emergency
planning for flooding

EA
Environment Agency, responsible for the strategic overview role for flood and coastal
erosion risk management

FCERM
Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management

Foul flooding
Flooding that is contaminated with sewage

Flood and Water Management Act 2010
Act introduced in response to Sir Michael Pitt’s Review on the Summer 2007 floods

Flood Risk Regulations
Transposition of the EU Floods Directive into UK law.

Pagcbe 131



Fluvial flooding
Flooding from rivers

FRM
Flood Risk Management

FRR
Flood Risk Regulations 2009

FWMA
Flood & Water Management Act 2010

Groundwater flooding
Flooding when water levels in the ground rise above the surface

HA
Highways Authority

LA
Local Authority

LDA
Land Drainage Act, introduced to consolidate the functions of local authorities in relation to
land drainage

LFRM
Local Flood Risk Management

LLFA
Lead Local Flood Authority, responsible for taking the lead on local flood risk management

Local Flood Risk
Flooding from sources other than Main Rivers and the sea

LRF
Local Resilience Forum

Ordinary Watercourse
A statutory type of watercourse including river, stream, ditch, drain, cut, dyke, sluice, sewer
(other than a public sewer) that is not classified as main river

NERC
Natural Environment and Rural Communities

Pitt Review
Comprehensive independent review of the 2007 summer floods by Sir Michael Pitt, which
provided recommendations to improve flood risk management in England.

Page 91132



PFRA
Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment

Pluvial Flooding
Flooding causing from direct rainfall runoff (before it enters drains or watercourses).

Risk
Risk = probability of an occurrence x its potential consequence

RMA
Risk Management Authority, organisations that have a key role in flood and coastal erosion
risk management as defined by the Flood and Water Management Act 2010.

SEA
Strategic Environmental Assessment

SFRA
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment

SuDS
Sustainable Drainage System

Surface water flooding

Flooding caused by high intensity rainfall that generates flows over the ground and collects
in low lying areas. Also known as pluvial or flash flooding.

uu

United Utilities

0000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

Pagze 133



Page91334



Agenda Iltem 8

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Scott Butterfield, Strategy Policy and Research Manager

Date of Meeting 16 June 2021

CLIMATE EMERGENCY DECLARATION: CLIMATE ASSEMBLY

RECOMMENDATIONS

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To present the final reports of the Blackpool Climate Assembly, and the Youth Climate
Assembly

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 The Committee notes the recommendations of the Assembly.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

31 Full Council declared a Climate Emergency in July 2019 which committed the Council to work
towards carbon neutrality across its services and companies by 2030, and across the town in
a similar timescale.

3.2 Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by the No
Council?

33 Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? Yes

4.0 Other alternative options to be considered:

4.1 None.

5.0 Council priority:

5.1 The Climate Emergency cuts across both Council priorities:

e “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool”
e “Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience”

Page 135



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Background information

At the meeting of 3 February 2021, the Committee received an update on progress made by the
independent organisation commissioned to develop and deliver the Assembly, FutureGov.
Following the session, FutureGov undertook analysis of the contributions and liaised with Assembly
participants to agree the contents of the final report (Appendix 8(a)). This was presented to the
Council’s Leadership Board on 19 April 2021 for consideration. Leadership Board requested that
officers undertake work to establish the detailed implications of the recommendations in the
report.

The first step was to create a definitive list of the recommendations (Appendix 8(b)), of which there
are two types. “Primary Issues” are of direct relevance to the Emergency, whilst “Supporting
Issues”, may impact positively on people’s perceptions or the environment more generally. The
former are highlighted in green in the Appendix, and the latter in light blue.

These recommendations are now being discussed with officers responsible for the areas
concerned, to assess the technical and financial implications and identify any consequences of
implementing these findings. These will be presented to the Council’s Leadership Board to allow
them to determine whether to accept or amend the recommendations.

Once this work is complete, the confirmed recommendations will be added to information
generated by the work to develop “pathways” to net zero and incorporated in the resultant
action plan.

In addition to the Climate Assembly, the Headstart team worked with UR Potential to develop
and deliver a Youth Climate Assembly. Running on consecutive nights in January and based on
a format developed with young people, they produced their own report and
recommendations (Appendix 8(c)). These have been included alongside the recommendations
of the Climate Assembly and will be considered as part of the same process.

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? Yes/No
List of Appendices:

Appendix 8(a) — Blackpool Climate Assembly Final Report

Appendix 8(b) - Blackpool Climate Assembly - Summary of Recommendations

Appendix 8(c) — Blackpool Youth Climate Group Report

Financial considerations:

No immediate considerations, although many of the recommendations would require the
identification of funding.

Page 136



9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

12.0

12.1

13.0

13.1

14.0

14.1

Legal considerations:

The UK government has set a legally binding target on itself to deliver net-zero carbon
emissions by 2050.

Risk management considerations:
No immediate implications.
Equalities considerations:

A draft analysis has been prepared which considers issues of Climate Justice. This will be
developed further in line with the outputs above.

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

This work is aimed at both delivering net zero carbon emissions, and also changing the
culture of the organisation and town in line with this objective.

Internal/external consultation undertaken:

In addition to the Climate Assembly, the council hosted an open-access survey to seek the
views of the public. This was publicised via the 8000 letters distributed as part of the
Assembly recruitment and to others via press releases and social media. The survey received
111 responses from Blackpool residents.

Background papers:

None.

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



Blackpool
Climate
Assembly

Final report

futuregov/

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Final report 1



Summary of
recommendations

The Blackpool Climate Assembly has made
recommendations against 8 issues as part of the town's
push to reach NetZero Carbon Emissions by 2030. The
Assembly believes that Blackpool should be bold and
ambitious in its response to the climate emergency, and
that the Council should act as an example for other
Councils who face similar problems. The Council should
also look to form partnerships with other Councils to reach
shared climate goals.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Final report




Primary
Issues

T T obed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

On Generating and Buying Clean Energy, the Assembly
recommends establishing an Energy Task Force and writing
a Local Energy Plan.

On Transport, the Assembly recommends making public
transport and walking the primary ways to get around the
town centre, innovative approaches to fares, a low
emissions zone, expansion of low carbon infrastructure and
more electric vehicles.

On Homes, the Assembly recommends Blackpool should
commit to exceeding current energy efficiency standards,
introduce an Energy MOT for existing buildings, and
introduce a "Climate Contact Point" scheme to promote
energy efficiency support.

On Reducing Waste Across the System, the Assembly
recommends increasing opportunities to recycle in
Blackpool, including food waste.



Supporting
Issues

ZvT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

On Education and Awareness the Assembly recommends
support for schools to plan and implement carbon reduction
plans and more adult education on the climate.

On Community Action the Assembly recommends local
action groups around climate change issues, supported by
local hubs and a network of community champions.

On Networking and Influencing National Government the
Assembly recommends supporting and promoting green
business, a Climate Business Forum, and more vocal public
support for achieving Net Zero from political leaders in
Blackpool.

On Biodiversity, the Assembly recommends a revolution in
the use of space in the town, and environmental impact
given more attention by business.



Table of
contents

6

o 7
S

o 8
H

~ 9

o 15

17

18

57

Introduction

Moderator’s letter

Assembly curriculum

Process

Some context for this report

How we prioritised recommendations

Principles

Next steps

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Table of contents

o

O o O O | O
o | o1 W IDN

23

27

31

35

39

43

47

<]

Primary issues

Generating and buying clean
energy

Transport

Homes

Reducing waste across the system
Supporting issues

Education and awareness

Community action

Network building and influencing
national government

Biodiversity



00

Introduction

As of March 2021, 300 Councils - 71% of District, County,
Unitary & Metropolitan Councils across the country - have
declared a Climate Emergency. Blackpool Council put
people at the heart of the process, by inviting residents to
participate in a citizen’s Climate Assembly. In January
2021, a group of 40 Blackpool residents were randomly
selected to represent their community. Using online
meetings, they came together every week to hear from
experts, discuss issues and write recommendations. Over
the course of four sessions and with the help of the
facilitation team, they created a list of principles to guide
the work, a set of eight priority issues, and
recommendations to help Blackpool achieve net zero
emissions by 2030.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction




00

Moderator’s
letter

G T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

When we posted 8,000 letters to Blackpool in late 2020 inviting residents
to participate in a Climate Assembly online in the midst of a pandemic, we
were unsure what the response would be. In any standard Citizens’
Assembly, a 2-4% response rate is expected, but this request was different.
Joining a group of randomly selected individuals to discuss the climate
emergency is one thing, but letting them into your home virtually is another.

We were fortunate to have hundreds of volunteers and randomly selected
a group of 40 residents, of whom 36 attended all four sessions. They were
passionate about the process and what they could do to address the
climate emergency in their own community.

Week after week, Assembly members gathered to learn about the climate,
share their own priorities and aims, and consider the greater good for the
community they live in, based on their neighbours and networks. It is no
small feat that there was zero attrition throughout this entire Assembly, and
that many members wished to remain involved in the Council’s efforts
towards Net Zero after the Assembly concluded.

Thank you to the team at Blackpool Council for putting residents at the
heart of their decision-making processes, our facilitators, and to the subject
matter experts who supported the Assembly through their deliberations.

Eva O’Brien, FutureGoy,
Moderator, Blackpool Climate Assembly



00

Assembly
curriculum

o T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

The Blackpool Climate Assembly took place over four virtual sessions in
January and February 2021. These sessions involved a mix of education
and deliberation, with the first and second sessions focused primarily
on providing context around the climate emergency for Assembly
members. Sessions three and four contained discussion in small groups
led by a team of facilitators. Sessions were chaired by a moderator who
introduced concepts, guest speakers, and hosted plenary discussions.
The Assembly was executed using Zoom.

To develop the Assembly curriculum, the FutureGov team ran a design
sprint with colleagues from Blackpool Council to identify what elements
of the climate emergency should be introduced to Assembly members,
and by whom to ensure a local context and perspective. Out of this
design sprint, a long-list of prospective subject matter experts was
developed, as was a broad plan for the four sessions.

The facilitation team took an agile approach to designing, developing
and executing the Assembly. Week over week, the facilitation team
would assess what elements of the Assembly were successful and what
did not work. Taking an agile approach allowed the team to respond to
Assembly members’ needs in a dynamic and responsive manner.



00

Process

/T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

Session 1

Activities: introductions, getting participants comfortable with the Assembly format,
introducing members to the idea of a climate emergency, hearing about solutions, and
creating a longlist of principles to guide the Assembly’s recommendations

Session 2

Activities: recap on the presentations from session 1, review the draft principles, understand
how local government, businesses, and residents can take action to combat climate change,
and develop a long-list of issues that participants think the Assembly should focus on

Session 3

Activities: recap on the presentations and discussions from session two, review the compiled
list of issues participants said the Assembly should focus on, agree on the issues the
Assembly wants to prioritise, and start identifying problems and formulating recommendations

Session 4

Activities: give participants the opportunity to finalise the Assembly's recommendations,
communicate the report writing process, thank the participants for taking part, and letting
them know how they can stay in touch on Blackpool Council’s climate action following the
Assembly. Assembly members were then given the opportunity to comment on this report
after the final session.



00

Session 1

81T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

Session 1 was focused on introductions, getting participants comfortable with the Assembly
format, introducing members to the idea of a climate emergency, hearing about solutions, and
creating a longlist of principles to guide the Assembly’s recommendations.

The session began with an introduction and welcome from Councillor Jim Hobson (Cabinet
Member for Environment and Climate Change for Blackpool Council) who explained why
Blackpool Council had declared a climate emergency and commissioned an assembly. We then
heard from Eva, the moderator, who went through ground rules. John Blackledge, the Director
of Community and Environmental Services talked about existing plans in place to reduce
emissions in Blackpool. Two young people from Junior Park Rangers, Rosa and Julianne, then
gave a young person's perspective. They are members of the Blackpool Youth Climate
Assembly, a related process for young people aged 11-18, and they shared hopes for the
assemblies and future action.

Participants were then split into 9 small groups, each hosted by a facilitator. Participants
introduced themselves, and explained the reasons they’d volunteered to take part in the
Assembly. The participants heard from five speakers who explained the areas of focus that will
have the biggest impact on reducing emissions in Blackpool. The speakers were:

e Polly Billington from UK 100, who shared examples of what councils and local places can
do to tackle climate change

° Rob Hatcher from the Carbon Trust, who outlined the key areas of emissions in Blackpool

e Jonathan Atkinson from Carbon Co-op, who spoke about different ways of improving
homes

e  Xavier Brice from Sustrans, who spoke about the transport issues, and ways of tackling it

e  Samia Robbins from Arup, who shared examples of low carbon energy projects

Finally, participants joined small group discussions where the facilitators supported them
through a discussion on principles.

10



00

Session 2

61T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

The aim of session 2 was to recap on the presentations from session 1, review the draft
principles, understand how local government, businesses, and residents can take action to
combat climate change, and develop a long-list of issues that participants think the Assembly
should focus on.

In the previous session, groups had discussed principles to help guide the recommendations
the Assembly will make. Each group reviewed the principles and discussed if they agreed with
them, which ones were most important to them, and why they matter.

Following this, the participants heard from two guest speakers. First was Peter Lefort, who is the
Carbon Neutral Cornwall Partnerships Manager at Cornwall Council, who spoke about
decision-making tools used by Cornwall Council. The Assembly then heard from Beverly Rich, a
member of the Camden Climate Assembly, who spoke about her experience and her continued
involvement in climate action.

Then, each group heard from four different guest speakers where they had time to learn about
what businesses and organisations in Blackpool are doing to address the climate emergency.
Participants heard from:

e Rob Gomm, from the Upside Down Cafe - a Vegan cafe embedding sustainable practice
across their business
John Butler, from Premier Cabs, which has a fully electric cab fleet
James Carney, from Blackpool Transport, a local public transport provider
John Child, from Sandcastle Water Park, the biggest of its kind in the UK

11



00

Session 2

0GT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

e Debbs Lancelott & Emma Threlfall of Houndshill Shopping Centre, who have invested in
green infrastructure

e Jonathan Hutchinson, of Grange Community Farm, who run a number of green and
biodiversity projects

® Rebecca Trevalyan, from the Library of Things, a community upcycling and sharing hub in
South London.

Finally, in small groups the participants discussed the issues they would like the Assembly to
address through their recommendations. These issues were collated into a long list, which will
be used to create recommendations from in sessions 3 and 4.

12



00

Session 3

TGT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

The aim of this session was to recap on the presentations and discussions from session two,
review the compiled list of issues participants said the Assembly should focus on, agree on the
issues the Assembly wants to prioritise, and start identifying problems and formulating
recommendations.

The Assembly kicked off with the moderator welcoming participants, going through the ground
rules again, and explaining the aim and objectives of the session. The moderator then did a
brief recap of the content from the presentations and discussion groups from session two.

Following this, participants went into their breakout groups. The facilitator shared the list of
issues the participants had said the Assembly should focus on in session two. Groups were
given time to identify any gaps, and then had a discussion about what the gaps were.
Facilitators fed back the gaps back to the wider group.

Each break out group then reviewed the updated list of issues, and were given time to think
about the five or six priorities they would like the Assembly to focus on, and make their
decisions in line with the assemblies principles. Each participant voted on their priorities, with
the facilitators reporting their groups overall results to the wider group.

The project team reviewed priorities and gave each breakout group one or two issues to focus
on. The group discussed and agreed on the problems related to the issues, causes of the
problems, what has been done to combat them already, and began generating ideas for
solutions. Finally, each facilitator reported back on their groups ideas to the wider group.

13



00

Session 4

ZST abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

The aim of this session was to give participants the opportunity to finalise the Assembly's
recommendations, communicate the report writing process, thank the participants for taking
part, and letting them know how they can stay in touch on Blackpool Council’s climate action
following the Assembly.

The Assembily firstly heard from two young people, who took part in the Blackpool Youth
Assembly and presented their recommendations.

The participants then went into their original breakout groups, and discussed what they felt
about the young people’s presentations and how their views and opinions should influence this
Assembly's recommendations.

Louise Marix Evans, an expert on climate action and policy, was on hand to provide
independent external input on developing recommendations.

Following this the participants reviewed the list and descriptions of the issues the Assembly was
focusing on, and made any necessary adjustments. Participants were then given the opportunity
to contribute to 3 other issues that they were passionate about..

Participants then went back into their original groups, and refined the recommendations they
wished to make, by agreeing with the group which one to take forwards, and then refining them
to state who the recommendation was for and a timeline for how long it should take to
implement.

Finally, the Assembly came back together, and a representative from each group was given the
opportunity to feed back their group's recommendations. The moderator explained the next
steps for writing the report, and to finish off, Councillor Jim Hobson, Blackpool Council Cabinet
Member for Environment and Climate Change, thanked participants for taking part.

14



00

Some
context for
this report

€GT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

Assembly participants formed recommendations on issues that mattered to
them. They received clear evidence on the biggest issues faced by
Blackpool, and developed recommendations to tackle those issues directly
and push Blackpool to achieve its Net Zero target.

Participants also wanted to encourage their fellow residents to act, and
instruct the council and local organisations around other issues that they
felt needed attention. In some cases, these issues do not directly impact on
Blackpool's Net Zero target, but they should be noted by the council,
supported, and where appropriate influence the council strategic approach
to the climate and the environment.

In this report, to make sure that all the Assembly's wishes are captured and
treated appropriately, we separate issues out into 2 groups - Primary
Issues, and Supporting Issues. Primary Issues have a greater number of
impactful climate-oriented recommendations, whilst Supporting Issues
describe what matters to residents in a broader sense.

15



00

Some
context for
this report

vGT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

It is important for this report to reflect the Assembly’s views with accuracy.
The Assembly delivery balanced the need for thorough education on
issues, deliberation, and maintaining interest from residents online and
across 4 sessions, ensuring they had a good general overview of the
issues. Nevertheless, with such a complex topic, and a relatively limited
amount of time, the recommendations are necessarily a mix of general and
specific points.

Residents spoke with great clarity on their wish to see more collaboration
across organisations, greater community engagement, more focus on
education and awareness raising, and a significant local push on
biodiversity. Particularly on the issue of community action, the enthusiasm
and commitment amongst Assembly members was palpable. It is for the
council and local organisations to hear this enthusiasm and help fill the
capability or experience gap, giving careful consideration to the points
raised and responding in an imaginative and ambitious way.

16



The facilitation team has prioritised some of the Assembly's
recommendations based on the following requirements:
e If recommendations were targeted at a specific group or

organisation who could act (such as individuals, the Council, and

H OW We local businesses/organisations)

* °t° d e |[f the recommendations will contribute to Blackpool becoming Net
p rlo rl ISe Zero by 2030 by tackling the three key areas of Blackpool’s

carbon emissions: transport, commercial buildings and industry,

recommen and homes
dOtionS e |[fthe recommendations are achievable

e Where possible, if the recommendations have a timeframe
attached to them

GGT abed

e Where the actions have the potential to mobilise or galvanise
efforts to make a positive environmental impact.

These prioritised recommendations are included as 'The Assembly's
Net Zero Recommendations'. Other thoughts or ideas are included as
the Assembly's 'Further Reflections' for each issue.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction



00

Principles

9GT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

What are the principles

A key output of the Assembly was a set of principles to

guide deliberation and help the Assembly take decisions.

These principles can be used going forward for the
council to help guide its decisions, embedding the

residents voice in its future climate action.

18



00

Principles

/GT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

Recommendations from the Assembly should:

1.

Act now for future generations

Be realistic, fair, and affordable

Be locally-focused

Be community-driven

Be transparent and accountable

Be bold and ambitious

19



00

Principles

8GT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

Act now for future generations

We must act now to ensure that future generations can succeed. We
recognise that substantial, long-term changes take time to happen
however we must make changes now. Education for both young people
and older generations is crucial. Young people should learn about
climate change so they can take better decisions than their
predecessors. Older people should also have the opportunity to learn,
as they likely have less access to education.

Be realistic, fair, and affordable

Solutions and recommendations to combat climate change should be
available to as many Blackpool residents as possible. In particular,
individuals looking to make changes in their homes and transport
should be able to, and not have cost be a barrier to access.

20



00

Principles

6GT abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

Be locally-focused

Blackpool is a unique community. Assembly recommendations should
be both possible and appropriate for the community, and make use of
the resources within the community. Blackpool Council has a
responsibility to be both accountable to residents and to hold other
organisations to account.

Be community-driven

Residents need to be at the heart of change. While not everyone in
Blackpool will care about climate change, there are lots of people that
will. It is important to help residents understand what impact climate
change will have at a local level, and what individuals can do
themselves rather than all changes being top-down and dictated by
Blackpool Council.

21



00

Principles

09T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Introduction

Be transparent and accountable

Climate change awareness should be grown in Blackpool as many
people do not know enough about the issue to engage effectively with
it. Awareness will help people understand what changes are happening,
what they can do as an individual, and how they can support larger
changes. Thought should be given to how information is
communicated, when it is communicated, and to whom. Blackpool
should be realistic about when changes will occur and how, but the
Assembly wants to ensure that changes are actually taking place and
residents should be aware of these changes.

Be bold and ambitious

Although recommendations should be focused on making changes
now, some substantial changes will take time. Blackpool should be bold
and ambitious in its response to the climate emergency, and the Council
should act as an example for other Councils who face similar problems.
The Council should also look to form partnerships with other Councils
to reach shared climate goals.

22



0]

Generating &
buying clean
energy

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Generating & buying clean energy



O

Generating
& buying
clean
energy

Issues

29T abed

Blackpool is uniquely positioned as a coastal town to make use of clean
energy available through the wind, sea and sun.

Blackpool does not harness all of the available natural energy
resources in the surrounding area, and the council, businesses, and the
community needs to work together to find solutions. Blackpool is part of
a wider community in Lancashire and along the coast, with different
places all needing to tackle the climate emergency and thinking about
buying and generating clean energy.

The potential expense of buying and installing clean energy solutions
intimidates Blackpool residents from exploring it as an option or making
those changes to their homes.

There is a lack of awareness in the community about where to find
information about what grants and support are available and when the
information is found, it's complicated to understand for those who want
to buy clean energy.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Generating & buying clean energy



O

Generating
& buying
clean
energy

Net zero
recommendations

€97 abed

The Assembly believes that

... the Council should convene a task force with relevant stakeholders,
that identifies good practice about generating and using energy from
Blackpool’s natural resources locally. This should be completed in 1

year.

The Task Force should then create a local energy plan, that identifies
the energy demands locally, where that energy can be sourced from
(prioritising clean sources), and who is best placed to produce it. This

should be created within 18 months and implemented within 5 years.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Generating & buying clean energy



0]

Generating
& buying
clean
energy

Further reflection

9T abed

The Assembly saw additional barriers for individuals and families
implementing new energy generation technology in their community.
Developing a central point where residents can get information, advice
and guidance on options available to them. Consideration needs to be

given on how it reaches all people within Blackpool (see also section 03
Homes).

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Generating & buying clean energy



02

Transport




02

Transport

Issues

99T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Transport

Blackpool is a car-centric community that does not typically rely heavily
on public transport, nor do the many tourists who travel to Blackpool by
car. Some people are interested in using electric vehicles but are
concerned about the cost of these vehicles, and the convenience of
charging them in and around the city centre.

More affordable and carbon neutral transport methods like walking and
cycling are not well-served by Blackpool’s infrastructure. Although some
people are keen to make more use of public transport and alternative
low carbon transport, they are put off by what they see as infrequent
services, high costs, cheaper alternatives like driving and parking, and a
lack of infrastructure.

28



02

Transport

Net zero
recommendations

/9T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Transport

The Assembly believes that

... the Council should commit to public transport becoming the primary choice for
getting around and into the town by 2022, by making it more accessible, frequent

and less expensive.

To do this, costs across the system need to adjust to make public transport
desirable. Innovative approaches like distance-based fares, free fares, or

time-based transfers are all worth exploring.

By 2023, Blackpool needs to become a pedestrian and cycling friendly town, with
decent and accessible walking lanes that feel safe and cycle lanes that are clearly

marked with good infrastructure that cannot be taken over by cars or parking.

Blackpool should implement an ultra low emissions zone in the town centre by
2027, charging cars that are not electric to enter the busiest area. An increase in
the use of electric vehicles across the system should be encouraged. Businesses
need to increase the charging points they provide to their staff and customers to
make it as easy as possible for people to use an electric vehicle themselves.
There should be reduced parking charge for electric vehicles in the town centre,
and a fully electric bus fleet. Taxis companies should be supported and rewarded

to switch to an electric fleet in the long term.

29



02

Transport

Further reflections

89T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Transport

The Assembly wanted to be bold on transport, with clear targets and a
vision for a town that prioritises electric public transport, cycling and
walking. They also had ideas to improve how people visited Blackpool
in @ more carbon neutral way, recognising that huge numbers arrive by
car from elsewhere. This included Park and Ride outside the town, and
campaigning for more frequent, faster electric train services to the

bigger towns.

They also wanted to make the electronic systems around public
transport more reliable and transparent, including proper investment in

digital infrastructure around bus timetables and routes across the city.

Other ideas included greater use of car sharing schemes and public

transport vouchers or season ticket loans via employers.

30



03

Homes




Heating and powering homes creates the most carbon emissions in
Blackpool.
Different types of housing face their own challenges:

private homeowners do not know how to retrofit their homes and

H O m eS often cannot afford to make changes

Issues e renters do not have the permission to retrofit their homes and
private landlords are not incentivised, supported or encouraged to
do so

e social housing stock was built across many decades, and is not
always updated

0.T abed

e new homes are not required to be built in an energy-efficient way

Private homeowners and landlords are able to access some grants and
schemes to retrofit their homes, but they are often not aware of these
funding options.

National policy also gets in the way of councils demanding the highest
environmental standards.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Homes

32



The Assembly believes that
... Blackpool as a whole place should commit to exceeding current building

energy efficiency standards (as set out in building regulations) by 20%
H across all new build and existing homes, by 2025. This will require
O I I IeS developing or signposting services that promote the financial and technical

delivery (and wider social and environmental value) of building ener
Net zero y ) d 9

recommendations efficiency.
The Council should lead by example in its own buildings, and make sure
energy efficiency standards are being met and enforce those standards

where appropriate through an 'Energy MOT' for homes, even on older

T/T obed

buildings, by 2024. They must work with contractors, developers and

colleges to attain new standards, supporting local young people to upskill.

People in Blackpool should be supported to make improvements to their
home via existing grants and schemes. A scheme like the "Make Every
Contact Count' NHS initiative should be implemented across Blackpool by
2022 - so any interaction with a public service includes questions and advice
about energy efficiency in the home and the support available. It could be

called "Climate Contact Point".

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Homes



03

Homes

Further reflections

2/ 1 abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Homes

The Assembly recognised the importance of energy efficiency in driving
down the town's emissions, but were keen to emphasise the diversity of
both housing stock, and people's ability to pay for their own
improvements.

The Assembly was interested in a variety of different solutions
presented to them - including heat pumps and community energy
generation - and supported their roll-out where possible. They
recognised, however, that organisations in Blackpool should be
supporting individuals and communities to take advantage of existing
schemes and funding, perhaps through a centralised resource or
educational campaign.

They were also interested in greater promotion and celebration of good
energy efficient developments, using examples like 'My Blackpool
Home' as an exemplar.

34



04

Reducing
waste across
the system

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Reducing waste across the system



04

Reducing
wdaste
across the
system

Issues

v/ T abed

Blackpool produced 64,294.03 tonnes of household waste and
5,306.42 tonnes of commercial waste in 2019-2020, according to
Blackpool Council's Waste Management team. That is the same weight
as 27/ Blackpool Towers. The Assembly members believe that a lack of
awareness around the climate emergency is evident in the haphazard
recycling and sorting practices of residents. Additional costs such as the
green bin charge disincentivizes individuals from making
climate-conscious decisions in their personal lives.

Waste is also generated by the many tourists that visit Blackpool, and
by organisations within the community. Waste is not used enough as an
asset in Blackpool, and food waste is not recycled.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Reducing waste across the system



04

Reducing
wdaste
across the
system

Net zero
recommendations

G/ T abed

The Assembly believes that

... the Council and its partners should provide residents with many more
opportunities to sort waste at the point of disposal to drive recycling
and support energy generation. This means providing more bins for
different types of waste in public spaces, in homes and businesses,
including food/composting bins and their liners by 2023. Residents
should be given clear guidance on how to segregate waste and explain
how to treat waste in ways that are visible for all, potentially by putting

stickers on recycling bins.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Reducing waste across the system



04

Reducing
wdaste
across the
system

Further reflections

9/ T abed

The Assembly discussed the value of a greener approach to waste in
two ways: to help achieve Net Zero, and to make Blackpool a cleaner
and healthier place to live. They were interested in the incentives
available to businesses, residents and tourists to reduce waste, and
exploring fines for excess waste or flytipping. The Assembly were
interested in more sustainable practices around shopping, such as
recommending that shops in Blackpool sell loose food without excess
packaging and encourage or reward customers who use re-use
containers or packing when they shop. They also believed that
supermarkets and local business should work with universities to
develop more sustainable packaging alternatives

The Assembly wanted to promote the community voice in these issues
and spread ideas across neighborhoods. For example, to encourage
the rest of the community to compost by transforming green bins into
garden composters or buying composters, donate garden areas, plants
and tools for communities to garden in (as some local hotels already
do).

The Assembly also agreed with the Youth Assembly's idea to incentivise
people to participate in beach or public space cleaning by offering free
entry to attractions, or encouraging companies to let staff take a paid
day off to do a beach or public space clean-up.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Reducing waste across the system



05

Education &
Awareness

A

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Education & awareness



There is a lack of awareness of the climate emergency among a large
proportion of both young people and adults in Blackpool. Climate
change is a vast issue and can be intimidating for people to know

where to begin, or where to find trustworthy information. Some

Ed U CCItIO n & awareness exists in Blackpool through local organisations and their
efforts to educate people, but this is not wide-reaching. Blackpool
awdadreness

residents need help to understand how to address the climate
Issues emergency in their own lives before they can push for change amongst

local organisations and businesses.

8/ T abed

In particular, Assembly members, and members of the Blackpool Youth
Assembly, do not believe that there is a consistent approach to
educating school-aged children on the issue of climate change and

what impacts it has on their own communities.

There is also a lack of digestible information available for adults and
older people to use when trying to understand climate change, or clarity

on what impact individuals can have.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Education & awareness

40



05

Education &
awareness

Net zero
recommendations

6.1 abed

The Assembly believes that

... schools in Blackpool should be provided with information and support
on how to reduce their carbon footprint, expanding the existing

eco-schools programme.

An environmental lead in each school should co-create a carbon
reduction plan with young people, parents and teachers. Schools
should come together each year as part of a competition to reward and
celebrate their contribution and progress towards Blackpool's achieving
Net Zero by 2030.

Adult education should lead drop-in sessions for adults who wish to
learn more about climate change, and also receive advice and guidance

on changes they can make in their own home.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Education & awareness



In all discussions, education and awareness was a key priority for the
Assembly.

They believe that all people in Blackpool - at all ages - should have better
access to the facts around climate change, so they can take better decisions

E d J CO t | O N & in their own lives, join together for action, and hold others to account. The
awareness - coundshouldtakethe leadin collating and sharing that information.

Assembly members said that having the chance to learn from experts was
Further reflections one of the most enjoyable and useful aspects of taking part in the Blackpool
Climate Assembly, and that they would like this experience to be shared with

the wider community. Sharing information on activities via residents

08T abed

magazines, opening up community venues to host guest speakers on
climate, and advocating for climate issues to be taught in schools, were all

recommended by the Assembly.

The Assembly believes that climate science and learning about climate
solutions should be prioritised in the classroom. Understanding that
influencing the curriculum at a local level can be challenging, they believe
that local businesses should partner with schools and colleges to raise

awareness of climate action and environmental activities in Blackpool.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Education & awareness



06

Community
action

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Community Action




Many residents of Blackpool are eager and willing to get involved in
fighting climate change, but they do not know where to go to learn
more or get involved. If the community does not take action against

climate change, the impacts of climate change will be readily felt by
Blackpool residents young and old. Different Blackpool residents have

CO m m u n Ity different needs and abilities to address climate change, and as a result
action

Issues

28T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Community Action

those needs must be addressed by different kinds of community action.

44



06

Community
action

Net zero
recommendations

€8T abed

The Assembly believes that

... the community should set up action groups to respond to particular
issues related to the climate emergency. This could follow adult
education programmes delivered by the college system and supported
by the Council. Local education organisations collectively should set up
and manage a single website that provides information about climate
change, what is going on in the local area to tackle it and how residents

can get involved.

A hub of activity made up of Community Champions from around
Blackpool can then take projects forward, tapping into the existing

volunteer base and the enthusiasm in the community.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Community Action



The Assembly felt that social media needed to play a part to bring
people together across Blackpool, channelling the message about what
we can do as individuals, as groups and as an area.

Assembly members also suggested using established groups such as

CO Minm U N ity PACT meetings (forum/police monthly meetings) to build awareness.
action

Further reflections

8T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Community Action

46



0y

Network building &
iInfluencing national
government

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Network building & influencing national government



0y

Network
building &
iInfluencing
national
overnment

Issues

(987 abed

Individual Blackpool residents, businesses, and organisations are
interested in combating climate change, but are unaware of others who
are doing similar work in the community. The Council can support
networks and help to connect those who want to band together, and
look more widely at other councils in the area who have similar
priorities. Blackpool Council is also best positioned to lobby and impact

national government.

The Council also controls many policies that could impact climate
change in the community. Planning policies, some waste and recycling
regulation, and Blackpool’s transport fleet are all within the control of
the Council and should be considered as levers to impact climate

change on a local level.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Network building & influencing national government



0y

Network
building &
iInfluencing

§ national
government

Net zero
recommendations

The Assembly believes that

... the Council should actively support and promote green companies
and give them priority in the decisions the council takes. This could be
driven by a Green Business pledge that all companies who do business
with the council have to sign up to.

Businesses themselves should take the lead on creating a uniform
approach towards the climate emergency. They should establish a
Blackpool Climate Emergency business forum that meets monthly to
share ideas in a transparent way and report on progress.

Elected representatives should consistently be more public and vocal in
their support of the Net Zero agenda and take responsibility for a Net
Zero Blackpool.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Network building & influencing national government



0y

Network
building &
iInfluencing
national
overnment

Further reflections

(387 abed

On the whole, the Assembly didn’t realise how much the Council did
and how much they were restricted by other issues and national
policies. The Assembly believes that the Council should lead from the
front and start a culture change. In other areas, the Assembly wants to
see the town challenge national policy and commit to going further (see
section 03 Homes). At the same time, the Council shouldn’t be the only
ones to make the decisions and they should encourage and empower
businesses, organisations, and the community to make decisions and
act.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Network building & influencing national government



038

Biodiversity

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Biodiversity




03

Biodiversity

Issues

06T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Biodiversity

An important part of climate change and controlling carbon emissions is
protecting and growing the green space and biodiversity of the region.
As a seaside community, Blackpool has many natural assets on land
and in the water that should be protected and bolstered as the
community grows. Increasing biodiversity and green space in Blackpool
should be a greater priority when new homes and buildings are
constructed.

52



03

Biodiversity

Net zero
recommendations

T6T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Biodiversity

The Assembly believes that

... businesses should be encouraged to conduct their own carbon and
environmental assessments as a baseline, to make plans and work
towards reducing their carbon footprints and their increasing their
contribution to improving the environment. This information should be
made available to the public so that they can make informed choices
about where they take their business.

There should be a revolution in how spare space is used in Blackpool.
The council should designate all vacant land as 'green land', and
businesses wishing to develop on it must make a convincing case as to
why the proposed use of land would be more beneficial to the
community than green space. Green spaces and the 'town' should not
be seen as separate - unused flat space from roofs to roadsides are
opportunities to cultivate green spaces and plant trees.

The Assembly wants communities to do their part in looking after trees
planted locally, which begins by getting people involved in the planning
and planting of trees so that they have more ownership over them. The

Assembly wants as many people as possible involved across Blackpool.

53



03

Biodiversity

Further reflections

26T abed

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Biodiversity

The Assembly was keen to see much more community action around
the environment and biodiversity, including support to help people to
'‘grow their own' at home in their own yards/gardens, or sharing space
for those who rent. Community groups could bring in speakers and
experts to provide garden advice sessions for individuals and
organisations, care homes, etc., to get them started.

Other ideas included encouraging people to grow wildflower gardens
for bees, and a Window Box initiative where grow bags and are pots
more available for communities’ use, taking ownership of making their
streets look good, and vouchers to plant trees and plants in gardens.

The Assembly wanted to see the council leading discussions about how
to regenerate natural habitat for wildlife, working with the community to
designate areas for protection and developing a grant process.

The Assembly was also keen that the council explore, by 2022, the
feasibility of planting a "Blackpool Forest' to offset the carbon emissions
from the town, and begin discussions about where this could happen.
Implementation should begin in 2023.

54



09

Next steps

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Next steps



Determine how

to continue to engage
The Council must agree a mechanism
to continue to engage Assembly
members - whether a standing body,
or community representation on the

Climate Action Partnership.

Respond and adopt

recommendations
The Council must consider these
recommendations thoroughly and
respond to each issue, stating which
recommendations it intends to adopt,
which it doesn't and why.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Final report

Determine priorities / map

dependencies
Recommendations should be mapped
out with the Climate Action
Partnership to understand
dependencies and determine which
require direct council action, and
which require a wider strategic
response. These recommendations
must dovetail with the work of the
work of the Carbon Trust to produced

science-based trajectories to net zero.

Establish ongoing

Community engagement
The Council must put in place a plan
to keep the wider community of
Blackpool engaged in
recommendations to reach Net Zero

First
steps
in 2021

Engage widely around key

recommendations
Critical Net Zero recommendations
need to be tested with the community
and wider stakeholders, to begin the
process of change. This includes
those relating to transport in the town
centre, a local energy plan, achieving
ambitious targets around energy
efficiency in homes, and expanding
recycling.




2030

Timeline of primary
recommendations

()
. “e -\C’e
ab\\g \(\36 CX\O
9‘ (\C’ N
0\ Q\a x2® O“ X0
) ) o® 0P
C N e’ .0
2 A® > N e
\ o \o¢ o W o™

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Final report




2030

Timeline of primary
recommendations

\e (c®
oo ¥¢ ‘3(93‘ ° 1
° S \
K o' o &%
ae N W e®
O e N % o®
W ° ' 1
NC 5% e N o
e’ oMY o¥ o S &
o % o < N o0 N
o 2O o0 «< % RO L
> A e WO e« o™ \O

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Final report




Blackpool
Climate
Assembly

Final report

futuregov/

The Blackpool Climate Assembly was supported by
FutureGov, an independent organisation on a mission to
build 21st-century public sector organisations that are
catalysts for change in the internet and climate era.

Blackpool Climate Assembly | Final report




This page is intentionally left blank



Climate Assembly — Summary of Recommendations

Theme Recommendation (green)/Reflection (blue)
Principles of | 0.1 Education for young and old people
climate 0.2 Make solutions to combat climate change available to as many Blackpool residents as
action possible by removing cost barriers
0.3 Council to be accountable to residents for its actions
0.4 Council to hold other local organisations to account
0.5 Residents need to understand the impact of climate change at a local level
0.6 Individuals need to understand what they can do about climate change issues themselves
0.7 Grow awareness of climate change issues in Blackpool
0.8 Act as an example for other Councils to follow
0.9 Form partnerships with other Councils to reach shared climate goals
Generating | 1.0 Convene a taskforce to identify good practice about generating and using energy from
and buying | natural resources
clean 1.1 Create a local energy plan based on the findings of the above
energy 1.2 Develop a central information point where all Blackpool residents can get information,
advice and guidance
Transport 2.1 The Council should commit to public transport being the primary choice for getting around
and into the town by 2022 by making it more accessible, frequent and less expensive
2.2 Become a pedestrian and cycling-friendly town by 2023
2.3 Implement an ultra-low emissions zone in the town centre by 2027, charging vehicles that
are not electric for access
2.4 Increase the use of electric vehicles by:
- encouraging businesses to increase the availability of charge points
- reducing parking charges in the town centre for EV’s
- introducing a fully electric bus fleet
- supporting and rewarding taxi companies for switching to EV fleets
2.5 Encourage carbon-neutral options for visitors:
- campaigning for more frequent/faster electric train services
- Implementing a Park and Ride on the edge of the town centre
2.6 Other options to encourage modal shift:
- Car sharing schemes
- Public transport vouchers
- Season ticket loans
Homes 3.1 Commit to exceeding current building regulations by 20% by 2025
3.2 Lead by example in Council’s buildings
3.3 Introduce an Energy MOT for homes by 2024
3.4 Work with contractors, developers and colleges to upskill young people
3.5 Introduce the “Climate Contact Point” scheme —i.e. all interactions with public services
should include an opportunity to discuss energy efficiency
3.6 Support the rollout of alternative heating solutions, including community energy schemes, as
long as people are supported to afford the technology
3.7 Greater promotion and celebration of good energy efficient developments
Reducing 4.1 Provide more options to sort waste at the point of disposal, including:
Waste - More bins for different types of waste in public spaces, homes and businesses, including

food composting
- More guidance on how to sort waste
- More information on reducing waste

4.2 Explore:
- Incentives for businesses, residents and tourists to reduce waste
- Fines for excess waste or flytipping
- Encouraging shops to sell produce without excess packaging/encouraging use of
containers
- Supermarkets and retailers working with universities to develop sustainable packaging

4.3 Encourage composting

Panpa 100
gt —IJ9




4.4 Encourage donation of garden areas, plants and tools for communities to garden in

4.5 Explore incentives for people participating in beach cleansing/public space cleansing
including free entry to attractions or businesses giving paid days off

Education
and
Awareness

5.1 Schools in Blackpool should be provided with information and support on how to reduce
their carbon footprint, expanding the existing eco-schools programme

5.2 Schools should co-create a carbon reduction plan with young people, parents and teachers

5.3 Schools should hold an annual competition and celebration around their progress

5.4 Adult education should lead drop-in sessions for adults who wish to learn more about
climate change

5.5 Council should take a lead in collecting and sharing facts on climate change

5.6 Expert information/learning should be made available via communication with residents, via
community venues and schools

5.7 Climate solutions and science should be prioritised in the classroom, including in partnership
with local businesses

Community
Action

6.1 The community should set up action groups to respond to particular issues

6.2 Local education organisations collectively should set up and manage a single website that
provides information about climate change and how residents can get involved

6.3 Community Champions should be identified to take projects forward, tapping into the
existing volunteer base

6.4 Use social media to bring people together

6.5 Use established groups such as PACT meetings to build awareness

Network-
building

and
influencing
national
government

7.1 The Council should support and promote green companies and give them priority driven by a
Green Business Pledge

7.2 Businesses should establish a Blackpool Climate Emergency business forum to meet monthly
and share ideas

7.3 Elected representatives should consistently be more public and vocal in their support of the
Net Zero agenda and take responsibility for a net-zero Blackpool

7.4 Challenge national policy where this conflicts with Blackpool’s net zero goals

7.5 Council should encourage and empower businesses, organisations and the community to act

Biodiversity

8.1 Businesses should undertake carbon and environmental assessments and increase their
contribution to improving the environment

8.2 Businesses should make information on their environmental contributions available to the
public

8.3 The Council should designate all vacant land as “green land”, requiring a case to be made in
favour of its development as opposed to leaving it as green space

8.4 Explore opportunities to cultivate green spaces and plant trees on unused spaces (including
roofs)

8.5 Involve as many people as possible across Blackpool in the planning and planting of trees

8.6 Help people to “grow their own” veg, including sharing space for those without land,
including expert advice

8.7 Encourage wildflower gardens, windowboxes and tree planting by making grow bags, pots
and whips available to communities

8.8 Council to lead discussions on how to regenerate natural wildlife habitats, working with the
community to designate areas for protection and develop a grant process

8.9 Explore the feasibility of planting a “Blackpool Forest” to offset carbon emissions by 2023

Youth Climate Assembly — Summary of Recommendations

Food 9.1 Educate communities on eating seasonally and locally, including the use of allotments and
community gardens (link to 8.6), and develop zero waste community shops

Cleaner and | 9.2 Educate people on recycling and sustainability, with recycling bins in local parks and on

Greener beaches, and introduce recycling reverse vending machines

Blue Spaces | 9.3 Reduce beach litter through harsher fines, promote beach cleans and introduce other forms

of positive reinforcement

Page 200




Green
Spaces
Education

Transport

Renewable
energy

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank



'BLACKPOOL

&

-

YOUTH

ik

S

*

CL

.

)

E*

MAT

L

2
o
=
L
7
7
<

1y

]




About the group

The journey that we have been on to end up with a cross-Blackpool

Youth Climate Group has been a really exciting and interesting one

for everyone involved. This document has been co-produced to give

the reader a clear understanding of how the group has been created

and what we hope to achieve as Blackpool’s dedicated Youth Climate Group!

On 26th June 2019 Blackpool Council issued a Climate Emergency Declaration. A big
difference between Blackpool Council’s declaration and other councils was the emphasis that
was placed on the voice of young people being at the heart of any discussions that would
happen, and decisions that would be made!

In the UK’s largest youth consultation Make your Mark 2019, 399,652 young people

voted ‘Protect the Environment, we believe that we have a responsibility to protect the
environment from the effects of climate change for the next generation; and that the
Government should look towards carbon neutral alternatives’ as their most important issue
that young people are facing.

Out of Blackpool’s 6,213 votes, 2,666 of these votes were for ‘Protect the Environment’
putting it first for Blackpool’s results. This consultation was held between August 2019 —
October 2019. From this Blackpool Youth Council held their Youth Summit in November 2019
that saw professionals take part in a Q&A style event to discuss the top issues. Representing
the environment at the event was the Fylde Beach Care Officer for Keep Britain Tidy/
LovemyBeach.

We saw this as an excellent opportunity to combine the individual efforts of youth
organisations around climate change in Blackpool, to campaign and work together, to make a
difference based on concerns and ideas that young people have around climate change and
the environment.




Blackpool Youth Climate Group

Our group brings together young people across Blackpool to collectively take positive action
to combat climate change in our town. We started as a collaboration between the Blackpool
Youth Council, Junior Park Rangers and Headstart Blackpool, coming together as proud co-

leaders of the Resilience Revolution; to organise Blackpool’s first Youth Climate Assembly in

January 2021.

We meet regularly and are always looking for new members! For more information about
how YOU can get involved, contact:

Sam Richardson, Headstart - sam.richardson@blackpool.gov.uk

April Rankin, URPotential - april@urpotential.co.uk
Rebecca Wright, Junior Park Rangers - rebecca.wright@blackpool.gov.uk

@
L N ef Prikakion o} my

he wona i i
T 28 15 (rgmﬂa

gﬂuwsc i+'s dy mjv

T L\( /and "y on ,}{(e
TL{ Oceans ardMre

r Qrounk e | ol

uni ¢!
TO Win thiS ¢[ivate )z




Timeline

)

February:
2nd - Launch of the Blackpool Youth Climate Group.

January:
27th - Blackpool Youth Climate Assembly Debrief: Making sense
of the Assembly and thinking about next steps.

20th & 21st - Blackpool Youth Climate Assembly.

October/November/December:
Regular planning sessions

September:

HeadStart, JPR & BYC combine to co-produce Youth Assembly.
Blackpool Council choose organisation to deliver Climate
Assembly

March:
Blackpool Council, URPotential and Resilience Revolution
meet to discuss climate activities in Blackpool and potential

collaboration during a climate citizen assembly
2019

November:
Blackpool Youth Summit where thoughts on Climate Change/
Environment are explored via a Question & Answer session.

September:

BYC highlighting climate change as top concern for Young People
as part of the United Kingdom Youth Parliament’s Make Your
Mark.

June:
Blackpool Council declares a Climate Emergency in June 2019.




Session 1

What does climate change mean to you?

plants devastating

carbon footprint temperature
unsustainable living non-renewable products

future renewable energy

toxins in the air pressure

changable

greenhouse gases scary

work together the earth dying
the weather - temperature

melting icecaps g plastic pollution

sea levels

plastic waste

D
o
c
@
c
o)
N
o

What does the environment mean to you?

balance
planting
everything

an i mals needs saving

recycle nutrients

© oxygen
e oxyge
o
=

forest fires
taken for granted

clean and dirty air

natural
fUtu re its beautiful but dirty
surroundings beaUtlfUI clean or dirty

ecological community conditions




Session 1

Session One of the Blackpool Youth Climate Assembly brought a group of young people,
volunteers, councillors and practitioners together to explore and learn about climate change
and the environment with a view to learning about issues and then going on to come up with
solutions.

Session One was about setting the scene and finding out what young people thought about
climate change and the environment before inviting a range of guest speakers to help build
the knowledge of the young people who were part of the climate assembly.

We had speakers from Blackpool Council who introduced their vision for a green Blackpool.

Viktoria from the University of Brighton set the scene and explored with the group some
words they might come across or be unsure about.

We then heard from Guy from Generation Climate Europe/Transition Network about food
and agroecology, we heard from Sam from Groundworks and Emily from LoveMYBeach who
introduced us to green and blue spaces. Blackpool Youth Council then raised awareness
about Fuel Poverty and finally, Leah from Active Blackpool talked to us about cycling and
sustainable transport solutions.




Session 2

Session two of the Blackpool Youth Climate Assembly brought the group from session one
back together ready for the final 2 hours. This session was all about giving young people the
opportunity to split into smaller groups and talk about their views and opinions on one of the
topics from session one.

Emma, a member of Bury Youth council came to talk about her experience getting involved
in climate change and what events she has been involved in. She spoke about things young
people could do to help combat climate change and answered questions from the group.
After the break, the groups came back together from their discussions and gave feedback
on what they spoke about and each group gave a possible action around their topic to be
pursued following the climate assembly.

Evaluation forms were filled out at the end of the session and the young people were made
aware that we would carry on as Blackpool’s climate group and if that was something they
wanted to be a part of then they could come to an open session on the 2nd February 2021.




Feedback

Young people’s comments captured

| think people only focus on the environment when they have no other
priorities; like it’s a novelty rather than an emergency?

In terms of education I think it’s important to educate peopel on the
careers associated with the environment - it’s something | was interested
in and had to learn about on my own. Just a thought :)

Could we set up a bike rental service type idea like Liverpool city bike as
almost a replacement for public transport.

By the way we are so positive to each others reasoning :) I like it
Well done everyone
Lets combat climate change together guys!




Evaluation

How would you describe the Climate Assembly in three words?

necessary
knowledge gaining

~ learnt new things i nte reSti n g
inspirational gy motivational
o

u - : exciting

S 5
_5- I nfo rm atlve knowledgeable

() eveopening educational
c

elevanted

essential

powerful
loved it

pro-active
interactive

good communication )
empowering

The way this word cloud works is the more times the word is used, the bigger it appears. This
shows that the young people who attended the Climate Assembly thought that the event
was fun, inspiring and informative/educational just to name a few.

This feedback was reassuring as the word cloud on Day 1 around what climate change meant
to them included the descriptions “scary”, “the world is dying”, “extinction” and “must do
something about it”. Moving the group from being deeply concerned even before learning
more about climate change, to then leaving the Assembly being inspired, hopeful and excited

for collective actions as a group in Blackpool.




What did you enjoy about the climate assembly?

Vary inchushor, my responses were walcomad nicely ond
Il ke | was tof this

Pieornad lots of nare thangs abwan cimate change
teday

Fenjoyed Bstendng to pecple’s eos ond opinions

e g e il

Tanjoyed the discunsicns and th bouncing ideas off of
wachathed ad it pushed us ta develop mece creative
solutions 1o this problem

infarmation whils Baing interotting ot 1he same timas

com ogree that | now know mone things olbout the
wrmiranman ord climate changs then | did belore

Baing aport of charge

What would you change or do differently?

Mithing | IBsight it wad padtpet

Hive this ba foce to foce i) when possible

Mot mach! | would maybe hove o section to
disciss miscellaneous lssues thot peaphs want
te aod, ap woll ¢ the predetermingd
catagories.:)

Hepadully in tha Tutuing wie Con maet fecg=-1o-
tac again and & moed Randd on octh

| wriibel B vt Yirewl Tiod chifciciiinnd 46 wir
con make more Jecisions

it wad absolitely BAillant with notheng wrong
atall

Merybe mes having the Ieom madting of tea
tima

Pt an Sctivity in thie shEarete reoms 1o Break
tha s Tor thasd 1Rt wand in themm

Vgved that everyone had the opporturity to give their
apiniond, and that there were diffemnt lormats ta ghe
your viewd | also enpped the educatasal dde; it made
EEE @Y ETYONE WaE 0N th 50 pOg e,

e amount of infeemation and knowledge, its so
QRaZIng 10 haar people wh think the seeme o me. 1o
0 kmpiring ond rice ta leam ond hear mere i order to
ain fad kravwladge

| arjoyed loornirg about how the world iz changing and

what wi can do 16 hove & podiithn Impact

leeened lots of new things obeut climate changs

testhery

Aathing o1 all - 48 well anganidid and wil vicy
antertaining

i wonild da mone gmall group discuisions

Im: nat o sure, owenall it wios o good e
foriiadng,

Promata it mong,




This feedback is overall very positive with the majority of comments stating that the event
was good, without the need for any major changes, It was especially powerful to hear how
young people felt that they were in an inclusive environment where they could connect to
others who also cared strongly about the environment and climate change. Young people
reported that they felt hopeful and excited to be part of change.

Suggestions for any future events included to have it take place face to face next time if
possible, to have ice breakers in breakout rooms, to have the opportunity for young people
to discuss topics that did not fit into the predetermined categories, to change the time to not
clash with dinner time and more time for discussion.

Please rate the following, 1 being very poor, 10 being great

The icebreaker activities
| VI 89

The seeuk ars q

The groupwork opportunities

The way the climate assembly was delivered by the

team @

Please rate your understanding of climate related issues before and
after the Climate Assembly

Before the Youth Climma';ssembly

Know nothing
Know everything

After the Youth Climate Assembli @

A massive well done to the team as this shows they hosted an event that improved people’s
understanding of climate issues. The purpose of this question was to capture exactly that.




Any other feedback?

It was great! Thankyou

Try to get the meetings out to more
peaple through advertisement so
more people con get invoheed

It was a really good session! Mope Very great group

thank you 5o much - this was great no just that | seriously enjoyed this
and | feel like everyone has a kot to assembly
da from herel:)

The only piece of additional feedback is to advertise more for any future event to try and

attract more Young people.

Our findings and actions

Food

Young people propose
that it is important to educate

Young people felt that
buying food locally reduces
food miles, this helps
Blackpool work towards its
goals of becoming
carbon net zero.

Town
Young people
wanted
Blackpool
to normalise the idea
of a cleaner and greener
town, with individuals
taking pride in
their town for
being litter free
and sustainable.

communities on eating seasonally as
well as locally, this allows Blackpool
to take advantage of allotments and
community gardens. This could be
developed into community shops
that are zero waste.

Young people propose
education surrounding recycling
and sustainability, with access to
recycling bins on local parks and

beaches, as well as incentives such
as the recycling reverse
vending machines.




Blue Spaces
Young people wanted to
focus on reducing litter on
Blackpool’s beaches, this
can be through imposing
harsher fines, and
promoting beach cleans,
encouraging recycling
and other forms
of positive
reinforcement.

Green Spaces
Young people felt
greenspaces should be seen
as a carbon offset solution,
greenspaces therefore need to become

greener with trees, flower and meadows.

This approach puts emphasis on the
importance of greenspaces as a way to
offset carbon emissions and promote
nature.

Education
Young people
felt that Blackpool should
have a better understanding
of climate change and
environmental issues.

Young people propose
the creation of an event such
as Blackpool’s biggest beach clean
which is something Blackpool’s
Youth Climate Group aims to
develop in the future.

Young people propose
tree planting across Blackpool’s
green spaces, with the utilisation
of existing services to encourage
communities to get involved in
making green spaces
greener.

Young people propose
compulsory education on
climate change and environmental
issues starting at a young age and
continuing throughout primary /
secondary school. This should cover
not only scientific elements of climate
change and environmental issues
but also related social
issues.




Transport
Young people emphasised the
importance of breaking down
barriers surrounding active
travel, making Blackpool safer
for young people to choose to
ride a bike, scooter, skate or run
instead of using public transport.
Additionally, give young people
the option to choose active travel
by providing more affordable
prices or even funding towards
active travel.

Renewable energy
Young people emphasized
the importance of people living
in Blackpool having the option to
use renewable energy, despite the
expense.

One idea young people
propose is a swap shop where
when a young person grows
out of their bike they can swap
it for the next size up. This
also promotes families across
Blackpool to reuse.

Young people suggest
the creation of a fund allowing
people to access money to make

their houses more energy efficient
and sustainable. Additionally, new

builds are to be built with the

installation of solar
panels.

q

The most important thing to come out of our assembly is the creation of Blackpool’s Youth
Climate Group! It wasn’t just an event, it is now a movement. From the Blackpool Youth
Climate Assembly it is clear that young people are serious about climate change and the
environment and we hope businesses, leaders, citizens and decision makers can help us
make a difference!




Agenda Item 9

Report to: TOURISM, ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Sharon Davis, Scrutiny Manager

Date of Meeting: 16 June 2021

SCRUTINY WORKPLAN

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 The Committee to consider the Workplan and to monitor the implementation of
Committee recommendations, together with any suggestions that Members may
wish to make for scrutiny review topics.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 To approve the Committee Workplan 2020-2021, taking into account any suggestions
for amendment or addition.

2.2 To monitor the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations/action.

2.3 To note the report of the llluminations Scrutiny Review Panel, attached at Appendix
9(d).

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

31 To ensure that recommendations/actions are being monitored, the Workplan is up to

date and is an accurate representation of the Committee’s work.

3.2 Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or No
approved by the Council?

3.2 Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved N/A
budget?

33 Other alternative options to be considered:
None.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 N/A

Page 217



5.0

5.1

511

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.2

521

5.2.2

53

53.1

5.3.2

54

54.1

5.4.2

Background Information
Scrutiny Workplan 2020/2021

The Workplan is a flexible document that sets out the work that the Committee will
undertake over the course of the year.

The Committee is scheduled to meet on 9 June 2021 to review the Workplan for the
2021/2022 municipal year. A copy of the updated document will be circulated in

advance of the meeting.

Committee Members are invited, either now or in the future, to suggest topics that
might be suitable for scrutiny in order that they be added to the Workplan.

Monitoring Implementation of Recommendations

The table attached at Appendix 9(c) has been developed to assist the Committee in
effectively ensuring that the recommendations made by the Committee are acted
upon. The table will be regularly updated and submitted to each Committee

meeting.

Members are requested to consider the updates provided in the table and ask follow
up questions as appropriate to ensure that all recommendations are implemented

Scrutiny Review Checklist

The Scrutiny Review Checklist is attached at Appendix 9(b). The checklist forms part
of the mandatory scrutiny procedure for establishing review panels and must
therefore be completed and submitted for consideration by the Committee, prior to

a topic being approved for scrutiny.

The Committee is recommended to place an emphasis on the priorities and
performance of the Council when considering requests for scrutiny reviews.

llluminations Scrutiny Review

On 27 March 2021 the Illluminations Review Panel meet to discuss the future of the
illumination.

The llluminations Scrutiny Review Report can be found at Appendix 9(d).

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

Page 218



6.0 List of Appendices:

Appendix 9(a) - Tourism, Economy and Communities Scrutiny
Committee Workplan (To Follow)

Appendix 9(b) - Scrutiny Review Checklist

Appendix 9(c) — Tourism, Economy and Communities Committee
Action Tracker

Appendix 9(d) — llluminations Review Panel Report

7.0 Financial considerations:

7.1 None

8.0 Legal considerations:

8.1 None.

9.0 Risk management considerations:
9.1 None.

10.0 Equalities considerations:

10.1 None.

11.0  Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:
111 None

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1 None.

13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None.

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9(b)

SCRUTINY SELECTION CHECKLIST

Title of proposed Scrutiny:

The list is intended to assist the relevant scrutiny committee in deciding whether or not to approve a
topic that has been suggested for scrutiny.

Whilst no minimum or maximum number of ‘yes’ answers are formally required, the relevant scrutiny
committee is recommended to place higher priority on topics related to the performance and
priorities of the Council.

Please expand on how the proposal will meet each criteria you have answered ‘yes’ to.
Yes/No

The review will add value to the Council and/or its partners overall performance:

The review is in relation to one or more of the Council’s priorities:

The Council or its partners are not performing well in this area:

It is an area where a number of complaints (or bad press) have been received:

The issue is strategic and significant:

There is evidence of public interest in the topic:

The issue has potential impact for one or more sections of the community:

Service or policy changes are planned and scrutiny could have a positive input:

Adequate resources (both members and officers) are available to carry out the scrutiny:

Page 221




Appendix 9(b)

Please give any further details on the proposed review:

Completed by: Date:

Page 222




gze abed

MONITORING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS

Appendix 9(c)

DATE OF RECOMMENDATION TARGET RESPONSIBLE UPDATE RAG Rating
REC. DATE OFFICR
1 23 January | That bi-annual updates on the May 2020 John-Paul Items for monitoring the implementation of the Ongoing
2019 implementation of the Single Lovie/John SUP policy have been scheduled for every six-
Use Plastics Policy be included Greenbank months. Next Update Autumn 2020
on future agendas
2 23 January | That bi-annual updates on the Ongoing Nick Items for monitoring the progress of Town Centre Ongoing
2019 progress of Town Centre Gerard/John Regeneration Project have been scheduled for
Regeneration Projects be Greenbank every six-months. Next Update 22 April 2020.
included on future agendas
7. 3 February | That details of areas under Before 14 Alan Cavill Ongoing
2021 consideration for conservation April 2021
area status.
9. 14 April That a list of the locations of Before 16 Lisa Completed
2021 trees planted in Blackpool be June 2021 Arnold/Annie
circulated. Heslop
10 | 14 April That details of the source of the | Before 16 lan Large Details of the funding are planned to be circulated | Ongoing
2021 announced additional £40k in June 2021 as part of the agreed Public Rights of Way Scrutiny

funding for Public Rights of Way
be provided

Review Panel.




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 9(d)

TOURISM ECONOMY AND COMMUNITIES

Report to:
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Relevant Officer: Mr John Greenbank, Senior Democratic Governance Adviser
(Scrutiny)

Date of Meeting: 16 June 2021

SCRUTINY REVIEW OF ILLUMINATIONS

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To update on the work undertaken by scrutiny members on the review of The
Blackpool Illuminations.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 To consider the update , the recommendations made and identify any further work to
be undertaken on the llluminations.

2.2 The a report updating the Review Panel on the following item be provided to the
Committee at its December 2021 meeting:

2.3 -

Details on the local community engagement work, including with young people
and those with disabilities;

Emerging commercial opportunities, including heritage tours and paid for events;
None traditional light events (such as the Moon exhibition at the Winter
Gardens);

The environmental improvements that had been made or were planned;
Details of how Town Deal money would be spent locally to improve education
and skills;

The cost effectiveness of a “switch-on” event, in light of the extended
Illuminations period;

Work to address the negative perception of Blackpool town centre at night; and
The progress on the Town Deal bid.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

31 To ensure the Committee has an overview of ongoing work.

3.2 Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by No
the Council?

Page 225




33

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Appendix 9(d)

Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? Yes
Other alternative options to be considered:

None.

Council priority:

The relevant Council priority is
e Communities: Creating stronger communities and increasing resilience.

Background information

On 27 April 2021, Members of the Tourism, Economy and Communities (TEC) Scrutiny
Committee held a Review Panel meeting to consider the delivery and future of the
Illuminations in Blackpool

Councillor Martin Mitchell chaired the meeting with the following Members in
attendance:

Councillor Paula Burdess Councillor Paul Wilshaw
Councillor Jane Hugo Councillor Gerard Walsh
Councillor Paul Galley

Mr Philip Welsh, Head of Communications and Tourism and Mr Richard Williams,
Illuminations Manager, were also in attendance.

The Review Panel had been agreed following the November 2020 meeting of the TEC
Scrutiny Committee which had considered a report on the delivery of the
Illuminations in 2021 and future plans for the event.

The Committee had noted that the Illuminations had sought £4.5m in funding from
the Blackpool Town Deal and that a business case was being developed. The Review
Panel was informed by officers that the money would be for capital investment which
would be spent over a five-year period, for the development of new lights and
attractions that would benefit the promenade and town centre.

The extended opening of the lights during 2020, in response to the Covid-19
lockdown, had demonstrated that there was a demand for the retro experience
offered by the llluminations. Therefore as part of the business case development
officers had sought to consider how such an appeal could be sustained and expanded
beyond a drive-through only experience.

Page 226



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

Appendix 9(d)

Proposals had also been put forward as part of the Town Deal bid to make the
extension of the Illuminations event from the autumn to the year end permanent.
This had received support from other attractions in Blackpool, which had also sought
to extend their opening times. Mr Welsh explained that these efforts were part of a
wider plan by the Council to develop a year-round tourism offer, rather than limiting
attractions to isolated periods of the year. The extended season would allow the
[lluminations to link with the town’s Christmas and new year offer. By repeating the
extended season in 2021 officers could gain evidence that this approach was effective
going forward.

The Council was also a member of the ‘Light Up the North’ group of local councils
operating light shows. This group allowed for the sharing of ideas and the sharing of
resources. There also existed the potential for using the group to jointly purchase
services and equipment, allowing for reduced costs.

The Review Panel raised the issue of community engagement at the meeting. It had
been noted by Members that engagement and enthusiasm for the Illluminations often
came from outside of Blackpool and not local residents. Mr Williams responded that
work had taken place to work with local artists with disabilities in designing parts of
the attraction, however he agreed that wider engagement work was necessary. The
Review Panel therefore asked if more could be done to engage local people, in
particular young people.

The Mr Welsh also informed the Review Panel that although the Town Deal Business
Case would be submitted in June 2021, it was unlikely that any funding would be
received in 2021. Therefore the design and building of lights for 2021 would take
place without this support. The Review Panel raised the possibility that once received
the Town Deal money could be largely spent in the short-term to support tourism
recovery post-Covid-19. Mr Welsh responded that spending in this way could result in
the Council investing in technology that would become inadequate in the longer term.
Therefore in order to ensure flexibility it was proposed that any money received
would be spent evenly across the five year period of funding. Mr Williams added that
this flexibility could be of benefit to the wider Council as new lighting technology, such
as modular lights could be used across the Council services.

Members also discussed what commercial opportunities were available to generate
additional income for the lights. The possibility of a pay-only section of the lights was
raised, however Mr Welsh explained that there were a number of legal issues that
could prevent this. For example, closing a section of a public road and restricting
access to paying visitors would require a local referendum, which was considered
unnecessarily onerous to undertake. Sponsorship of the lights was also raised as a
possibility, with Mr Welsh explaining that a large international sponsor was difficult to

Page 227



6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

Appendix 9(d)

attract and would demand various rights, such as naming and exclusivity of product
sales in return. Instead the Council sought to attract a greater number of sponsors for
the Illuminations through demonstrating the growth and success of the attraction
year on year.

The use of tableaus and well known characters in the light displays was also discussed,
with it being noted that some famous characters required image rights to be bought.
Consideration in these cases had to be given to the cost-effective nature of paying for
the rights to a particular character. The Review Panel therefore asked that the greater
commercial opportunities be explored by the Council to identify additional revenue
streams to support the llluminations.

The potential for offering the Council’s llluminations services to other Council in order
to generate income was raised by the Review Panel. Mr Williams explained that the
Council was registered on the Chest tendering service and that there had been
expressions of interest. As part of this Blackpool was assisting Crewe deliver a light
festival. However he noted that Blackpool needed to protect the unique offer it had,
which could be diluted if too much focus was given to developing potential
competitor attractions.

The environmental impact of the Illuminations was raised, with Members of the Panel
asking what had been done or what was planned to address this issue. Mr Welsh
explained that new manufacturing technology had been used to make the lights,
which was cleaner and more energy efficient than that used previously. Reducing
traffic through a greater number of walk through light attractions would also have
positive environmental benefits. Mr Williams also noted that the use of LED lights
made the llluminations more energy efficient and that officers had investigated how
the ‘Light Up the North’ Group could be used to secure more environmentally friendly
systems, such as generators, for the future. Members of the Review Panel asked that
more information on the work and future plans be provided.

The cost of holding a “Switch-On” event was queried, in light of the extended
Illuminations seasons. It was suggested that with the lights on longer that the need for
a special opening event was reduced. Mr Welsh responded that the event promoted
the lights and that the llluminations were open. He added that they also had a

positive impact on local businesses in Blackpool. However he noted that consideration
on how the event was delivered would be undertaken going forward, in light of the
changes to the llluminations.

The use of heritage assets that could be utilised as a commercial opportunity was
discussed. Members noted that Blackpool Transport Company Ltd (BTS), operated a
number of themed trams, and that the Council should look to work with the company
to promote the attraction as part of the Illuminations. It also noted that BTS had
undertaken crowd funding to support its heritage trams. Mr Welsh replied that the

Page 228



6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

Appendix 9(d)

Council would look to work with BTS to further the use of its trams during the
[lluminations and its heritage programmes. In addition to this Mr Williams informed
the Panel that behind the scenes heritage tours of the Illuminations works had taken
place for schools and there was scope to develop this into a paid for attraction for a
wider audience.

An ongoing challenge for encouraging visitors to leave their cars and enter Blackpool
town centre at night was recognised. Members highlighted that the town centre had a
negative reputation due to incorrect perceptions of crime in the areas among visitors.
This could hamper efforts to stage walk through attractions in the town centre going
forward. It was recognised that this issue would be difficult to address and the Panel
asked that consideration be given to the issue going forward.

The Review Panel agreed to recommend that an update on the Illluminations be
provide to the December 2021 meeting of the TEC Scrutiny Committee. In this report
Members asked that the following information be provided:

- Details on the local community engagement work, including with young
people and those with disabilities;

- Emerging commercial opportunities, including heritage tours and paid for
events;

- None traditional light events (such as the Moon exhibition at the Winter
Gardens);

- The environmental improvements that had been made or were planned;

- Details of how Town Deal money would be spent locally to improve education
and skills;

- The cost effectiveness of a “switch-on” event, in light of the extended
[lluminations period;

- Work to address the negative perception of Blackpool town centre at night;
and

- The progress on the Town Deal bid.

Following receipt of this report it was agreed that further meeting of the Review Panel
be held to consider potential recommendations.

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No
List of Appendices:

None.

Financial considerations:

Details of discussions regarding Town Deal funding and the generation of additional income

Page 229



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

12.0

12.1

13.0

131

Appendix 9(d)

are contained at 6.11 and 6.12 of the report.
Legal considerations:

None.

Risk management considerations:

None.

Equalities considerations:

The review panel identified a need to engage with young people and those with disabilities
going forward as part of its discussions.

Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations:

Details of discussions regarding the environmental impact of the llluminations are contained
at 6.15 of the report.

Internal/external consultation undertaken:
None.

Background papers:

Blackpool llluminations Report — 18 November 2020

Minutes of TEC — 18 November 2020

Page 230



	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 14 APRIL 2021
	4 EXECUTIVE AND CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS
	Appendix 4a - Executive Decisions

	5 FORWARD PLAN
	Appendix 5a - Forward Plan - June 2021 to October 2021

	6 EXTERNAL CONSULTANTS ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021
	Appendix 6a - External Consultants Spend Analysis 2020-2021

	7 FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
	Appendix 7a - Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 2021 to 2027
	Executive Summary 
	1. Introduction 

	1.1. What is a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy?
	1.2. A Joint Strategy for Lancashire 
	1.3 National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) Strategy 
	2. Context 

	2.1. Legislative Framework 
	2.2 National Assessments and Plans 
	2.3 North West Regional Assessments and Plans 
	2.4 District Level Assessments and Plans 
	2.5. Types of Flooding and Flood Risk 
	2.6 Responsibilities of Flood Risk Management Authorities 
	2.7 Responsibilities of Individuals and Communities
	2.8 FCERM Governance in Lancashire 
	2.9 Working with our Wider Partners 
	2.10 Funding for FCERM 
	3. Local Flood Risks & Challenges 

	3.1 Local Flood Risks 
	3.2 Local Challenges 
	3.3 District Fact Files
	4. Opportunities 

	New FCERM Investment Programme 2021 -2027 
	5. Our Vision for Lancashire 

	By 2027, Lancashire will be a flood resilient place responsive to risks, challenges and opportunities supporting a sustainable future for the people of Lancashire.
	Theme 1. Delivering Effective Flood Risk Management Locally
	Theme 2. Understanding our Local Risks and Challenges
	Theme 3. Supporting Sustainable Flood Resilient Development
	Theme 4. Improving Engagement with our Flood Family
	Theme 5: Maximising Investment Opportunities to better protect our Businesses and Communities
	Theme 6: Contributing towards a Climate Resilient Lancashire
	6. Our Business Plan



	8 CLIMATE EMERGENCY DECLARATION: CLIMATE ASSEMBLY RECOMMENDATIONS
	Appendix 8a - Blackpool Climate Assembly - final report 110321
	Appendix 8b - Summary recommendations
	Appendix 8c - BYCG Assembly Document

	9 SCRUTINY WORKPLAN
	Appendix 9b - Scrutiny Selection Checklist
	Appendix 9c -TEC Action Tracker
	Appendix- 9d - Illuminations Report


